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when I saw the look op his face, and the blood everywherse, and
the knife in the middle of the bed.

We also know that he was angry because we kpow that
he knocked her arcund for at least an hour before he
ultimately stabbed her o death. Dr. Dutra testified thatr
there were multiple blunt force travmas in this case. And ¥ou
have all the exbikits back there, you'll =see the photographs,
Specifically, she had very noticeable bruising to her abdomen.
Those are not consistent with being self-inflicted. Those are
considered with -- or those are consistent with the defendant
having knocked her around for an hour.

She zlsc had injuries to her back, BAgain, not
consistent with having been self-inflicted. They're
consistent with an argument occurring in the hour leading up
to her dezth, a physical argument. She alsa had bruising teo
her buttocks. Again, not consistent with having been
self-inflicted. These injuries were inflicted at the hands of
the defendant, leading up to her death.

She has a grab mark arcund her right wrist. Again,
not self-inflicted. And then, she has grab marks on her bicep
-- her left bicep. You can actually see what appears to he
the fingerprint —- the finger imprint in her arm. I mean,
leck at those photographs. She had wmultiple bruises to her
legs, her ankle. In the hour leading up to her death, the

defendant acted with anger, with malice.
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The evidence at the scene was consistent with a
phyzical argument occourring in the hour leading up to her
death. The -- there were three blinds lying on the floor,

Ygou can see them in some of the cother photagraphs. Those were
the blinds chat fell down from the patic door. If you look
closely at the photographs of the closet, you can see where
tne doors have come off the tracks.

And you also heard the cestimony of Joyce Toliver,
Charles Toliver, "Cookie,” and Jimmy Hathcox, that all
corroborated this. They said that the noise -- Joyce tells
you the nolse began around %:00 p.m. She said, T was just
about to watch Days of our Lives, I believe is what she said.
I said, well, do you have any idea how long it continued on?
And she said, yeah, my eother socap opera had just come on, so
it had to have been at least an hour.

She said that it was so loud that she couldn't even
hear her TV, even after turning it up. The noise was so loud
that it woke Charles Toliver up from his sleep. And again,
Jimmy Hathcox. The noise was so loud; the look on his face
was so disturbing, he thought to himself, T hope he's not over
there heating the crap out of her, Well, he was.

As further evidence of his malice in this case, he
stabbed her. He didn't spit on her. He didn't shove hery. Hs
stabbed her. He stabbed her with an eight-inch kitchen knife.

That implies malice alone. Then, after He stabs hez, he
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watches her bleed out on the bed, moves her to the floor, and
for ne apparent reason at all, remaves her pants.

She bled cut over the course of 10 to 30 miputes.
This man did nothing to step -- nething ko help. Two cell
phones were laying on the kitchen counter;, 30 to 40 feet [rom
the bedroom. He never gnce went to those cell phones and made
a 9-11 call. He never once plead for help from the neighbors.

Then, when help finally does come, ar potential
help, all he says to Cockie is, come get her, come get her.

He doesn't say, go call 9-11, Cookie. He doesn't say, go get
me some medical help. He just says, come get her. Then, when
Cockie goes tg get Todd to help with the situation, he tells
Todd, get the fuck out of here, and rakes a swing at him.
That's now not only somebody that's nat seeking help; it’'s
somebedy Lhat's preventing help. That's malice.

Then, when the police finally show up, the pecple
that probably actually could help, he's combative. Over the
course of five to six miputes, he ignores their commands to
come out of the bedroom. They explain to him at least two to
three different times, sir, we cannct get in there to help
Victoria Whitmarsh as lang as you're in there, and we don't
know if you're armed. We nged you to come out.

Todd Conn was the first one trying to explain this
to him. He wasn't confrontational with him; he was & crisis

intervention pfficer. He wouldn't even identify himself, He
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jist kept 5¢reaminé, ¥ou get the fuck in here, you get the
fuck in here. Then, he gives them the name of Veronica, not
Victoria. He gives them a false name.

Once they fipally de get into the room, after three
to four minutes of challenging him to come out, he still
refuses to obey their commands. He would not let them get to
her to render aid. He laid on top of her. He had ta be tased
twe different times, just to get him out of the room. And
even after being tased, he's strucgling with officers, to the
point where they drop him on his forehead in the living room,

And remember, Qfficer -- or Detective Baliejos teold
you, medical won't go inte that -- they won't go inte the
scene until they know that it's static; unctil there's no
longer a danger to them. As long as all of this is gquing on,
they can't get to her to render aig. She's lying there,
bleeding to death, and this man is deing nothing to stop it,
and everything te prevent any sort of help.

Then, when they finally get him out on the porch,
Detective Ballejos now goes up to him and gays, what's her
plood type? He won't give him that information, Makes
ancther attempt at getting & name. He gives Detective
Ballejos the same name he gave COfficer {inaudible] -- ar Conn,
I'm soxry; Veronica. The officers spend several minutes
trying to verify that name, realize rhat's not her crye name.

Sc, even after he's out of the apartment, he's still impeding

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

N03553




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
1%
20
21
22
23
24
25

17
their abilities to get her help.

A% furcher evidence of the malice that he possessed
at the time of this incident, look at his reaction to the
detective whnen they finally told Brian -- or Lthe defendant,
I'm sorry, that she passed. There's a leng bout of fake
¢rying. Na actual tesrs, no runny nose, no nothing. Then he
says, can I have some more coffee, please?

Tnraugheut the course of that interview, he only
asked how she was two to three times. He never shed any
tears. He trashed her throughout the entire interview. All
he cared about was making sure they knew about her mental
health histozry, her madical eonditions that implied she's
somehow unclean, his plight that he suffered after she sant
him to prison.

And then, he never telis the detective what
happened. 1f this was an accident, if this was self-dafense,
why not come cut and give the full story? He never does. And
the bits and pigces he does give are inconsistent. At some
point, the detective tells him, well, did she stab herself, or
was there a struggle over the knife? He never gives an
ansSwer.

Ladies and gentlemen, the State submits to you that
the malice in this case is exhibited by the defendant's
conduct hefore, during, and after Victoria Whitmarsh sufferaed

that stab wound on November Sth of 2008
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If you find that there was malice, that negates a
claim of self-defense. You have two instructions., I beliove
it's instruction number 11 and instruction number 14 on self-
defense. They tell you that, to benefit from a claim of self-
defense, you have to have acted solely based on your fears;
not with malice. And malice is contradictory to an accident.

S0, at this point, the State's submitted evidence of
second degree murder, an intentional killing with malice
afcrethought. The only issue left is, was & deadly weapon
used? Obviously, there was a deadly weapon used. The knife
killed Vietoria Whitmarsh. It's an eight-inch kitchen knife.

5S¢, when you go back to the jury room and you begin
your deliberations, the State is going to ask that on that
verdict form, you mark the box "Guilty of murder of the secand
degree, with use of a deadly wedpon." Thank you,

THE COURT: Thank you very much. Let's just take a
ten-minute recess, and then ¥ou can get ready, Mr, O'Keefea.

And don't converse among yourselves, or anyons else,
ocn any subject connected with the trial; read, watch, or
iisten to any report or commentary on the trial, by any person
connected with the trial, or any medium of informatian,
including, without limitation, newspapers, ctelevision, radio.
Bon't form or express any opinion on the trial until the cause
is finally submitted to you.

We'll take ten minutes., Then we'll come back, and
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hear Mr. O'Keefe, and probably hear Mr, Lalli, =all Tight?
Thank you.
THE MARSHAL: All rise for the jury.
{Qutside the presence of the dury panel}
THE CCURT: All right. We'll take ten minutes then,
and come back. BAll right? Thank you,
MR. LALLI: Thank you.
{Court recessed at 10:04 a.m. uwuntil 10:17 p.m.}
{Cutside the presence of the jury panel)
THE MARSHAL: BAll rise for the jury.
(Within the presence of the jury panel}
THE MARSHAL: Ready, Judge. Department 17 back in
session. Please be seated. €ome to order,
THE COURT: Parties, stipulate to the presence of
the Jury?
MR. LALLI: Yes, Your Honor.
ME. O'KEEFE: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: ALl right. Mr, O'Keefe, your argument.
MR. C'EEEFE: Thank you, Your Honor.
{Pause in the proceedings)
THE COURT: ©h, we're missing one.
MR. LALLI: (Inaudible]) stipulating.
THE COURT: Yeah. Withdraw the stipulation.
ME. LALLI: Withdraw the stipulation.

THE CQURT: Withdraw that.
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{Pause in the proceedings)

THE MARSHAL: As you were.

THE COURT: Now, dao the parties stipulate to the
presence of tha jury?

MR. LALLI: Wow I stipulate, Your Honor.

MR. O'KEEFE: Yes, I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr., Q'Keefe. And proceed.

MR, O'KEEFE: Thank you, Your Honor.

DEFENSE'S CLOSING ARGUMENT

MR. Q'KEEFE: Wow. I want to try to keep it simple,
folks, without breaking down, showing any emotion. I'm so
tired -- beyond tired. You can oanly imagine, I'm sure.

Also, T want to stare out, if i may =- reglily
briefly, I want to thank Mr. Maningo for all his assistance
ha's done, i had taken over the case for personal reasons,
folks. It was nothing of his doing.

In actuality, too, I understand exactly —- and I
appreciate the State's professionalism. And I understand they
have a job to do, and I hold nothing agsinst them. My whole
battle has been, just present all the facts, and let the Jury
decide. I understand if they feel a crime's been tommitted.
It's their duty to charge sameone. But at the same time, it's
the right of a defepndant ta ke heard,

This is hard. 1If at any time, I've offended any of

you, please forglve me, sincerely. Also, quickly, I want to
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thank the Judge. He's been very gracious, and helpful, and
vnderstanding. So, with all that said, I'il be gquick. And
just let me state some things, and let you decide and seg,
folks.

November 5th of 2008 was definitely a tragedy,
folks, A tragedy did occur, you know. A historical event
happened that day, too. President Obama was elected. We all
know that. We watched it together, me and V. Stayed up until
about 1:30 November 5th, drinking wine. She just had her
birthday two days before. I asked her to g0 to bed. I wanted
her to take 2 break.

MR. LALLI: 1I'm sorry, Your Honor. I'm goeing to
have to interpose an objection. The defendant is arguing
facts that are not in the record.

THE COURT: Well, with that understanding, I'm sure
Mr. CU'Keefe will keep it that way, but I'm going to let him
proceed a8 litrle on this.

MR. O'HKEEFE: Thank you, Your Honor.

I explained te the detectives in the interview
clearly that day, Viecteria did go over to Vons and get wine.
She got up late that day. I even showed —- you've seen, the
detective stipulaced: I had a whole list of phone calls I had
mada that day. One of the calls was a prospects of a job. I
even told the detective, you know, it was celsbration. You

know,
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She was very depressed. She was wery, wvery ill,
falks. And I accepted her the way she was, the hep C and
everything. & lot of people were leery of that.

You know, Lhe State's basing their case, folks, as
the detective admitted yesterday, on a voluntary statement
that he took when I was in extreme intoxication. The
detective admitted that he's trained to try to get wyou to
admit things, which I npever, ever admitted,

And he admicted at the end, you heszd it yourselves
-— and lock at the video the very end. He even says, I'm
going to write it the way I feel, because he couldn't get me
to say what he wanted me to say. BAnd he even admitted that if
You just say what he wants you to say one time, that's the
story for sure,

I [inauciblel} over, and I da believe that there was
2 big break in between. B&And this tape's been edited to death.
There is things that you've never even seen. You know,

Even --

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, I object. The -- it is true
that the tape was edited, That was with the -- at the urging
of both parties, with the acguiescence of the Court. It is
improper for the defendant to suggest that the State edited
anything out of that statement.

THE COURT: OQkay. That's what my understand is

dlse. 59, the jury will understand that. Procesd, HMr.
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O'Keefe.

MR. O'KEEFE: Okay. I'll move on. Okay. I'1ll try
it a different way then, if the S5tate's geing to proceed that
way constantly.

Folks, we went out that day to Paris. I told them
over and over. The State wants tg proceed on this case on
malice aforethought, an ill will, hatred murder. Malice is
i1l will. They're trying to imply -- imply means they're
suggesting simply, 11l will. Cheryl Morris testified
yesterday, folks, you heard her, that on Father's Day of 2008,
Victoria was searching me out everywhere.

Wow, also, they kept bringing up on the video thar I
said, “"the bitch.” Excuse me, folks, but that's what was
said. I said that my friends said I should stay away from the
biteh. Watch that part. T wasn't calling her a bitch. My
friends say, that crazy bikch, you should stay away from her.
They knew she was ill, mentally ill, extremely -~ 3 host of
mental illnessas. Catch that part, folks. It wasn't me
personally calling her. I said in the video, "my friends.® I
wanted fo point that out, because I caught that this merning.

I didn't want to kill V. The S5tate hasn't prover
that I stabbed V. Folks, who would want to get a knife and
stab somecne if you know that they had hep C, and get it all
over you? The cops even testified, they were scared to death.

They found eut possible HIV, hep C. Man, they really didn't
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wani to really come in and help, I felt. T kept screaming,
come in; not, get out.

There's so many things, so I've got to go slow, and
a little bit at a time here, and get this right. Cheryl
Morris testified on Father’s Day that I got a phone cal. It
was V searching me out. But I wanted to kill her?

In the videg -- also brings me to ancther peint.
Yeah, I did have t& change the course of my life, folks. 40
years-old, and I finally get in trouble with someocne that, you
now, 1 fall for. There was nc -- hey, that's part of Lthe
qame, you know. I fell in lowve the way she was. Things
happen. We 21} make -- you know, I moved on. It didn't
matter to me. You know, and I became very successful. I was
making good money. I was happy.

And actually, I was happy she contacted me. Cheryl
wasn't happy with that. She felt she got Xicked to the curb.
I was honest with her though. She even testified when I told
her, I couldn't live with myself, I thought it was wrong.
Took two or three hours, hut I said, ney, you know what, T
don't feel -- I got to tell you the truth. Thar was Victoria,
Boy, she went ballistic. but anyway, that's neither here or
there.

My point being is, folks, they want to proceed on
the fact that I wanted to pay back and kxill her. Folks, I'm

Forry. I'm an alcoholic. I'm not a killer.
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Let's talk abeut these wounds., Think about the
detective here, folks, There was so much evidence that he
could have collected; and he admitted to that vesterday, He's
trained. He admirred, folks, i'wm trained to get you to spill
your beans. Boy, you know, 1l've alwavs known, a drunk tells
the truth right off the bat. Not only that, a drunk's really
ioud.

You can't forget also, the neighbors said, there was
no shouting, there was no yelling. They admitted straight out
that they heard a temper fit geing on. We all know her
bipolar {sic}. Yau heard the Judge read yesterday to YOl
Her temper fits or anger fits, anger —- she was in there up to
no good, 3he was going to do something. I happened to walk
in an it.

You'll see the car. I told them to get the video
from Paris te see when we left. They could have seen it. Got
in the seac, laid it back, She was mad. She wanted to eat.
Pulled up to the apartment, slams the doot. We're here,
whatever, goes up.

Now, you got to remember, they're taking this
statement from a man that's under stress and extremsly drunk,
and T didn't know what was going on, I didn't want to throw
her under the bus at the same time, folks. Becazuse i didn't
stab her, and I didn't know what the hell was going on. They

want te put it l1ike that T tried to claim or say that she
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stabhed herself.

No. I told them over and over, I was trying to grab
the knife; I got cut multiple times. And ! c¢couldn't get it.
I was too drunk, too slow. After swinging my jacket, I let it
ge, and I tried to grab her, and I pushed her back on the bed.
I'm right-handed, folks. She's right-handed. The sharpness
of the blade goes back. 3It's an impossibility. They don't
want to admit that when I pushed her back, and she fell down
on the bed, it went in., I didn't even know.

The detective clearly knew that they have a policy

that -- they should have, in a felony case, possible alleged
homicide, he had a duty. He could have -- he should have took
my Dlood. They said the medics tested my -- they rtased me,

had me on the porch. They checked the tasing. They could
have took my bleoed, breath right there on the spot, and shared
it,

Hot only at the alleged crime scene; when they took
me down to the station and they did all the other tests. Boy,
Lhey wanted to swab me, fingerprint me, they wanted to
photograph me, fingers. They did all other tests, but they
didn’t do the c¢ritical test. Even when they broughs me to the
jail and booked me, they put me in the psycho ward -- mental
ward; detox. They didn't want to tell me that. Thay didn*t
want te btell me that they actually knew. They wanted to lie

about it.
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They have & nurse gn duty here 24 hours a day, 7
days a week at CCDC, and they're supposed to draw your bloeod.
Folks, common sense., If they would have took my blood draw
and sean, Victoria at the time of the desth was a 2d; thres
times at the time of death when they did the autopsy. They
say alcohol evaporates so much per hour. They didn't do the
autepsy fer a day and-a-half -- until a day and-a-half later.
She would have been .3 something, probably. And I was way
more than her, Way more,

My point being is, if they would have tgok -- and
got a definitive proof of my alcshol stapnding, it would have
proved a let of things. Sloppiness, motor skills, why I
couldn't get the knife. These statements, ] was saying
things. I was confused. But boy, as soon as they got it,
boy, they were holding to it: ng, that's what you said.

And these calls on the 9-11. Again, 1711 allege
right now, because & proper witness wasn't called, they've got
proof right now of a 9-11 ¢all that they never let Flay,

MR. LALLI: I'm geing to object, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Objecticn sustainaed.

ME. LALLI: That's not what the 9-11 eall sayes,

THE COURT: Objection sustained. Go onto something
else,

MR. G'KEEFE: This whole case has been about

collection of evidence that they learn how to collect what
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they want, when they want it. They didn't go to Yons and get

the receipt to prove that the wine -- and they -- we had =z
Vons card. They could have got that. I told them over =-- 9o
to Vons, get the -- they would have seen the time of day.

Folks, they didn't go toe Paris. I know from a
previous incident, and I'll ger to that latex, that they only
had the video -- it oniy lasts for four days, and they rewrits
cver it. The casinos. All the footage they've get is secure
for four days.

I kept saying, get -- please —— take -- I mean, if
you notice, maybe I was being -- but I was under a lot of
stress. 2And I kept trying to say I was scared to death
because I went through a sitvation, and I know how the palice
are. They don't want to hear the truth. You're here, you're
convicted, or take a deal. HNo deals. Because for me, death,
ar I walk out.

He didno't get the Vonaz. He didn't take proper
photagraphs. He admitted, yeah, I could have tock a little
more. Because, think about this, folks. It wasn't a
stabbing. It was a partial puncture, The blade was eight
inches. The handle was another four. 12 inches. I'm
right-handed. 1If I would have stabhed her, it would have beean
on the other side of the body, and It would have been a
different angle of the sharpness.

Think about it. If 1 would have stabbed her -- and
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they even testified, it didn't hit any cartilage or bone,
falks. And if 1 had ill will, hatred, it would have gone all
the way in. I wouldn't need a knife.

They don't want to admit that the neighbor did,
regardless of what they say, 15 minutes later, seen me coms up
the stairs. No blood on me, no weapon, no nothing. And I was
drunk and tired. T was up the night before, We watched -~ I
was up until 4:00 in the morning watching the election, the
final results. 4:00 in the morning on Novembey Sth., I laid
down on the couch for a couple hours. She came out. The day
started. Phone calls all day. 1 showed Ehat.

She went t¢ Vons while I was finishing. Talked to
the -- a job prospect. I told them that. I was happy. ZEhe
just had her birthday. She was down. She got news from her
sister she was denied on her SSI for the third time. And
yeah, finally, maybe she'd get approved. But you know, she
was hurting for money. 3She had no job. She had ncthing. HNg
car.

She was concerned, what are you going te —- what am
I going to do next woek? 1 hate this place. This is what it
was come down -- I hate this ares. What are you going to do
being gone, you work &, 7 days a week -- and I would have been
working at the Hard Rock, seven days a week, leng-term.

Felks, you just don't stab somehody once if you've

got 1ll will, hatred. &and it wasn't even a stab, it was a
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partial puncture. Wrong side of the body; the pnysical
evidence shows it. HNo prints on that knife. You heard
Betective Guenther, the specialist, 34 years. He said he
threw that knife ynder the kitchen sink, I think he said;
every test possibkble.

That knife was not wiped off. And it never moved.

I dign't care about the knife. If I stabbed her, den't you
think you would hide it? Don't you think you would run out of
the place? I stayed right there. Cookie's testimony changed
all the priors. He came in, and I was saying, come help ma.
The light switeh; my blood on it.

I'm not disputing, I'm not disputing one minute
thet that's not my blood or her blood, and the facts that it
Wwas me and her. 1I'm disputing that phere's 2 difference hers.
They have to prove that 1 stabbed her. I didn't stab her.

I'm -~ it's the total wreng area. It's not even a full stab,
four and-a-quarter inches. It's ludicreus.

The cops even admit themsslves this whole standaff,
9-11 deal. Hostage standeff, negotiations, they turned it
into; and we stacked on this, and the State wants [inavndible],
and you see this little cizcle, and they move here; come on.
Move along with it. Let's get to the facts. I'm in there
saying, cocme in and help me. I'm extremely drunk. They
announee it on the 9-11. They already knew I was.

They should have been taking my blood right away and
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showing nit. They didn't want to, because it would have
ruined the voluntary statement legally. If it would have came
back & .3 something, it would have been thrown ocut the door.
They're bagsing their whole rase on the viden.

ME. LALEI: 1I'm going tec cbject, Your Horor. That's
an improper standard.

THE COURT: All right. Move anto something else,

MR. O'KEEFE: We know this for a fact, folks., 7T was
in the car. T can't dispute what they heard. 1 won't even
bEegin to try.

You will see -- watch thet video. Watch it multiple
times you need, please. I tell them the middle of rhe video
somewhere -- I tell the cop, no, wait, 2-11 —— I meant I was
calling, 1 was screaming. Yeah, boom, boam, boom; I was
trying to explain the detail after Cookie ran in, and al: --
everything was golng on.

But the State wanted to allege that I'm saying
during the night, I got off the -- I don't even know what she
was saying. I don't even know what case she was calking
about. I walk in, and it happened that guick, folks. Ir
happened so fast, my head's still spinning. I knew she was a
cutter, and I knew she had a knife and she was in there.

When the police checked out my place, they found no
weapons, no guns, no drugs, no nothing that a pgsrmal criminal

would truly have. They found nothing like that. The only
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knives -- they had noe combat -— and I had no military kaives,
no nething. The only knives that they found -- or knife they

found, was her knife. The same knife she used Lo use. Those
were her knives. Those weren't mins. 10:31:17+

5he had no defensive wounds. They said that
normally, a person weould ke (inaudible]. It's [inaudgible’.
There i3 no scrapings under her nails; they told that.

State's only going on what they heard from the video
and the neighbers. But again, the neighbors keep saying over
and over, folks, there was no arguing, there was no fighting,
the docr was wide open. The TV wasn't even on, the radias.
There was -- why would a [inaudible} -- a grunk is not guiet.
He can't think (inaudible] the knife right where it was, and
then try to hide it. I didn't wipe it. My prints are on it.

New, imagine this. One puncture wound on the wrong
side of the body, but they want to say that I stabbed her, and
my hand slipped off. Okay., If there's cne puncture wound,
how did I geb two ceis? That is totally inconsistent.
Physical, there's no way (sic}. I think you're smart encugh
to see Lhat.

Now, if I had stsbbed her multiple times, it would
have -- maybe one here, and then one here, There was only one
Puncture, and she had that knife in her hand. Right-handed,
too. And when she went down, her arms are so flexible ——

mine, I can't even {inaudible]|. But they don't want te talk
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sbovk that. They didn't want to ger proper to show. I they
would have shown the [inaudible] on my finger [inaudible]
thumb, it's 3 physical impessibility, and the detective was
smartc enocugh ta kpow that.

The blood, breath is so critical, because it truly
aids a lot in my defense. But at the same time, it Was just
simply wrong to get drunk, folks. I'm an alesholic: not a
killer.

[Inaudikle) hepatitis € (inaudible). why
l[inavdible] a knife if you wanted to kill somegne? I mean, if
I wanted to kill her, it jus: dossn't make sénse, why would I
Wwalt until that day? It doesn't -— and again, you've got o
really remember, she located -- was looking for me. BAnd I
accepted her the way she was. 1 loved her the way she was.

It didpn't —— I puk myself at risk.

I can't explain, as T said, what was going on in my
mind, folks. I'm net even going toe try to say. I just urge
you to watch the video. Second degree malice murder, folks.
5tate has to prove beyond a reasaonable doubt that I did the
act, that 1 got the knife. There’s no prints, They said it's
not wiped.

And another {inaudible] on that knife is, don't you
think there would be more of my blood if I was helding it just
[inavdible] things? [Inaudible] so much testimony [inaudible]

lictle spot on the handle or whatever., If I'm holding that
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knife, and had that linaudible) my fingers were [inaudible]
from trying to grab the linaudible]. It doesn't make sense at
all.

MNow, again the temper tantrum, that's what she did
when she was [inaudible]. S$he admitted it. It was her
[inandible}, and I can understand it., You knpw, folks, an
intentional stabbing.

2o, the State is claiming that I got a knife, and I
just walked in, and I just decided to stab her. And I teld
you before, I think, on day one, to go home and lay on the bed
[inaudible], she's laying |inaudible] imagine this, folks.

And 3f [inaudible], there's ne way, if she's laying on her
stomach, her right side’s going to be there. If 1 stabbed

her, it would ba on this side.

Tt the blade's going to ga -~ if she's laying on her
back, it's the same -- there's no way. It's a —— there's no
-— it doesn't even -- 1t's ludicrous. But second degree

malice morder is T had i1l will, spite, knowledge.,

I knew [inaudible] that there's elements ta it. The
4act, the unlawfulness, the knowledge, and the intent.
Conscicus disregard for it, EKEnowing thac if I stabbed her, I
knew for a fact if she was going to die, and I was conscious
and aware of that,

And I was .3, 4. That's another reason why they

didn't want e get it. There was no stabixing. T didn't even
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have the knife, folks. Their whole 3T0ry is based on -— it's
tontally ridiculous, felks., It's a vragedy, that's for sure.
Their family has been through hell, and so has mine.

The State wants a V for victory for when they treat
it like a sporting event. V is for Victoria, folks, Thank
you,

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. O'Keefe. Mr. Lalli, your
rebuttal argument, please.

MR. LALLI: Thank you.

STATE'S REBUTTAL CLOSING ARGUMENT

MR. LALLI: Ewverything we know about domestic
viplence is that it is about power, and it's about controlling
pecple. And for years, Brian O'Keefe exercised that power
over Victoria Wnitmarsh, and he controlled her. He controlled
her.

I want Lo address some of the things that the
defendant has said. He ended with discussing the elements of
second degree murder. He said that there are four of them,
Second deqree murder is extremely a simple crime to
understand. This is neot 2 first degree murder the State is
alleging. It's not a deliberate, where Lhere's a deliberation
in mind. We're not [inaudible] prove premeditation, or
planning.

A second degree murder is a spur of the moment

killing. And there are two elements involved. Judge
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Bonaventure tLold us all in instruction number 4. Murder of
the second degree is the unlawful killing of a human being:; if
somebody kills somecne else. Malice aforethaught, either
expressed or implied.

Expressed malice is a fancy way of saying, YO
intend to kill the persen. I intend to kill you, ard that's
why I stabbed you, and you died. That's expressed malice.
That's second degres murder.

Implied malice is even broader. There doesn't have
te ke, or theore isn't an intent to kiil, necessaxily. It
could just be, I want te stahb you. I don't want te kill you,
I want to stak you, but the act is so reckless that I should
have krnown that death could result.

3o, I just want to stab you because I'm mad at you,
because I'm angry with you, because it's been so MENY years
and I'm tired of hearing your mouth, and I'm tired of hearing
about your problems, and I'm tirsd of you complaining. And
maybe I don't want %to kill yeu, but I want ta stab you, and
that person dies. That is second degree murder.

And it is that type of murder that -- eithar
expressed malice, because I think there is evidence of an
intention to kill; or implied malice. It doesn't matter what
you find, it is still second degree murder irn the State of

Nevada.

The defendant has talked a lot about intoxication
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during this trisl. He talked to youo abeut it in jury
selection; ls it important that the palice collect all the
evidence that's pcssible? He talked about it during the
course of thne trial, and he alse talked to you about it ip his
closing argument.

Now, 1If Metro was trying to cover up the fact that
Brian O'Keefe was intoxicated on tha day that he kilied
Victoria Whitmarsh, they sure did a bad job. If their intent
waz to hide it from you, or to hide it from anybody who was
looking at this case, shame on them, because they didn't
gccomplish the miszsion.

They've identified witnesses who came into this
courtroon and told you, I saw Brian C'Keefe on the day of the
murder, ard he was intoxicated. He was very drunk. It's in
Metro's CAD printout; their event printout. T think the
number is 408, or "he was very 408." The defendant had said
that numerous times, If they are trying to hide the fsct tha-
Briazp O'Keefe was intoxicated on the day that this crime had
{sicl, T guess they forgot to cross that pert out of the CAD
Feoort,

The police officers who responded to the scene, they
told you that he was intoxicated, Marty Wildemann, the
investigating detective, the homicide detective; he told yvou
the defendant was intcxicated. And if they were trying te

hide that fact, why did they videotape his interview with him,
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where it is abundantly clear that he's intoxicated? And I
would suggest Lo you, it is perhaps the best esvidence of his
intoxication.

We see now the intoxication affected him, how it
manifested himself. He was a sloppy, mean, manipulative drunk
oh that video. That's what is shows. And if he is & chronic
alcoholie, he could very well have had a blood alechol level
af .30¢; or if he was a guy who hardly drank at ail, his blood
aleohol level could have been a .08, and he would have acted
the same way. The number itself makes no difference.

And the fact of the matter is that Metro doesn't do
it. Detective Wildemann has never done a blood draw. The
defendant was certainly able to communicate during the course
of the interview.

But there's ancther reason why the defendant's blood
alcohel level is of absolutely no import to this casa. He
told you that it's absclutely eritical to his defense. Well,
Judge Bonaventure has told you in the instructions that it's
not. Aand T would just read for you what Judge Bonaventure
teils all of us in instruction number 16. And it talks abou:
voluntary intoxication.

Voluntary intoxication just meadns, I decided te have
some drinks, or I decided to get high on my own. Somebody
didn't force me to drink some beer, you know, pour some

alcohel down my throat. So, it wasn't —- we're not talking
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about a force situation, and that's not what cccurred here.
The defendant has told you that %e drinks. He's an alcchalic.
50, it's voluntary intoxication. That's what we're talking
about .

But what instruction number 16 says 1s that, "No act
committed while a person, while in the state of vgluntary
intexicakion, shall be deemed less criminal by reason Gf his
condition." HWe talked a little bit about it in voir dire.

You know, Ms. Mercer and myself asked some of you, do you
think being under the influence should be an excuse for a
crime?

And I don't think there’s one person who said thar
it should. &All of you who we asked that gquestion to said,
yeah, I don't think it should be a defense. I den't think it
should be an excuse. Well, guess what. The law in the State
of Nevada is that it's net an excuse. It doesn’'t matter. The
defendant's level of intoxication in this case is irrelevant.
Judge Bonaventure is telling you that in instruction number
16.

Just to clarify one point that the defendant did
say. WVictoria's blood was approximately 2.4 (sic), and that's
my reccllection of blood it was., Certainly, your recollecticn
will control. Her blood alcohol was .24 at the time of death.
Dr. Dutra, the pathalogist whe testified for you, said that

the body doesn't bruise after death. You can't bruise,
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because the body's not working anymore, basically.

Well, the same thing applies to your blood alecohel
level. Upon your death, your body loses the gbility to
metabolize alecchol. And the hlood alcohol level that yor have
2t your death was yaur blood slcchol level when you died. 5o,
Victoria's blood aleohal was no higher than the 2.4 that it
was at her death,

Wnsn he stood before you and delivered his closing
argument, Lhe defendant told you numerous times, I accepted
Victoria the way that she was. I accepted her. 1T didn't want
te throw her under the bus in any way. &And perhaps that's why
he didn't tell Detective Wildemann on the day of the murder
what he's kind of suggesting happened row, that she fell on 4
knife.

Reslly, he accepted her the way that she was.

That's really interesting. It is so very telling when you
watch his interview how the defendant interacted with the
woman in the room, Detective Kyger; how he referred to her as,
“young lady, young lady."

He wasn't sliprping. He was doing that on purpose.
He was attempting to antagonize her, degrade her; whatever it
w2s. But it shows you how he feels about women. "Write this
down," commanding her, directing her. *“Look into this. "

Sc much so, that at pne point, Detective Wildemarn

has to say, hey, stap it; knock it aff. And you're talking
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about a strong woman. You're talking akout a homicide —- &
Female homicide detective. You think she's not tough, hanging
out with a sguad of mostly male homicide detectives, and the
defendant is treating her that way, imagine how he treated
Victoria.

And think about it, because there's evidence of How
he perceived her in this cage. In the law, there is this
concept cailed chattel. And chattel is something that wou
own. It's some non-resl property that you own. Sao,
everything I own is my chattel. That's how he treated
Victoria.

Lo you remember what happened when the police
officer finally enter that room where Victoria is, and he is
lying next to her, or ovar her? He doesn't say, hey, help
her, she's bleeding out. Bey, ¥you know, give her a hand.
What does he say? Don't look at her. Don't look at her.
This is mine. This is my lady. This is that power and
control that we see in domestic violence,

And twice during the interview with the police, the
defendant is confronted with this idea that Victoris could be
dead. One of those, he brings up himself, when he's
describing this hep € that she has.

And is it possible to switch over to the -- ta the
computer? Qh, 1'm sorry. Can we go to counsel table?

THE CLERK: &ll} rtight.
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ME. LALLI: Thank you.
{Portion of taped interview of Brian 0'Keefe played)
MR. LALLI: "“She's sick, she's going to die.™ Hey,

today's Toesday, and my car's in the shop, and everything
else. That's how he's talking about this woman he supposedly
loves, that's got this condition where she's going ta die.
That's how he really feels about her?

Remember, if you will, his reactien to when
Derective Wildemann tells him that Victoria is in fact dead,
this woman that he loves, that he has acocepted.

{Portion of taped interview of Brian O'Keefe played)}

MR. LALLI: "Can I have some coffee?” Hey, this
waman you lave so much, she just died. Can I have some
coffee, please? That's how you'd expect somebody who really
accepted Victoria ~- that's how you sxpect them to reack.

In his argument today, he said, weli, I didn't
really want to tell the police what happened because 1 never
wanted to throw Victorisa under the bus, Beally?

Well, here's just a sampling of some of the things
Lthat he said about Victoriz inm that interview. She's the Bt
who said she wanted to kill herself. I got out of prison, and
she called me. She went to Vons to get wine, and used my
cards., The Union was giving him cards tc be able o use for
food, because he was ocut of work.

She tried to kill me. Two nights age, she got real
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mad., Victoriaz accused me of being jealouns. She stabbed
herself, and she did a lot more than that. He was sure
threwing Victoria under the bus in that interview.

There were, during the coucse of this trial,
grguably two theories that were advanced by the defendant, and
they tend to be moving targets. BDuring the course of the
interview, he says at least twice, Victoria attacksd me. 5o,
back on rhe day of the crime, I guess one of the defenses was
self-defense. Judge Bonaventure instructs you on self-
defense. That's not the defendant's theory, so I would tell
you to just disregard all ¢f that. Thnis isn't a self-defense
case,

We heard an awful lot about suicide. But now, today
in his c¢lesing argument, the defendant seems to admit that
Wictoria did not kill herself. e said that. How, it's
simply, it was thils accident, that somehow she fell on the
knife. But I want to talk briefly about suicide and accident.

But more importantly, I want to talk to you about
where this evidence comes from. Becasuse any evidence of
suicide on that day, or accident, comes from one source; and
that source is the defendant. 5o, to accept thosse, to embrace
these, you have to believe that Mr. O'Keefe was truthful
during that interview.

And 1 would just remind youw that nothing he has said

in this courtroom is evidence. Statements of counsel, or
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questicns, or statements of people who represent themselves,
is not evidence. It is not evidence. That is his version of
what occurred on that day.

Well, first of all, what are his motivations? Who's
on trigl here today? Well, Mr. O'Keefe's on traal. And
certainly, you have to understand his motivation in presenting
his defense to you inm doing that. But it is so incredibly
telling, this story of this accidentsl death, how somehow she
fell down on a knife, is not what he told the police. Because
he is asked very pointed guestions routinely and repeatedly
through that interview,

And what does he tell Detective Wildemann? I dan't
know how she got stabbed. I don't know what happened in the
apartment. I don't kaow how I got the cut on my hand. I
doﬁ‘t know how she got covered with bleood. And he's very
strategic in the informatzon that he's willing te provide. He
wants to talk about the Paris. Well, what does Parias have to
do with that murder?

And he's angry, still tg this day, st the palice,
because they didn't go to Paris and get that video. The vides
of what; him drinking at Paris? He's angry that they didn't
ge to the Vons. Whe cares about the Vons? Tt has absnlutely
o relevance to this casa.

This case is about what happened in that apartment.

They want to know -- he wants to know, you know, hey, I was
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calling the Union all day. Who cares? Who cares? Tell us
about what heppensd with that knife. That was femething he
was unwilling to do on the night of this murder.

4ll of the evidence that you have seen repudiates
the ideas of accident and suicide. We admitted through a
stipulation Viclhoria's psychiatric records. Well, why did we
do that? Well, that's part of who Victoria was. That's who
Victoria was. She was a tortured person. She was a cutter.
When she would be depressed, she would cut herself.

1f you know anything about depression, it's what
those who suffer from that illness do. It releases serotonin,
as it brings comfort to them. We know that Victoria was not
suffering from depression at that time. She was taking heg
medications. She was taking her Effexor. BAnd Dr. Dutra told
you that., He told you what Effexer is. Effexor is an
antidepressant. It was found in Victoria's blood ar the time
of her death. She was stable al Lhe time.

During his argument to you, the defendant said, you
know, on this particular day, Victoria was up to no good; and
he was -- kind of made that motion to you that maybhe she was
slicing herself.

Fortupnately, there are photographs of almost her
entire body. And I'd ask you to look at them. You see her
wrists. I'm showing you State's Exhibit number B8 and State's

Exhibit 93. She's not cutting herself. She's not cutting her
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wrists. T den't know why he said that to you. There's oo
evidence af that. She was not suicidal on this day.

The importance cf Victoria's psychiatric history is
that it shows us how vulnerable she was. You heard from
Elynne Greene, who was the domestic violence expert who
testified in the early part of this trial. &and she tzlked
about those victims of domestic violence; those people who are
caugnt in the cycle of violenze. They are wulnerable pecple.
They are pecple with low self-esteems. They are people with
problems. . She described for you Victoria Whitmarsh. She was
the perfect victim for thia defendart.

Was this a suicide? WMo, and the defendarnt is even
telling you that teoday in his closing argumert. What about
accident? Accident is interesting. If I met you for the
first time today, and we were friends, and we were having a
conversation, and you said, hey, Chris, what are you deing
next week? And I said, I'm trving a murder case, and it was a
stebbing case. And you said, rezlly? What's the -- what's
the defense? &And I sszid, the defense is that the victim fell
on the knife and died: you'd laugh at me. 1 m2an, you'd
chuckle,

And that first instinectual reaction is really an
appropriate gne, because it's ridiculous. It's ludicrous. It
makes absolutely no sense at 2ll, but yet, that's the defense

that the defendant is bringing you today; she fell on the
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knife.

Gr. Dutra, in response to some very thought ful
questions from the jury -- it wasn't anything that I had asked
him, put some very thoughtful guestions from the jury, he was
asked about that. W#hat happens -- if this was an accidental
-- somebody fell on this knife, would we gipect the type of
wound track that we had? And Dr. Dutra said, no, ¥yau
wouldn't.

And during the course of this autopsy -- I apologize
Zor the photo, but it is so telling as to the wound antle.
This is State's Exhibit number 130. No, you're not goeing Lo
have that type of an angle, &and more impertantly, you'ze not
going to have that clean, singular sort of wound track in
Victoria's bedy. It's going to be jaaged, there's going to be
irregularities in it.

And Dr. DuLra's an interesting quy. He's been a
doctor since the 1970's. Jle was trained at USC. He has
expartise in forensic pathology. He's worked at hospitals.
Dr. Dutra's telling you, there's ne way this is an accident.
And in fact, "By virtue of me saying this is a homicide, I
have ruled out that it was an accident." And not in response
to anything that the State asked him, because the defendant
wanted to talk about Dr. Benjamin, who was the docter who
actually did the zutopsy.

She agreed with that, because it was Dz, Benjamin's
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1] cpinion that this was a homicide; not an accidental death.

2] But think of the coincidences, that this woman iust happened
3| te fall on this knife, the same day that the defendant was in
4| an argument with his girlfriend.

& On that same day that they're fighring sbout -- who
6| knows what? Arguing about how much money he had spent at the
7| =— or gambled at the Paris, just happens to be coincidentally
8| on that same day she fell on a knife. And they were arquing
21 about his gambling at the Paris that night. He tells us that
18] in the interview.

11 (Portion of taped interview of Brian O'Keefe played)

12 MR. LALLI: "Why did you spend do much monay at

13| Paris?" They were arguing on this day. Just sg happens that
14| she fel) on that knife the same day. Their relationship was
15| strained at this period of time. There's one bed in this

16| house, but there's also a bed made up oukbt on the couch, where
17| he told you he was sleeping.

18 I'm showing you State's Exhibit number 5. They

19| weren't sleeping together. This waso't a loving couple at

20| this time. He's out, sleeping on the couch. wWhat a

21| coincidence, during this time in their relationship, she fell
22| on a knife,

23 Isn't it a coincidence that she fell on this knife
24| just minutes after Johnny Hathcox -— I'm sorry, Jimmy Hatheoox,

25| sees the defendant with that loak on his face, and then hears

RQUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

NO3583




49

1| that disturbance, and thinks to himself, wow, I wonder if he's

2| beating the crap out of h“er. What a coincidence that she fell
3| on the knife at the same time.
4 What a colincidence that she fell on a2 knife the zame

51 day she had all of that blunt forece btrauma on her body. The
6( injury en her he=ad, which Dr. Dutra told you was fresh. The
7| grabbing wound on her arm, which Dr. Dutra told you was fresh,
8| The bruise on the upper part of her arm, which Dr. Dutra toid
91 you was fresh, The bruises on her chest, which Dr, Dutra teld
10| you were fresh. The bruise on the side of her body, which Dr.
11| Ducra told you was frezh.
12 The injuries te her back and buttocks, which Dr.
13) Durra told you were fresh. Tha injury on the side of her leg,
141 which Dr, Dutra told you were fresh. Isn't it a coincidence
13| that the same day she was subjected to this unthinkable
J 16| beating that was heard in the apartment below, and was heard
17| by Mr. Hathcox next-door -- isn't it a coincidence that on
18 ) that same day, when no one was in that apartment except the
19 defendant, she happened to fall on a knife?
I 20 Who stabbed whom? And the defendant says, hey, my

21| fingerprints aren't on the knife. I didn't handle it. I

22| guess he fargot about the DNA evidence, that clearly has his
23| blood on the handle, There's no doubt about that. Take the
pepulation of the earth, and multiply it by 100. There's only

one perscn in that group whose bloed that could be, and it's
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Brian O'Keefe. It's on the handle of the knife.

And Forensic Zcientist Bas was vary clever in how
she collected it. She collected a swab of blocd from the
bottom of the knife, where those cuts on his finger ware,
which is where we would expect blood to be. Who was the
person stakbbed? It was Victoria Whitmarsh., The same degree
of certainty.

His statement to Officer Hutcherson tells us what he
did to Victoria. "I swear to God, V, I didr't mean ta hurt
you." And thirk about how these statements were collecred.
Officer Hutcnersen sitting in nis patrol car, writing things
down as he's hearing them.

To understand what happened in that apartment, all
you have to do is look at the defendant's consciousness of
guilt. You know, i1f this was a suicide, there's no probilem
for him. He's not criminally on the heck. Tf this WaE an
accident, if it was truly an accident, he faces no criminal
liakility.

The only preblem for him is that this was a
malicious killing. &nd when you act in a manner counsistent af
gullt, it is suggestive of guilt. If this was a suicide or an
dccidental killing, wouldn't he have been happy to see the
police?

And Ms. Mercer did an excellent job of marshaling

that evidence for youw. That's not how a persen acts 1if he has
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nothing to hide, if he did nothing wzong. That person doesn'h
try to square-up with and fight with a neighbor, who could
come over and help. That's not what somebody who is not
guiliy coes. Feigning emotion in an interview. There's no
reason te feign emotion,

And then, there is one other thing that the
defendant says, "Let's go to the ten years," as he is sitting
in that car. Afcer he has murdersed Victoria Whitmarsh, he's
in the patrol car with Offiger Hutcherson, "Let's go do the
ten y=sars," an obvious reference to, he's going zo prisan. He
knows it. And I would submit that yeu know it, too.

Everything we know about domestic violence is that
it 1s abeout power and controlling people. Today, the
defendant has no power. That power is vested in you., And T
ask you to use that power for justice teday. Justice reguires
that he be convicted of second degree murder for killing
Victoria Whitmarsh. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much, Mr.
Laili., The clerk will swear the offirer to take charge of the
jury.

MARSHART, EWORN

THE COURT: All right, ladies and gertlemen. The
case ——

{Pause in the proceedings}

THE COURT: The case is now submitted to you, and
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cur marshal will be the officer in charge of your
deliberation. Please retire with him, and he'll shaw yau
where ta go, and he'll rtake all the exhibits. The alternate
jurors, please remain in the courtrocom.

{dury retires to deliberate at 11:10 a.m.}

(Qutside the presence of the jury pansl)

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Mikuski, is it?

ALTERMATE JUROR WC. 1: Yes.

THE COURT: You're Alternate Juror number 1. And
Beverly, you're Alternate Juror number 2. Naow, [ can eitcher
do one of two things. I could just have you hang around here
all day, and it's -- or what I could do, and which I think I'm
going te do, is I'm going ko give you the admonition. And
then T'm going to allow you to go ko the Jury commissioner,
sign yaur vouchers, and 4o home, with the understanding though
that — see, they're going te deliberate now.

Maybe scmething will happen -- not -- maybe Lhay
won't reach a verdict by tonight, then I'm going to let them
go home for the weekend. I'm not going to sequester them.

I'm going to let them go home. And then, 1'm geiryg to have
them come back about B:30, %:00 o'clock on Monday, if that
happens.

Now, if something should happen during the weekend,

very important for you, Eric, to be available. You understand

that?
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ALTERNATE JUROR NO. 1: Yes.

THE COURT: And there's no excuses. You understand?
And also, you toce, Heverly. You're Alternate Juror number 1.
S5¢, I might very well on Monday, if something happens, and it
might not, have the clerk ¢all you and say, get over here
right away, end then we're going to begin deliberation anew.
You undsrstand thac?

ALTERNATE JUROR NO. 1: Yes.

THE COURT: So, you promise me you'll be available
between B:30 and 10:00 in case I call you. You understand?

ALTERNATE JURDR WO, 1: Yes.

THE COURT: Please. BAnd you, too, okay? So, I'm
going to give you the admgnition. And once I give you the
admonition, you go to the clerk right hers, give them numbers
where you could be reached on Monday. And then, you go to the
jury commissioner, sign vour voucher, and go home. All cight?

Now, don't converse among yourselves, or anyone
else, on any subject connected with the trial; read, watch, ar
listen to any report of, or commentary on the trial, by any
person connected with the trial, or by any medium of
information, including, without limitatien, neWwspapers,
television, radio. And you are fnot to form or edpress any
opinign on any subject connected with the trial until the
cause is finally submitted to you.

30, come over here,
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THE MARSHAL: They already got their numbers. 1T
dlready got their numbers.

THE COURT: O©Oh, you already got numbers? Good.

THE MARSHAL: Y¥Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You peed to leave the badges I guess,
rrght?

THE MARSHAL: Right. Just léave ther on your chair.

THE COURT: Leave them on the chair, and yeah,

ALTEBRNATE JUROR NO. 2: Could I give & second phane
number becauze --

THE COURT: Yes, please.

ALTERNATE JUROR NO. 2: -- my cell is pot ——

THE COURT: Absclutely. I want & third one, Loo,
All right. Thank you very much. Take your hadge off, Now,
just go to the jury commissicner now.

ALTERNATE JURQR NO. 2: Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. So, they're going to be
deliberating now. I'm going to pravide lunch to them about
11:30, quarter-te-12:00. 3o, you'll have numbers -~- Mr.
Maningo, you'll have numbers where you could be reached?

And <-

MR, MANINGG: Yes, sir.

MR. LALLI: We will.

THE COURT: -- [inaudible]. Anything elss to come

before the Court before we take our recess’?
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ME. LALLI: MNot on behalf of cthe Stare.
MR. O'EEEFE: Mo, Your Honor,
THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much. We'll
be in recess.
{Court recessed at 11:14 a.m. until 1:57 p.m.)
(Qutside the presence of the jury panel)
(Fauze in the proceedings)
THE MARSHAL: All right, quys. Places, everyone.
{Pause in the proceedings}
THE MARSHAL: All rise for the jury.
{Within the presence of the jury panal)
THE MARSHARL: Department 17 is back in session.
Please be seated and come Lo order.
THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, have
you selected a foreperson?
THE FOREFERSON: Yes.
THE COURT: Who's the foreperson? Flease stand up.
Have you arrived at a verdict?
THE FOREPERSOH: VYes, we have, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Plezse hand the verdict to the marshal.
Remain standing, if you will., I'm going to talk te you again.
{Pause in the proceedings)
THE COURT: Mr. Foreman, would you please read the
verdict aloud, starting from the very top?

THE FOREPERSON: “We the jury in the above entirled
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casg find the defendant, Erian Kerry O'Heefe, as follows:
guilty of murder in the secord degree with use of a deadly
weapan." Dated this 15th day of June, 2012.

THE COURT: Thank you very much. Hand tha: back to
the marshal. Ms. Clerk, would you read the verdict aloud, and
inquire of che jury if that is their verdict? You can sit
down, gir.

THE CLER¥:; Distriet Court, Clark Count, NMNewvada.

The State of ¥Nevada, plaintiff, versus Brian ¥erry 0O'Keefe,
defendant. Case number C-250360, Department 17.

Verdict: "We the jury in the above entitled case
find the defendant, Brian Kerty O'Keefe, as follows: guilty of
murder of the second degree with use of a deadly weapon.”
Dated this 15th day of June, and signed by the jury
fareperson.

Ladies eand gentlemen of the Jury, is this your
verdict, s¢ say you one, s¢ say yau all?

THE JURY: Yes,

THE COURT: ALl right. Would any of the parkties
like the qury palleds?

Ms. MERCER: Mo, Your Eonaor.

MR. O'KEEFE: No, Your ilonor.

THE COURT: All right. In view of the fact that the
jury haz found the defendant guilty as ¢harged, we're going to

gnter that upon the minutes, I duess we have to refsr this

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

03393




13
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

57
back te the Department of Parole and Probation far a renaswed
PSI I guess. I mean, that should be the -- and any motions
¥ou want te file --

MR. Q'EKEEFE: Your Bonor, if I may just reguest
spesdy trial transcripts. If T could get those moving along.

THE COURT: Well, let's get the jury out of here
first.

MR. Q'KEEFZ: Yes, sir.

THE CLERK: Sentencing date?

THE COURT: Yeah, because the old P5I is not good
anymore. So, let's set a sentencing date in apout, I don't
know, 60 days. Yeah.

THE CLEFRK: Jugust 16éth, B8:15.

THE COURT: You know, we have an old —- ¥You know, a
little -- I'm not going o go intg #t all, but there's 3
little history. Mr. O'Keefe was found guilty a while back,
and then he appealed it, and the Supreme Courl reversed. And
then he was tried again. I think it was = hung jury, if I'm
not mistaken. But this is the thirzd time, and thank You very
much.

As 3 indicated to you before, there's only two rimes
you can serve Your counfry, in war and jury service. Buot for
you, we can't resolve cases. Mr. O'Keefe felt he was -- ¥ou
know. He felt he was 20t guilty, he had a right to trial, and

he was given it. But I want to Lhank you very much.
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You're excused from my jury admonition., If you
happen to want te talk to talk to somebody, be free to do zao,
I want to thank very much Mr. Lalli, I don't think ha's kers,
andlﬂs. Mercer. And I want to thank Mr. Maningo. It's a
thankless job to ke a standby lawyer. I can see him chomping
at the bit, wanting to advocate. 3ut he did his job.

And Mr. Q'Keefe had a right to represent himself.
And gquite frankly, you know, for the record, he was a
gentleman. He treated everybody with respect, and I
appreciate that. 35p, you know, I want the record to reflect
that, that he treated himselsf professicnally, and respect --
he treated everybody -- he treated the Court with respect, he
treated the DA, and he treated the jury with respest,

But that being said, he's convicted now. And as I
said, you're released from my admanition. Go to the marzhal,
go back to the jury commissioner, sign your vouchers. And you
did a very gouod service here. Thank ¥You so much, I mean, I
don't cazre what the verdict was. You dig your service, and ge
back there now, And as I said, you're released. TIf samesady
want to talk te you, fine. If not, don't worry about it.

THE MARSHAL: All rise for the jury.

{Jury excused at 2:05 p.m.}
fOutside the presence of the jury paneal)
THE CQURT: All right. 1z there anything else to

come hefore the Court before we take our recess?
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M%, MERCER:

THE COURT;

MR. C'KEEFE:

THE CCURT:
don't know, good luck.
charge.

ME. O'KEEFE:

THE COURT:

found you guilty; is that correct?

MR,
THE COURT:
to 1 hung? 1

ME.

Mm%, MERCER:
MR.
THE COURT:

M5. MERCER:

UNENOWN MALE

THE CQURT:
didn't show beyond a
MS. MERCER:

THE COURT:

evidence is what che evidence is.

stop you, Mr,

this for about the next 20 years.
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No, Your Honar.
Mr. Q'Keefe? :
No, Your Honor.
All right. Well, good -- I mean, I
I mean, [inaudible] a very serious
bsalutely, Your Honor.
I don't know. One jury -- 12 people
Yes, sir.
The third -- the second trial was an 11
Vias that --
Tt was =--
11 te 1, or 10 to 2,
1t was 10 co 2, Your Honor.
It was 11 --
Depending on whe you spoka to.
SPEAKER: 10 to 2.
Or 10 guilty -- and 2 -- or 1 or 2, they
teasonable doubt.
Correct.
Now, you'we got 17 more. Eo¢, the
But that's not going to
I'm sure you're going to he litigating

N03596
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MR. D'EEEFE: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: RAll right. Good luck.

MR. O'KEEFE: If I could, Your Honor -- with all due
respect, could I put that -- request an oral motion for the
trial transcript now to get it started? May I?

THE COURT: Whar's the --

ME. O'KEEFE: Would that be all right, Ms. Mercer?

M5. MERCER: He has to do it a court order.

THE CCURT: Yeah. You know what, I'm going Lo
accommadate you. See LI we get an expedited trial transcript,
because he does have a federal writ that he's got to resolve.
And so, I'1l sign it, all right? Just who's going to --
[in2udikble. you prepare the order, all right?

MR. MANINGO: I will, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: And then get it to the chambers, and
I'll sign it, and we'll try to get a8n eaxpedited trial
transczipt.

MR. MANINGO: Absolutely.

THE COURT: Well --

M5. MERCER: Thank vyou.

MR. O'KEEFE: Your Honor, thank you.

M3, MANINGD: Thanks.

ME. O'KEEFE: It was an honor being with you.

THE CQURT: Thank you.

(Court adjourned at 2:06 p.m.]
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the second trial, mage 57 of -he transcript; the Supreme Court of
Nevada reversed this case becausge they know weil themselves how
does an involuntary manslavghter become second degree murder by the
unlawful act? It wasn’t proved. I have the transcript. You’'ll he
amzzed. And he stated they reversed thiz case Lecause the evidence
didn’t support ic.

Noet enly was the instruction improper, but the evidence
did not support -his and did nst support what, Your Honor?
Instruction 18 on second degres murder. Their theory that was the
State’s theory of an intentional stabbing by a battery.

Collateral estoppel, I need to claim Ty attocrney never
did. She did not claim res judicata on the reversal. The issue
too has been decided by the Nevada Supreme Court on april 7°F, 2d1g
and it was reversed. And they said I did no unlawful act and that
is the definition of battery.

Your Honor, in the closing argument —- now 2cllateral
estoppel only there, They uzed the same proszecuticns the thecrv of
an intenticnal stabbing on both =-rials,

Mow I filed in the Federai Court and Judge Navarro
respended on that and she said they’ -e definitely —- you got the

rders, you koew -~ shke zaid it appears that there’s double
Jjecpardy protection clause problem, but you know I'm fighting them
now that they’'re like your attorney basically should have -- shoulsd

have brought this up. They're basically runming arourd about way

hat my atiorney was ineffective. I've Leen trving to tell you the
13
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whole time,

I was reprosecuted on the same offense that they
acquitted me cf. They acquitted me of the battery act, Your Honor,
Lel's totally be honest here. We know what the Prosecutor was
saylng. They know. They also know that a felony domestic violence
is three misdemeancrs. They know that. They had all that evidence
and they reversed the case and they 2aid all the eviderce presented
2t triai. WNot in the club, not in the ballraom; at trial did not
suppert this theory of second degres muorder. 1It's the instructien
iz irrelewant.

Now cellateral estoppel, constitutional cellateral
estoppel applies here, Your Honor, because the ultimate fact
required t¢ susteain a need —— needed for the general intent
required for the second degree malice murder is I've peen acquitted
of 2t, TIn fact, collaterai estoppel now applies to the State's

througn Benton versus Maryland, a 1969. You know that. It’s an

isstke that’s not left up to the Stare,

Col ateral estoppel was an cff-spring of the parent
doukile jecopardy. It is a Fifth Arendment --— Amendment. It’'s a
violation of that. I’ve already been viplated and I711 he further
viclated again. Basically it comes down to this, we're rehashing
the same evidence, Your Honar, with all due respect. Thisz iz a-1
being rehashed. Zverything to do with battery, Tha
[indecipherable] battery cannot aven he -- should not have even be

brought up in the second trial.

14
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T mean, I'!l have top -- I'm going too ~- I'm planning —-
vou know, I'm trying to deal with the State’s moticn in response
here. I had an sttorney who didn't properly address or bring up --
I mean, she did some good work., Ifm not saying, but she didn’t
address the proper issues. I kept arguing her with,

I mesan, on remand, Your Honor, you know yourself, Your
Honor, you know better than me. I'm not Erying to tell you. I
mean no disrespect. I'm trying to —— I learned the law, I'm trying
Lo teach you guys how. You guys know better than that. You know
better than me, but I am saying that on remand she sheould have
filed a motion challenging the second degree malice murder charge.

THE COURT: 8ir, listen —-

THE DETENDANT: She should have challenged --

THE CCHRT: -- you're going --

THE DEFENDANT: -- bad acts.

THE COURT: =-- you’re going to some other areas here. The
izssue ig --

THE DEFEWDANT: Okay, but —

THE COURT: Hang on. Hang on. You've already addressed the
clear and convincing evidence issue. TI'd ask ¥you to address the
issug ==

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, =sir.

THE COURT: -- under £88.045. You're getting into all these
collateral issues. You’re done addressing it, please tell me or

focus in -~

2k
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THE DEPENDANT: Yes, sir,

THE TOURT: -- on the area.

THE DEFENDANT: &All right. Your Honor, again trying to focus
in. ¢€lear and convincing no. Absolutely they haven't, I mean, a
lot of these -- all these acts the whole when the police wrote all
the reports and wrote everything, no one knew about her true mental
State. ©She was totally crazy, bipelar., Well, she waso't a bad
person. See, I don't want to sic here and talk bad about her, cut
I mean there's a lot ¢of things that were never known. They wexe
never known. A lot of this is hearsay now. God hless her soul,
she’s dead. I mean, I have the right te¢ confront their witness now
based on her true mental known sStatus that fo one ever knew at the
time that no one wanted to address.

S5ally Leehrer knew at the time and hid it, but you know
that’s hetween here -- neither here nor there, I'm saying there’s
S¢ many violatiors of Federal law, Fifth and Six=h Amendment and
Fourteenth Amendment, my due process zhe enfarcer.

Your Honor, yeou’re trying to allow the State on the third
trial te bring ir misdemeanor ceonvictions, gir, T prove a felony
act in MRS 48.061 even says that you carnot do that, subsectign 2.
There’s so many -- they can’t ever proceed on the thesrv of -- the
misdemeanor dattery is an unlawful intention act of suppnsedly the
intenticnal stabbing described in the arended information. The
battery act I've besn acguitted of, his is nothing moye chan

malicinas prasecution. Let’s face it, the State ~=-

al
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THE COURT: Siz, I need you to address -- First off ¥You need
Lo —cok at me when I talk to you.

TRE BEFENMDANT: Yes, sir, Your Honor., I apologize,

THE COURT: Hang on.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE CQURT: Listen very carefully. You have a righz under
Faretta to represent vourse’®. However, if you researched the case
law i1t will alse tell you that you must tollew the same rules as an
attorney. If Mr, Maninge was arguing this matter, he would address
e, he would look at me and show me respect, okay. And sc if you
continue in this course, I'm going to take vou off the caze to
represent vourself hecause its looked like you’ve researched the
law and it's good. You should also research that you're under the
duty to act as an atterney. Do you understand that, sir?

THE LGEFEWDANT: Yes, sir, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. And first off you had said I'm Erving teo
admit this. No, the State is. Mavbe yvou misspoke, akav. The
State is seeking., I'm not trying oo do anything., I'm trying to
listen to arguments of both zides and make the appropriate
decigion. Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, Your Honor,

THE COURT: 0Okay. You've already addressed thar you don't
believe the State has prover these othrer incidants by clear and
convincing evidence, and I understand ¥your argument. You have any

further argument in why this does not follow under 48C.0457 The

i

%]
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State is segeking to admit this to rebut any claim of zelf defense
that it was an acgidernt or seeking ta admit it for intent and
motive, and that's what I need you rto fecus on.,

THE DEFENDANT: ¢kay. Yes. The Propensity evidence i not
alloewed. You carnot use other acts tg Lry te prove the currasnt
charge, Your Honor.

Agalin it's 2 c¢ross over, Your Honor, with all due
respect. I mean, what they're trying to do here *3 wislate tha
law. They’re shusing the law. They’re loocking for exceptions to
exceptions and they’re trying to get you to push vourself out on a
limb and give them a favsrable riiing,

Your Honor, again in all sincerity, these actz hawve all
been roticed and Phillip Smith the S5tate at the time the 5tate
Prosecutor’s motion he listed every one of these acts. He
specifically asked you, Your Honor, I only want the felony.
There's a history of the CV's. I dan’t want them all.

He had all this inm his possession; the State did. Their
knowledge -- they noticed them, they listed them, they had it,
Your Honor, you don’t think that if he legaily could have uszed all
these acts that thev're trying teo bring in mow that he would have
not done that? You think he was just giving me a break and being
nice? No, he wasn’t --

THE COURT: Sir, can you please address —-

THE DEFENIANT: -- Your Bonor,
THE CCURT: -- can you please address if you have an argument
23
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defense, rebutting accident and alse why --

THE DEFENDANT: Okay, Your Honoz, ves.

THE COQURT: -- these don't go Lo intent or mobive.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ckay.

THE CCURT: 5ir, I'm trying to give you a full hearinag.

THE DEZENDANT: Yes, sir, Your Honor.

THE CCOURT: If yvou listen to me carefully, you would
understand that. 8o please address wiry these c¢ther incidents do
not Zall within the exception regarding self defense accident,
intent, motive and anything else urder 480.045.

THE DETENDANT: Because they're trying to use them for mopive
and intent and they’ve already used it for motive and intent, and
the jury at that time acguitted me, Your Honor. Again, in the
Nevada Supreme Court acquitted me of second degraa.

They've already used them, They had them, they used them
for motive and intent. They've dlready used them for it,

THE COURT: Okay. Anything else, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: MNo, sir, Your Honor.

THE COURT: A1l right. Any rebuttal argument by the Stare?

M5. MERZER: 1 don't think I have any further argument unless,
Your Honor, has any guestcion for me,

THE COURT: I don’t have anything further.

We had this evidentiary hearing last year some Time,

COrrect?

24
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M3. MERCER: Yesg.

THE COURT: And for variocus reasons it's been bumped a couple
of times,

M. MERCER: It was April 27"%, Your Honor.

THE COURZ: And thank God I kept my notes and I do have them
here and I found my legal pad and --

MR. LRLLI: There’s also & transcript of that, Your Honor.

THe COURT: I've got very detailed notes here. What T'm gain
to do is I'm going te review these notes and ¥you will have a
written decision hopefully this afternoean. I have another hearing
at 10 today. If not this afternoon, definitely on Tuesday. I do
not have a trial next week, so I can have this fina ized by
Tuesday.

Mr. C'Keefe, agaic you have the right to represent
yourself, but I’'11 tell you that in your argument vou were all over
the place and it wasn’t as coherent as Mr, Maningo could hawve
presented this. And vou may know the dates and perhaps some of the
facts better than Mr. Maningo does today, but you know I'm going to
advise you again that I think his argument on this issue would have
Leen more coherent.

and I ecouid sift through what you're saving and
understand it, but I think in frort of a Jury w¥ou would be in a
better position to argue the facts in the nuigances of this zase,
but that's up to you. But if ¥ou want to reconsider; that’'s fine,

If you don't, that’s fine too. Bu* T think if vaz look back on
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your presentation, yvou®ll see thar it wasn’t as crganized as it
should be or as Mr. Maninge would have rresented it: And that
would be to vour disadvantage if you go to trial in this case, all
cight.

And so I711 have a wrizten decision hopefully this
afterrocn. If not, Tresday.

MS5. MERCER: Thank vou, Your Haonor.

ME. LALLZ: Tharck you, Your Honsr.

THE DEFENDANT: Ch yes, Your Honor, I have a housekeeping
mattexr,

THE COURT: Al.l right.

THE CEFENDANT: I sole apologize.

THE COURT: It's oxay.

THE DEFEMDANT: Skye Campbell here, the old investigator, I
need to have her appointed, Your Honor. She came in heare today.
She’'s agreed. Craig Retke the old Investigator doesn’t want ——
he’s too busy. He doesn’t want anything to do with the case
basical’y and as you had instructed alse told -- she came here
today with willirngness to, vou know, teke on the ecase. TIt711 be
the investigator, but we just want to bring it te your atzention
and have ycu appoint hex.

MR. LALLI: I sbject te the reference to her as old, but otrer
than that I don's --

THE BEFENDANT: I apclogize.

ME. LALLT: ~-- I dan’t —— I don’t -- we don't oppose the

24
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Defendant having an investigator.

THE COURT: 1 would suggest then that ¥ou submit an order, Mr,
0'Keefe, for her appointment. 1I°11 gign that. And I understand
vou need to go through the rules of Crew Christensen as far =25 the
amount you can charge, etcetera; do you understand that?

Is that a yes?

MS. CAMPEELL: Y¥Yes. I'm SOrry.

THE CGURT: A1l right. 8o, Mr. O’Keefe, before she can get
paid on your casze, make sure you submit the apprepziate order Ior
my signature.

THE DEFENDANT: Ckay.

THE COURT: ALl right,

THE CEFENDANT: Qkay.

THE COURT: So yeour oral mation is granted,

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. LALLZ: Thank you, Your Henor.

MR, MANGANC: Thank you, Your Horor.

[Procgeding concluded a= 9:3§ a.m.l

¥ O % X w
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; TEURSDAY, MARCH 29, 2012

[Proceeding commenced at H:17 a.m. ]

THE COURT: Brian Q'Keefe. Mr., O'Keefa’s pPresent in custody.

MR. LALLI: Good morning, Your Hanor. Christopber Lalli on
behalf of the Stare.

THE CCURT: ALl right. Mz, C'Beefe, this is your motion to
dismiss. Do you have anvthing additional te add ta ¥our brief?

THE DEFERDANT: I Sust want to verify that you did get the
additional gopy, ¥our Honor. It was a little heavily darkensd -- &
darker copy was deliveraed last week,

THE COURT: Yes,

TH

It

DEFENDANT: Okay. Great. I made sure Mr. Lalli received
one too.

The only thing that I have is that I have not received a
file served opposition for EDCR 3,20 within seven days, I have
received ncething from Mr. Lall: which the law guite clearly states
that’s ar admission and that my motion is meritorious.

Thesge are coanstituciconal issues, Your Honor. Double
jeopardy, collateral estoppel is cff-spring of double jeopardy
Fifth hmendment.

THE CGURT: Let me stop you righz there., 50 you're saying you
did not get their oppesition?
THE DEFENDANT: I did not receive and T want to say on the

record that a week Zater I filed ancther motion or dropped off ard

2
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this was last Thuersday, Your Honer, and the Clerk of the Court sent
it out Friday, this last Friday, and I received it Morday night.
Now, Mr. Lalli cleariv had his —-

THE COURT: SRaceived whart Monday night?

THE DEFENDANT: Just three days ago, Your Honor.

THE COURT: What did you receive Monday night, the opposition?

THE DEFENDANT: No. No. HNo., I et -— I had Mr, Lalli

{31

personally served and you, Your Honor, on the 16, on the 22°¢ I
had dropped off another mot:on at the Clerk of thHe Court, The
investigator dropoed it off. They filed that moticn a week —- they
received it a week after,
My whole peoint is they received that motion, They kept

it for the day. They fiied it. They mailed it the next day.
have it here. They mailed it on Friday and I received it Monday
night. My point being is Your Honor clearly the State could have
respondad and I could have received saomething within the seven day
deadline. I mean --

THE COURT: I'm not showing any new pending moticns on my
calerndar,

THE DEFENDANT: There is cone, Your Honor. I have 3 copy of
it. I pave it --

THE COURT: Hang on. I'm going to have Cliff pick up -- the
Marshal’s going to pick up the motieon ¥You racéived back from the
Clerk’s Cffice. 3tay right there, sir,

THE DEZENDANT: Y¥Yeah, I'm 3ust setting this down, Your Honor.

3
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A1l right. Tha

one that I file

THE CCOURT:

THE EETZNDANT ;

This is a week
ME. LALLT:

of service in m

mstion the Cour

THE COURT:

receipt cf copy.

MR. LALLTI;

THE COURT:

THE COURT:

Odyssey. Again
gaal records.
Or —— receipt o

There is no cer
hearing Aprii 1
LALLT :
COURT :
DECEND
THE COURT:
THE DEFEND

CQURT:

nks for the Court’s indalgernce, sir. This is the
d_._

Hang cn. Let ma logsk at it.

It was mazled and I received it Monday night.
after Mr. Lalli’s mocicn,

Your Honor, may I inguire whether there ig proof
¥ office and if 55, what date wirn respect bo the
t just received?

The motion was filed March 22™, 2012. The-e’s a

On this copy it's ursigned.

That’s not dated.

Well, we're checking right now.

-The Court conferring with the Clerk]

&l1 right, sir, my Court Clerk pul’ed this up on
» it was filed March 22°, okay. Tt's your motiea to
There 15 no receipt of copy on file or is that Blank
f copy has been scanned, However, it'sz blank.
tificate of mailing and the moticrn is set for

e

Bpril 107, Your Honor?
Yes.
ANT: Yes, Ycur Henor. Now that is far --
Hang zn. EHarg on.
ANT: Yes, sir,
3o what I'm going to do is State has apparently

4

FOUGH DRAFT TRAKSCRIPT
ttate of Mevada v. Brian Ferry 0fHKesfe
CEDDB30

0035#3



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

N

24

25

not received a copy of it. They have access ro Jdyssey and thay
will print it cut today and file the 2ppropriate response.

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, may I have unt:l April 37 tg file &
Iesporse to thae?

TAE DEZENDANT: Ckay. Now that's the motiaon to seal, Your
Honor. That is not the motion to dismiss. The morien to dismiss,
Marshal Clifford just brought vou the receipt of copy. My point I
was trving £o make is EDCR 3.20 says the State has to file an
cppesiticon, served ané filed within seven days.

¥ow they received that mation. They signed for it and T
Was Just trying to prove thas I since then filed snother meticn and
the Clerk wouldn’t file it at that time. She said she would mail
it te us, set the date., She wouldn’r sx:gn the receipt of copy
which -- and you know I'm juat saving they did what they said and
they mailed it to me.

Now my peoint being is Mr. Lalli was served that moticn
and his clerk, they signed for i-. Right here, this receipt of
copy for the motion te dizmiss,

Now in Pope versus Mevada, 31¢ of the Mevada Eules cof
Appallate progedure when the State fails to respond or
constituticnal issues, Your Honar, “tfs5 a serious thing. Band they
dismissed -- they reversed the ceze.

Now at the trial level EDCR 3.20 is the same ~-— serves
the same funetion,

ME. LALLI: Your Honor, may I short cireuit thig?

g
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THE COURT: Actually, I'11 dec that here, Sir, this matter was
filad March 16" whick is a Friday, ekay. I sericusly doubt you
would have had it back on March 16™ because the filing date was
12:04 p.m. Suv if you served -- if ¥ou gsent it tgo the DUA.fs Office
even on that day they would not have received t on Marcy 1977,

THE DEFENJANT: My :inovestigator --

THE COURT: 3Sir, I'm talking.

THE DEFENIZANT: -- hand delivered it.

THE COURT: I'm talking, all right., And so if they received
it eithey March 197 even March 167 their response was filed Maxch
21%", 5o if they received it on the 197, they filed it a response
withir two davs, okay.

S0 your -- if there’s any -- *f vou' re making an oral
motier right now I'm not going to accept It, You need to file a
written motion, but you might want to lock at the timing of this
and see if it's & waste of time on your part., I'm not saying don't
file it, bu:t you need to lock at your calendar.

Now let’s do to the metion to dismiss. You zave anything
additienal to add to vour written motion?

TAE DEFENDANT: Anything additiona’ to add to what’s in the
motion. The motion is packed, The only thing I could say then if
that’'s all you're allowing me te db orally is I'm asking vou Lo
honor and stare decisiz, stand by things decided.

tnomy first trial, Your Honar, it was —— I wzs taken to

trial on the theory aof intentional stabbing, the act., The law says

&

FQUGH DRAET TRANSCRIPT
Etate cof Mevada w. Brian ¥arry O Hesfe HUSSJ
CZR0630




10
19
12
13
14
18
16
1
18

18

21

23

25

¥ou deferming the intent once the act ig committed. The jury, the
tler fact at that time said [ &id na stabbing. NRS 193.150 tc
constitute a crime there has to be a unity of act and intent. They
teok away the actus reus, the physical component.

Now your well know, Your Honor, on direct appeal any
underlying sct that they ware trying to threw in the Nevada Suprems
Court said I did no unlawful act which is the definition of
battery. They acquitted me of the vhysical aect described in the
amended information which was the physical act of stabhbing,

The State reprosecuted me or the Same theory, willful
méans intentional, willfally, They Said I didn't do ir
intenticnally which means it was an accidenr. Second degree malice
marder 1s an usintentional mirder, Your Honor, in the commissson of
8 20 called act that the Nevada Supreme Court said the evidence did
nat gprove that T did keyond a reasanable doubt, It's over,

Not only did they vigclate tha theory cf prosecution, they
rehashed the same evidence they brought in the first trial.

Now in the reversal order, the Nevads Supreme Court
clearly said the evidence presented at trial did rot sopport this
theory of sacond degree murder. Whar theory? Theory number —- or
instruction number 18, the Stara’s theory. What evidence? 2ll the
evidence they presented that tried ta Prove criminal -- crimical
culpability; the wvideo, the domestie viclence, It goss on and on
and on, buz all the evidence they presented, the tier fact

acquitted me of ir.

B
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And then on top of it on direet appadl, the Supreme Court
acquitted me of second degree. They reprosecute me ——

IHE COURT: Actually, the Supreme Court said that there is ap
error in the jury instruction. They could pot determine which
theory the jury found you quiltys that's wha:i the opinion states.

The second trial was a hung Jjury. I think it 1I to 1 or
10 to 2, okay. On thess kases, there’s nag double jeopardy
violation. Anything else to add, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: Your Henor, they’ re prohibited froam reiashing
any evidence. The same bad acts we Just got done and litigated and
you have a ruling that C207B35, the felony Ebattery domestic
viclence could be reintroduced again. No, it cannot, Your Heonor,
This is the same --

THE COURT: OCkay., W®Well, sir, this --

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor -=-

THE COURT: -- I've ruled on cha- motion. If you're saying
that I was in error, the proper procedure is a motion for
reconsideration or a Writ te the Supreme Court. This is net rhe
time for you to rehash that matior, ¥You need te file the proper
procedures,

THE DETENDANT: You asked me, Your Honor, with all dus
respect, sir. Please, Your Henor, you kave to —-

THE COURT: No, sir, listen. I =aid you have anything
additional £o add to your motisn to digmiss. If vou feel I made an

error in the moticn for 480.045 you file a motion for

g
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reconsideration er you file a Writ co the Supreme Court, You have
done neither of these. We are hare an a motion Lo dismiss, akay.
Do you have anything additiocnai te add?

TdE DEPFENDANT: WNa, Your Honor.

THE COURT: oOkay. Mr. Zalli, do ¥ou have anyvthing additicnal
to add?

MR. LALLI: No, Your Honor. I‘11 submit it on my oppecsiticn.,

THE COURT: The Cour: does not find any issue of dousnle
jeopardy in this particular matter. The State i3z not precluded
from bringing up the matter under 480,045 which I've already made a
ruling on that. The Supreme Court reverzal dosas not preclude
retrial in this matter, s¢ moticn to dismiss is denied.

and, State, csuld you file zhe aopposition to the motion
set for April 10%07

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, may I have until —— may I jus- have a
week from today to file that; that would be actually Bpril 577

THE COURT: That’ll be fine. Just make Sure that Mr. O/Keefe
g2tz a copy of the oppositian,.

Me. LALLI: Yes, Your Bonor. He -- with respect ta the
instant opposition that we filed, cne was faxed to him on —he same
day that it was filed. 5o there was ApEropriate service of that.

THE CCURT: All right.

MR. LALLI: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank youz. And, State, Flease prepare the order.,

MR. LALLI: We’ll do that. Thank you.

9
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[Proceeding concluded at £:30 a.m. ]
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; TUESDAY, JUNE 5, 2012

"Proceeding commenced at 9:25 a.m, |

THE COURT: 23l right. Let's do O’Keefe. This 18 time Eet
for calendar call. Mr. QfKeefe is Fresent in custody as Mr,
Maningo a& stand-by counsel., Mr. Lalli for the State.

This is time ser for ralendar. State ready?

ME. LALLI: Yes, Your Honor,

THE COQOURT: [Cefense ready? Mr. O'Keefe?

THE DEFENDANT: I'm scrry, Your Honor. I dida’t hRear You .

THE COURT: Are you ready to gqo to trigl?

THE DEFENDANT: I have a comment I want to put out there, Your
Honor. Of course, you know, I'wve dlways been forthright and honest
with vyou, sir. I am claiming a wvalid viglation of my Federal
Constitutional Rights Fifth Amendment ceuble jecpardy viclation in
the Federal Courts, Your Honor.

You're aware that right noaw we are reguasting an
emergency stay. Basiczally I712 he concise rore, ¥Your Honor. IE
this was the first trial, I would understand that wyou would
probakly want to proceed, bur baing the third trial, Your Bonor,
I'm noct going any where. 1 have no problem if you agree, if Mr.
Laili stipulates to postporne this and let the action be heard in
the 9" Circuit,

Your Eonor, with all due respect T understacd Ehat vou've

warned me and teld me to be prepared. I'm not going ta lie. I'm

2
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not rea:ly totally prepsred, but that’s not ¥your problem, Your
Honor. If you deem that we are tgo proceed with trial Monday, then
we have to proceed; that’s the way it is and we’ll le* the §°
Clrcuit deal with it lacer.

Howaver, sgain, I must siress that the -- yvau know,
aga:n, Your Honor, I'm not geing any where., This has had -- T got
4 motion this morning from my Federal Public Deferder and IT'm
amazed at all the thouszands of hours that have been spent in this
already. And again, Your donor, like I said the 9% Circuir foaalg
there 1s scmething rezlly there; that there's g valid substantial
ciaim has been made.

Again, Your Honor, T know I'm sounding like a parroct.
I'm not going any where, Sor Judicial sconomy and administratior
just good judgment reasoning, I would think the right thing to do
if the State’s stipulates to this, sir, te just postpone this ‘til
March, status checx ard -~ and let's see what happens. If the 9°°
Circuit deems that no -- there’s na issue, then lets proceed, Your
Honer, and let the chips, you know, lay where they fall.

ME. MANINGC: Arnd, Your Honor, we -- Mr. —-

THE COURT: Hang en. 1 want to make sure Mr. Q' Keafe -

MR. MAWINGO: I'm sorry.

THE COURT: -- iz complezed.

THE DETENDANT: RAgain, I de want to state to you at nc time
have I g@ver meant any disrespect to you and --

THeE COURT: I haven’t ‘nterpreted. Just g2 on with vour

3
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THE DEFENDANT: But, vyou know, I do feel that again the
economy 13 in extreme dire emergency state right now and, you know,
I'm not tryling any tricks. I*m not Lrying any ploys, &gain, the
decision ulitimately is yours. You did tell me be ready and, vou
know, that's net your fault, Your Honer, That's a different
argument.

The argument is 1f I'm ready to go; ne, T'm oot really
ready to ggo, Your Honor., I'm asking that you postpone this to
possibly March. I think would he an ddequate time. Again, I'm not
going any where. I've said what - had to 2%, Your Honoxr, The
decision ultimately be yours.

I do want to point out that Mr. Maningo is here as stand-
by and my AFPD, Ryan Norwood, is here. If wou have any questicons
that you would like to direct for him, I don’t know. That's up =o
¥ou. I’'ve said what I had to say, Your Honor,

THE COURT: Okay, sir, we hac¢ the Faretta canvassing December
16", 2011 and your trial is set for June 11. 3o you’ve had six
months or more than sSix months since you decided to represent
yourself. Why haven’t vou rrepared yourself for trial?

THE DEFENDANT: Well, I have beer preparing somewhat, Your

Honor, but again witk all due respaect, sir, T put it this way, fYour

B

Ronor, I put my heart thousands of hours into my Federazl hapezs
petition. To be concisze on the matter, Judge Gloria Navarro agresrd

that there was an issue, hut she felit that the preoecedural error kad
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been done.

Now, the 9°* Cirecui:z had wrote against her and savrd ng it
didn’t need to be done, Basically what I'm getting at, Your Honor,
I put it this way, if the 3 Circuit agrees with me and Ffeels tha-
there really is an issue whch I believe there is a valid Federal
Constitutional viclation going cn here, T will ke violated again by
the laws and trees of the United States Constitution.

Apparently the 977 Circvir is what I’m getting at, sir, I
feel if they agree with me, you know, I was qoing o fight more far
the petition. I kind of put all my aggs in the baskez, my hopes.
And again, Your Honor, I'm not worried any moere. If you say we're
not going to stop, I711 be there Monday, vou know. It’'ll be what
it'il be, You know, I'm just being forthright and hones:c with you
in telling you. Mavbe it was a mistake., Maybe it wasn’t.

Again, I'm not going any where. The decisicn ultimately
is yours. You're in an impasse. I understand exactly. You know,
you hear case afier case. I would never want yeur job. It's a big
decision for you. Againa, the Stare may not want it. They may want
to proceed, I mean, I don't know how the State actually feelsg
ghout it. Again, I justc got this mail thig morning. I Had heen
getting deiayed mail. Mr. Norwsod mailed this en the 1%, Ee
shouid --

THE COURT: The mail you’re referring to is that pleadings to

THE DEFENDANT: This is my ==

g
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COURT: Hang on. Hang on. Hang om,
TdE CEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

TH

[

COURT: Are you referring to Bleadings regarding your
action in Federal Court?

THE DEFEMDANT: Yes, which ties directliy to --

THE COURT: Hang on,

THE DEFENDANT: -- this case.

THE COURT: I understand. I understand your iegal argument.

THE DECZMDANT: I got this --

THE COURT: Okay, but the pleading -- the items vou have been
having trouble receiving, you were here 3 coup’e of dayvs ago or
last week gor so.

THE DEFEMDANT: Last week, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. They’re relating to pleadings of Federal
Court; is that correct, ves or no?

THE DEFEMDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THZ CGURT: 21! right. Thank you. Anything -- anything elss,
Mr, O Keefe?

THE DEFENDANT: Just for the record, after the holiday weekend
and after coming to the last Tueadav of Zast week, I met for the
first time my Federal Publiec Defender and I got my mail
lindecipherable] a couple of days ago. S0, you znow, I'm just
placirg that en the recsrd, Your Honor.

Again, you know, the decisicn is yours. You know, Itm

just stating thar I'm not golng any where, Your Honor., I°m sat

&
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trying to get out of anything. Yon know, the decisioen is yours,

THE COURT: 0Okay. The items that you have heen receiving from
your Federal PD, I'm not going to ask for the specifics, I'm not
going to ask what he has told yeu, all right; is it cerrect that
they all relate to your Federal action?

THE DEFENDANT: Pertaining to thisz case, Your Honar.

THE COQURT: I understarnd that, but they’'re relating to the
Federal proceedirgs in front of Judge Navarro and in front af the
%" Circuit; is that correct?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. The mail I received this morning.

THE COURT: Al right, ©Okay, Well, during thess last few
months that you’wve talked about this Federal broeceeding, you have
mentioned sometimes you're nos getting your mail or mails delayed
or perhaps mails been logt. I just want to make sure those
mailings are relzating to your Federal gctions; is that correct?

THE CEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor. I did have a couple of items

Tdk COURT: That's all I needed, yes or no; it’'s very simple.
Were they related toc vour Federal accioas?

THE DEENDANT: Yes, Your Heoror.

THE COURT: Thank you. &A1l right. Mr, Maningn, as stand-by
counsel do you have anvtoing to add?

MR. MANINGG: HNo. Just that the timing of this motion, Your
Honor, happened because of what was going on in the 9% Circuit.

Mr. Neorwcod agreed to come to enlighten the Couzt and all aof us

a1
1
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what’s happening in the 9" Circuiz and wha- Mr, Q*Keefe's Federal
matters. Nothing really to add. If Mr. O0'FKeefe's ready, I'm
ready.

THE COURT: Al right. Mr. Lalli?

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, the Court will recal: that T had chis
placed on calendar the Beginning of last week to inform Mr. O/Kecfe
and the Court that T had two trials set on the same day, aAnd T
infarmed the Ccourt that if a1l parries were saying this was going
and there was nc request by any party that it would be contirued,
then T would be ready to go and I would seek o have my other trial
wherein a Defendant is charged with murder and wanted to go to
trizl next week; that Defendant is Michasl Mills in Case Number -
11-272028. I put it on calendar specifically to get guidance from
the Ceurt in arranging that schedule.

Having received assurances frem the Court that we would
be proceeding as scheduled and giving Mr, O'Keefe =zhe Opportunity
to ask for a continuance at that time whieh he did not do, I then
informed Judge Miley that thisz case weculd be going, that the Court
had previously indicated that it was a priority and would not he
contirued absent intervention from the 9% Cirguin. Basad upon
those representations, the Mills' case was reset, 30 that trial was
vacated.

We are in the midst meeting with witnesgses. Doing those
things we need to do to be prepared Ifor trial next week, Subpoenas

were issued well over 3 month ago. Those have Been served by my

8
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investigater. There have been rany, mary hours spent in preparing
for this case.

Mow I am aware that Mr. O'Zsefe through Federal counsel
has filed a metlon in the 3" CTircuit to have thie matter stayed.
And wiat - can inform the Court is thatr Mr, O'"Kesfe had previously
in pro per perscor requested a stay of these proceedings, this trial
here, from the 9™ Circuit which the 9% Circuic denied.

84, the motion that now the Sefendant has filed in front
of the 97 Circuit is a motion to recensider that pravious denial.
There are a number of factors the 97 Circuit looks at. One of
which is the likeliheod of success on the merits. And the Court
knows the procedural posture of this case better than anyone. You
have a Cefendant who was tried. His Conviction was reversed by the
Nevada Supreme Court; cthat is not a deuble jespardy bar to a
retrial. Kot under any scenarzc. Not At &11. Wot under State law
or Federa® law.

Then you have a sitouation where there’s a retrizl and
depending cn whe you talk teo it is an -1 te 1l vote for guilt or 10
te 2 vote for guils. Either way, the cverwhelming majority of
those jurers would have voted to convict Mr, *EKeefe,

Based upon the jury’s inability te reach a verdict, the
Court deciared & mistria’ and now we're set for trial today. The
Court is well aware tratr does not pose a double jegpardy bar to a
further prosecution. Those are the issues thaz are peading. Thosse

arg the legal issues in frout of the & circuit,

G
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50, 1 can’t imagine under any scenario wheve that would
be a successful cause of action in the 9% Circui-. So, perhaps the
most important factor that the 9% Circuit will congidesr to
determine whather or naot these Froceacings are staved is likelihood
of success oo the merits. Tf ¥ou stop at that factor alone, I
think the analysis is over and there wouid be an unwillingness for
the 9 Circuit to issue a stay here.

We are opposing the motion in the 9% Circuir. Olz
response is due I believe today and I beliave it will be filed
today through our appellate diwvision. I understand the 9 Circuit
will issue &z decision on that Friday, but we are opposed to it
becavse I made this igzcus my calendar -- I made that issue gware Lo
evervbody, made it Xpown to everybody last week and, vou kriow, now
I'm just -- pur office deesn't have the resources to -- to prepara
for trial and just have it go away willy-nilly because the
Dzfendant’s not willing to say he needs 4 continuance when given
the opportunity.

THE COURT:; Thank you. Mr, Norwogod, vou’re not appearing o
this case are you?

Mz, WORWCOD: I'm not reprasenting Mr. O'Kesfe in Sta-= court,
but I came today hacavse T know the ongoing Federal proceedings and
the matter of some concern.

THE COURT: Well, they denied the motion for stay on May 9% of
this year; is that correct?

MR. WORWZOD: Corract. He =--

10
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THE COURT: 2nd then you have a motion pending for
reconsideration:

MR, NCRWOCD: The mownion for recgnsideration., The motion thar
Mr. -— Mr. O0'Keesfe has represented himself Fro s& througheut mos:
af the Faderal Froceedings. My office only became involved vary
recently. I'wve only had my bearings in this case for about a week.

The 9™ Circuit ~- he filed thris doubie jeapardy peticlon
which was initially denied in the District Court, he appealed it,
The 97" Circuit does it automatic —-— automatically grant you the
right to appeal habeas corpus denial, Cnly have to determine that
you're entitled to something called a cercificate of appealability
which meats that they have to first determine that there is some
merit to the underlving issue and also some merit to the underlving
procedural dismissal -- diamissal of the igsue,

So, the " Cireuit is already made thas determination.
They’ve determined that there’s ar issue presented in Mr. O'Kesfe’s
double jecpardy petiticon that ia of some merlt that’s debatable
amongst jurors of reason.

I filed a motion for reconsideration aof the stay becauss,
¥ou know, Mr. Q'Keefea, vou know, his request was a Z-page
handwritten metion that didn't have any case law authority. I'm
Not in a positicn to regent to what the 9°° Circuit is goling to do,
but for the reasons I set forth iy the mérien I think that the case
law 15 —- is 4in favor of a stay in these circumstances where

there’s already a determination tha- there’s an issue of some merit

il
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here. And when there axe cangers including a danger of the &'
Circuic losing it's juriasdiction if the case goes forward in this
Court,

S0 170 not going to offer any predictions as to what the
3" Circuit’s going to do. They sat up an expedited briefing
schedule, The State's goelng to respond today., I°11 respond
tomerrew. They'll probably make a decision by the end of the wesk,
but it seems tXat one of the cancerns here 1g abouwt, you knaw,
having to prepare for 2 trial that’'s rot going to happen and I
think that if we go ahead with the trial hers ever ASSuhRing our
innuendo there everyore is otherwise ready, Lthere ig a real danger
the ™ Cireuly is going to come a sha grant the stay which means
that the preparations are going te go to not.

Even if the stay is not granted, the 97 Circiit is s+ill
going to ultimately pass upen the issgues raised in his Eetition, s=so
that there’s a danger then tha® if a third trial happens that
that’s going te go.

50 I'm -- I'm guing to be seeking the stay co matter what
happers in this Court, but I think the Court sheould bhe aware of
it’s background in determining whether or not o Jranc &
cantinuanse,

The last thing I would note is that I know Mr. Q'Keefe is
== 18, you know, is saying that he's willing to go ahead ro have
the trial if the Court makes =har determination and I'm sure ke g,

but bls preference which he has gxpresaed o me which I7va
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rgpresented to the 9™ Circuit is thar ke would like a stay or a
continuance to be granted in this Court in the first instance;
that’s what he's asking for.

“iE COURT: &1l right., I would note that the first trial in
this matter was March '03. The second trial is Ruqust 2379, 2010
and T believe we had a subsequent trial setting which had to be --
I believe -- which had to be vacated becanse Ms. Falm withdiew.
And then on December 167, 2011 Defendart had stared he wished to
represent himself. He had a Faretra hearing and =0 at thaz point I
appcinted Mr. Maningc as stand~by counsel for My. O Keefe.

This matter has been pending long before March '03. He’s
xnowWn that this trial’s been set at least since December 16, 2011
and so any oral regquest to continue the trial is —— is denied.
Long agoe said this was going forward. I'm setting aside two weeks
on my calendar and if the 5% Circuit issues a stay on Friday, then
50 ke it and then the matter stayed. If they don't issue a stay,
then we’ll proceed to trial on Monday morning.
And gc we're going to go Monday zt -- at %:30, RAnd if

e ther party has any jury instructicns, please provide those Monday
at 3:30 to the Courtc. Any special instructions please provide
thoge ¢ase citations, all right.

MR. LALLI: Y¥our Hgonor, shall ¥ provide these to Mr. Maningo
or would vou like me to have an investigacor serve Mr, C'Keefa at
the jail with those instructiens or shall T walt until Monday when

Court to give --

13
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THE COURT: Mr. Maningo -— I would just give them in cpen
Court ‘cause we’re always having an itssue in not getting them,

MR, LALLI: Very wall,

THE COURT: This way it’ll be given in cpen Court. If you
have them eariy, Mr. Manings, would ¥ou be so kxind as te forward
them onto Mr, OfKeefe?

MR. MRMIMNGE: I will do that., And, ¥Your Honoz, my velce is
limited as stand-by ccunsel, but you've mentioned that karring an
cral metiorn to continue the trial —-

THE COURT: T was sort of interpreting today as an oral motion
to continue the trial.

MR, MANINGG: And we did file a written motion,

THE COURT: Which is set for Thursday of next week ssnt it?

MR. MANINGC: Correct. Thaz was —— that was my issuwe. I mean
iz there a point in us coming? 1 would —-

THE CQURT: No.

MR. MANINGO: -- * would just eche the fact that, and Mr,

Norwood kit on Li, that Mr. O ¥esfs did say that he was not ready,

i

our FHonor, and that he was devorting his time and energias Lowards
his Pederal relief yather than this trial: thar coupled with what's
going on in the 9™ circuit.

I would just add to the record as stand-by counsel I
think warrants a continuance. I full —- T ean further argue that
on Thursdawy.

TAE COURT: I'm going to vacate that date, T did revisw the

1a
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moticn, I don’t think we need to have it Thursday, but the bottom
zine is the basis for your moclon is that he has this Federal
actien pending. There was nothing =lse in the motion pevond that
and 56, we never know what thev’re going to do. We don’i krow if
they're going to rule in a timely fashiocn or not and we need to a2t
this trial going., I told everyone hack in Lecerber this matrer’s
goiryg forward. Mr, O'Ksefe insisted in representing himself.

And alsg, Mr. D'Keefe, you recall during the Faretta
canvass I advised yeu that you would be held to the same standards
a2 an attorney and as en attorney Mr. Maningo would know as well as
Mr. Norwood would know that just because you filed motiens with the
9" Circuit it deesn’t tell ¥2u to stop preparing for trial. And
any attornay wouid kaow that you continue moving forward for trial.

You'wve had three -- twe trials, three gr four rrial
settings, you'wve had since December. 35 T don't find any good
cause to ccntinue this trial. And so the hearing for TEursdayv is
0ff calendar ‘cause I did read it, Mr. Maningo, arnd it’s basically
because you have a pending rmatter in the 57 Cireuit.

MR. MANINGD: Yes, sir.

THE CODRT: 0Okay. 1If they come <own on Friday and it's
stayad, sa ke it, ockay.

ME. LALLI: Thank you, Your Haonor.

THE COURT: See everybedy on Moncay.

MR, LALLI: Thank you.

THE COURT: 9:30; right, Carcl?

1t
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THE CLERE: ¥eg,

[Fraceedine concluded ar 9:45 a, M.

ETTEST: I hereby cartify that I have truly and correctly
transcribed the sudio/viden proceedings in the above-entitled case
Eo the best of my ability.

ATTEST: Pursuarnt to Rule 3C{d} of the Newada Rules of Appellate
frocedure, I ackrowledge that this is & rough draft transcript,
expeditiously prepared, not proofread, corrected or certified to he
an accurate transcript,

Tnuehedly Lurrieef

Michelle Ramsdy
Court Recorder/Transdrifer
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, FRIDAY, JUNE 15, 2012, 9:17 A.M.

{In the presence of the jury panel)

THE COURT: All right. Parties, stipulate to the
Fresance of the jury?

MR. LALLI: Yes, Your Honar.

MR. O'EEEFE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: ALl right. Thank you. Ladies and
gentlemen, as you know, the State rested it's case yesterday:
defense rested. And I indicated to you, we worked on jury
instructions. Now, I'm about to instruct you of what the law
ig on this particular case.

Mow, I'd like to erally instruct you, but avery word
on these instructions are pratty, you know, complicated, some,
and every instruction is significant. S50, T think it's best
that I read these instructions tg you. But be assured, you
will be given these instructions when ¥ou ge into the jury
deliberation room, along with all the exhibits admitied in
evidence, and forms of verdict far Your conveniance.

S0, 1'11 read the instructions. Then, we're going
ta hear some closing arguments, Since the State has the
burden of proof, thay have se=-called, two bites of the apple.
The State will give an argument. Then, the defense will give
their clesing arqument. And then, rhe State 15 allowed to
give a rebuttal argument.

50, we're going to have thres arguments, then the
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case will be submitted to youw. &All right? 8¢, that's the
sitwation. And again, I want to thank ¥you very much for your
indulgence. So, let me read thess instructions.

tJury Instructions read; not transcribed)

THE COURT: That completes the instructions, ladies
and gentlemen, WwWho's going to go on behalf of the Stater?

MR, MERCER: Mse, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mercer?

M3. MERCER: Yes,

STATE'S CLOSING ARGUMENT

M5. MERCER: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. In
every criminal case, there are two things that the State is
required to prove: that the crimes alleged in the informatien
ware committed, and that the crimes were committed by the
defendant.

This case is not &, whodunit. There is no disputing
it was Brian Q'Keafe. This case is a, what is it? And before
1 get into what it is, I want to talk about what ic's not, and
why you know it's nat.

This case is not an accident. It wasn't self
defense. For you to believe that this case was an accident,
you would have to believe that all of the following
circumstances occurred, During the struggle over the knife,
the knife somehow ends up, tip-up, on the bed. WVictoria

Whitmarsh has her arm up for some reason, and she falls onto
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the tip of that knife.

But the xnife doesn't bend, it doesa't twist, it
doesn't maove. It somehow manages to peneirate right between
her ribs, hitting no bones. Most imporfantly, vou would have
to believe that, for no apparent reason at all, that knife
went na further than four and-a-half inches deep into her body
whern she fell on top aof it.

We know that dicdn't happen, because you've heard the
testimony of Dr. Dutra in this casze. He testified that, had
she fallen onta the knife, had this been the result af an
accident, there would have been secondary merks; there would
have been secondary injuries to the stabbing. He teld you
that there would have been torsional injurisas; evidence that
the knife twisted and moved. This is a clean stab wound.

Lock at the evidence. There zare no secondsry marks.

But most importantly, we know that this isn't an
dccident or self defense, because what this is is a maliciouns
killing of Victoria Whitmarsh by the defendant, Brian O'Keefe.
This is a second degree murder. Second degree murder is
defined of the unlawful killing of a human being with malice
aicrethought., To convict the defendant, you have to believe
that, A, he killed Viectoria Whitmarsh, and that when he dig
that, he acted with malice aforethought. Two things.

We know that the defendant killed Victoria

Whitmarsh. We know that based upon the location of the DNA on
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1/ the knife. We know that Based upon the injures to the

2| defepdant's hands. Wa know that based upon his mumblings in

3| the wehicle to Officer Hutcherson, when he didn't realize that

4| anybody was listening. And then, of course, Victeria

5| vltimately died from that stab wound.

& You heard testimony from Jennifer Bas, the DMA

7| analyst employed with the farensic lab. She testified that on
8| the handle of the knife when she swabbed, there was a mixture
9| of DNA. But the majerity of that was the defendant, BRrian

10| O'Keefe's, He was the mzior contributor. And his -— I

11| believe the statistics she gave was ona in #5040 billion.

12| That's the defendant's DNA on that handle, not Victeria

13| Whitmarsh's.

14 Then, the second area that she swabbed, JB4B. It'sy

15| right here, close to the handle, on the blade. It's a single
16| profile; all of the defendant's. That's consistent with the

17| wound on his hand, which 1'11 et to in a minute. Bt most
18| importantly, when she swabbed the tip of that knife, the only

1%| PNA on the tip of that knife belonged to Victoria Whitmarsh.

20| The tip of that knife never made centact with Brian O'Keefe,

21| This wasn't self defense.*

22 And then, you've heard testimony from Detective

23| Marty Wildemann, the homicide detective. He said that, in

24 | most stabbing cases when someone thrusts that knife into the

23| bady of s human being, their hand will slip, and it will cutr
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their hand,

Look at the locaticn of the injuries on the
defendant's hand. Right where he would have been gripping the
handle of that knife. Right where, when he thrust thar knife
ints her body, the blade would have cut his hands. There zre
noe injuries to the palms of his hands, as if he were to grab
the knife. If you grab the knife from somebody's hand, the
blade is going to slice yeur palm, We don't have that here.

And then, you've heard from Officer Hutcherson. He
was Bitting in the car with the defendant. For a while, he
was ranting and raving., He falls a2leep., And then, when he
wakes up, he starts making spontanecus utterances, mumblings
to himself. "I swear to God, ¥, I didn't mean to hure You.
Let's go do the ten years.”

"I didn't mean to hurc you" implies that he's the
ane that thrust that knife into her body., "Let's ga do the
ten years." He knew he was going to prison, He knew he was
in trouble,

And then, of course, you heard from Dr. Dutra thak
the stab wound is what resulted in her death. She pbled tao
death. It was four and-a-half inches deep. You have the
photo showing the trajectory of the injury. When you look at
the rob, you can tell that it's going from front to back -- or
back to front, at a downward angle. Again, inconsistent with

an accident. He also testified that it probably took between

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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10 and 30 minutes for her to bleed out.

So; you've established that -- we established that
Brian Q'Heafe killed Victoria Whitmarsh., The enly thing left
is, did he do it with maiice aforethought? The Judge gave you
the instructicons on malice aferethought. It means the
intenticnal doing of a wrongful act, without legal rause or
excuse, or what the law considers adeguate provocation. It
can arise from anger, hated, revenge, particular i1l will,
spite, or grudge towards the person killed.

It does not imply deliberation, or a lapse of
considerable time. And that's important. The State's pot
alleging that when Brian O'Keefe woke up on MNovember Sth of
2008, he intended to murder Victoria Whitmarsh. What we are
alleging is that at rthe time he thrust that knife into her
body -- at the time he stuck that knife four and-a-half inches
into her body, he had malice in his heart, and it was an
intentional act.

There are two types of malice. Expreszed malice,
meaning the stabbing was done with the specific intent tg
kill; and implied malice. &n example would be a stabbing of
somecng ocut of anger, or to teach them a lesson, or to get
revenge for something they had done to you. The law doesn't
make any distinction between the two. As long as you find
that there is either expressed or implied, and that thHere’s an

intention killing, then the appropriate wverdict is second

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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degree murder in this case.

We know that at the time the -- on November 5th of
20408, the defendant acted out of ravenge. We know that from
the testimony of Cheryl Morris. Cheryl Morris told you that
she had an approximately eight to nine-month relationship with
the defendant.

She teld you that, throughout the course of that
relationship, he guite frequently got intoxicated, bzcams
drunk. That every time he became intoxicated or drunk, his
thoughts would turn to Victoria Whitmarsh., He said that
whenever he bagan talking about her, he would talk about her
at first with sadness, lamenting the loss of the relationship.
Then he'd get a little bit more upset when he considered what
happened to him as a result of her calling the police in
Novemper -- or April of 2004.

THE COURT: ©Again -- sorry to interrupt. I want to
remind you that evidence of other crimes, wrongs, or acts is
not admissible to prove the character of a person 1a order to
show that he acted in conformity therewith. It may, however,
be admissible as proof of motive, intent, or absence of
mistake or agcident. I'm sorry to interrupt you. Proceed
oW .

M3. MERCER: Thank you, Your Haonor.

And then she said that, ultimately, he would enpd ]+

completely outraged, incensed at the damage that she had

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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caused to his life when he was sent to prison on that feleny
battery domestic wviolence charge.

She said that in those same canversatinans, he would
brag about his ability to kill with a knife, how the
government had trained him to kill people in Grenada. He
never talked about killing with knives, never talked about
manual strangulations, or any other methods of murder; Jist
with a knife. He even demonstrated how skilled he was at
killing people with a knife.

Cheryl's testimony is corroborated by the
information, the verdict form, and the Judgment of conviction,
which have been admitted into evidence as State's Exhibita
133, 1332, and 133B. What's important to remember is that
that relationship with Ckeryl Morrtis only ended two months
pricr to this incldent; twe months pricr te November 5t¢h of
2008. And when you're deliberating, coensider whether, in two
months, the defendant, Brian O'Keefe, was able to let go of
that hztred, let go af that anger with Victoria for sending
him to prison.

And if you for one second believe that he did,
listen to his interview. Listen to the interview that was
conducted with the homicide detectives and Brian O'¥eefe. And
when you listen to that interview, listen closely, because
many of the most telling statements that he makes are mumbled

under his breath. I had to listen to the statement numeraous

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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10
times to pick up on chem. 3o, listen cleszely. And if you
need to, listen te it multiple times.

But when he talks about the past with Viectoria --
and he spends more time talking about his past with Victoria
and the damage that she did to his past, then he does asking
how she's deoing, or expressing any concern, or sadpess over
the loas of her life,

He tells the detectives, 1 had to change my skills
because of the situstion we were in. He's talking about haw
he nad to change his jobs, how he becams a laborer afterwa=-ds,
I went to prison. 1 last everything. That's epproximately 13
minutes into that raped interview. Then he goes into talking
about hew his friends warned him about getting back wich her,
and how they were dissatisfied over his choice to rekindle
that relationship. He refers te her a8, "this biteh,"

And then he goes into -- he tells the derectives,
logk in my closet. Look at all the court documents I had to
file. I fought that case so hard. She wrongfully accused me;
things of that nature. That's approximately 14 minutes in.
And then, towards the end of the interview, the middle part of
the end, he tells the detectives, I've hurt & lot of Ways,
because I've lost. I lost my jeb. And then he says, but it
doesn't matter anyways, because I'm going to lose it all
again. I'm going to have to fight this again.

Brian Q'Keefe never forgave Victoria Whitmarsh for

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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11
gsending him to prison, for making him a felen, for ferever
altering his life, And when he thrust that knife in her kady,
those were the thoughts in his head. Those were the emotions
in his hesart.

We also know that the defendant was angry that day.
They had been drinking. There's no disputing that. When you
see the interview, he's intoxicated. He's drunk. We know
from Cheryl Morris that when he gets drunk, he gets angry.

And we know that they were arguing, because in that statement
te the detesctives, he says that Victoria was upset with him --
wall, first says upset, and then says, no, that didn't make
her angry, because I actually won. But she says, why do you
spend szo much money at Paris?

Then, at some point in the interview, when the
detective's trying te get him to slay on poink, he =tarts
twisting his head back and forth, and making some mumblings to
himself. They're very faint. They're very guiet. Listen
clozely.

These are statement that he attributes te Victaria
on that night, "I hate the fucking west side, you fucking
pPiece cof shit. Yeah, well, we got to live in this fucking
place. Why can't we go to the east side? I want to go Lo my
hushand's house. I'm going to take the car."” How do yOou
think that Brian O'Keefs, the defendant in this case,

responded to those statement by Victoria Whitmarsh? He was

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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12
angry.

Then, at another peint in the interview, he admits
that there was yelling and screaming goling on inside that
apartment. It's right after Detective Wildemann tells him,
Brian, what the hell are you doing? He says, "I'm really
trying to think sbout what happenad. I'm really trying to
think about hoew things occurred, ™

He says something about -- he goes to the bathroom,
or he sees her in the bathroom. And then he says, "And than
there's yelling and screaming, and boom, boom, boom,™ Bur
again, these are statements that ha's whispering so softly
that Detective Wildemann doesn't even hear them, S0, listen
closely. That's approximately 24 minutes into the interview.

Yéu also know that he was angry with Vicroria
Whitmarsh because vou heard the testimony of Jimmy Hathcox.

He sald that he'd never seen a look like that on the
defendant's face before. He said it was a meapn look. He aaid
cthat that look, coupled with the poises he heard coming from
the apartment next-door -- coming from the apartment of Brian
Q'Keefe, the defendant in this cgse, and Victoria Whitmarsh,
he thought to himself, man, I hope he's not over there beating
the crap out of her.

You also know that he was angry based on Coockie's
Lestimony, Charles Toliver. He told ¥ou, man, that look

scared me. I ran as fast as I could out of that apartment

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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BELLON & MANINGO, LTD.
LANCE A, MANINGO, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 006405
AMANDA 5. GREGORY
Nevada Bar No.: 11107

132 8. Sixth Screet, Suite 102
Las Vegas, Nevada 39101
Telephone: (702} 4526299
Facsimile: (702)452-6298
Email: lam@bellonandmaninge.com
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Attorney for Defendani
BRIAN O'KEEFE '
ety
DISTRICT COURT um- u Cantinas Trig
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA | ’I wm,mm,u
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Plaintiff, )
)
i ) Case No.: C250630
) Dept. No.: 17
BRIAN O’KEFFE, )
}
Defendant. )
)
OT INUE TRIAL

COMES NOW Defendant BRIAN O'KEEFE, by and thraugh his attorney of record,
LANCE A, MANINGO, ESQ., of BELLON & MANINGO, LTD., and moves this court for a

continuance of the trial currently set for June 11, 2012
i
1
fit
it
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fitf
i
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This Metion is made 2nd based upon the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the attached Affidavit of LANCE A.
MANINGO, ESQ., and such cral argument as the Court may entertain at the time of the hearing in
this matter.

DATED this 30™ day of May, 2012,

BELLON & MANINGO, LTD.

By:

LANCE A. MANINGO, ES(Q),
Nevada Bar No.: 006405
AMANDA S. GREGORY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 11107

732 5. Sixth Street, Ste. 102

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attomey for Defendant

BRIAN O'KEEFE

NOTICE OF MOTION

TOG:  THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff: and
TO: DAVID ROGER, ESQ., Chief Deputy District Attorney
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned

will bring the foregoing Motion to Continue Trial on for hearing before the above-entitled

Coutt on thsa day of June, 2012, at the hour of 'i - {S/ :&m, in the

District Court, Department XVII, or as soon thereafter as counse| may be heard.

DATED this 30" day of May, 2012.

BELLON & MANINGO, LTD.
.Y

By: Q
LANCE A, MANINGO! ES¢).

MNevada Bar Ne.: (06405
AMANDA 5. GREGORY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 11107

732 8. Sixth Street, Ste. 102

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attomey for Defendant

BRIAN O’KEEFE
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STATE OF NEVADA }
COUNTY OF CLARK ;5&

LANCE A. MANINGO, ESQ., being first duly swom according 1o law, deposes and
states as follows:

i. That your affiant is an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of
Nevada and am a partner of BELLON & MANINGO, LTD. ~ Your affiant makes this affidavit
based upan his own personal knowledge except as to those matters stated upon information and
belief and as 1o those matters your affiant believes them to be true,

Z. That your affiant is the standby counse} assigned to the matter of the State of
Nevada v. Brian, Case No.: C250630.

3 That the Defendant is seeking relief in Federal Court.

4, That the Defendant currently has an open case in the United States Cowet of
Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, Case No.: 12-15271,

L That your affiant has consulted with the Defendant and his Federal Public
Befender on the instant matter.

6. That itis in the best interests of the Defendant to have this trial continued until
the conclusion of his federal case.

7. The request to continue the trial is not brought for the purpose of harassment of
1o cause urklue delay,
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. 8 That your affiant has discussed this continuapce with the Defendant and

Defendant is agreeable to said continuance.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

__,—’—%

LANCE A MANINGO, ESQ.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 1o before me
this 3] day of May, 2012.

O P
DAWN THANQUILLO
SLATE OF MV & - CCHNTY (OF <L
M APPOMMTIENT EAF, WL §, 213
No: 9334231

NOTARY PUBLIC in
said County and State.

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

INTRODUCTION

This Motion to Continue Trial is necessary as the Defendant is involved in federal habeas
appellate proceedings in United St:a!es Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Given the
circurnstances oullined herein, the trial date should be continued.

EL
STAT NT OF THE CASE

Deferdant BRIAN O’KEEFE was charged “&m one (1) count of Murder, one {1} count of
Degrees of Murder, and one (1) count of Use of a Deadly Weapon or Tear Gas in Commission of a
Crnme.
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it

103453




BELLON & MANINGO, 11D,

152 Soumi SooTH STRERE, s 102

Lag YVeoas, Nevaoa BA10T
TO2-452-2200 » TO2-L52-5208 Fax

- e T N - S " S .5 )

B2 b3 b2 MMMMHMHHHHHHHH
gqmmgmmwammqmmhmmuo

On or about March 16, 2009 Mr. O*Keefe's first jury trial on the above charges began. It
was heard over the next 3 days until he was given a verdict of Guilty to the charge of Second
Degree Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

Mr. 'Keefe appealed his conviction but the case was remanded back ta the Clark County
District Court and set for trigl on August 23, 2010. After 9 consecutive days of trial, the Jury was
declared deadlocked and a new irial date was set to be ordered.

Mr. O'Keefe’s case was once again set for trial on January 24, 2011. Afler 3 number of
Motions and Hearings set by both the State and defense counsel, this trial was reset to June 6, 2011
Before the new trial date, Mr. O'Keefe was appointed new counsel.

Mr. Maningo was confirmexd as counset of record on June 2, 204 | and due to the change of
defense counsel, trial was vet again reset to the current date of June 11, 2012 Presently, Mr.
Maningoe is stand-by counsel.

Mr. O"Keefe has filed an appeal in the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

It is necessary for this trial to be continued pending conclusion of Mr, ('Keefe’s current
federal case. It is believed that Mr. O’Keefe’s federal public defender is requesting a stay of this
State level trial in the federal courts.

1] 8
ARGUMENT

The Court has discretion in matters of trial scheduling. Judicial efficiency and findamental
faimess to Mr. O"Keefe warrant 3 continuance of this trial.
LY
Hird
T
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(13454




Las VEGAS, NEvADA bﬁlﬂl

BELLON & MANINGO, LTD.
7492 SouTH Stety STREET. SuiTe 103
TOR-450-B200 « 704526268 Fax

w0 =~ M Oh o Gd B

e B e R i . N T SR Ty T O
N = O D W -1 ®m ot o R = e

5 & ® B8

[
o

1v,
CONCLUSION
Based upon the foregoing, Defendant requests that the trial date be vacated and 2 new trial
be set,
DATED this 30" day of May, 2012
BELLON & MANINGO, LTD.

LANCE A. MANINGO, ESQ,
Mevada Bar No.: (6405
AMANDA 5. GREGORY, E5Q).
Nevada Bar No.: 11107

732 5. Sixth Street, Ste. 102

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant

BRIAN O'KEEFE

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
L, do hereby certify that on the }i day of May, 2012, 1 did depesit a truc and
correct copy of the foregoing MOTION TO CONTINUE TRIAL in the United States
meil, first-class postage fuily prepaid, addressed as follows:
Clark County District Attoreys Office

200 Lewis Avenue
Las Yegas, Nevada 89101

iy )

An Empleyee of Bellon & Maningo, Lid.
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THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Flaintiff,

=5

BRIAN KERRY O'KEEFE,

Defendant.

. ‘

ORIGINAL
FILED IN OPEN COURT
STEVEN . GRIERSON
CLERK OF THE COURT
DISTRICT COURT JUN 12 200

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BY
CAROL DONAHOO, o

CASE NO. C250630
DEPT. NO. XV

15025083
JUAL
Ky List
1878647

CQuinn Swift
Michael Ferraro
James Simeon
D. Denyce'Brown
Deborah Lecnard
Dawson Derfelt
Thomas Roche

NS ;AW

-k

. Eric Mikuski

5:\My Documants\lury List-Q'Keefo_doc

MR

8. Pamela Hulbert
9. Jason Ansuini
10. Marc Humphries
11. Joseph McCrink
12. Nelia Humphries

JURY LIST

ALTERNATES
2. Beverly Billich
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THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintift, CASE NO: (250360
- DEPTNO: XVII
BRIAN KERRY O’KEEFE,
Defendant.
YERDICT

We, the jury in the above-entitled case, find the Defendant, BRIAN KERRY

('KEEFE, as follows:
{pleaye check the appropriate bax, sélecing only one)

] Guilty of Murder of the Second Degree With Use of a Deadly Weapon
O Guilty of Murder of the Second Degree Without Use of a Deadly Weapon

{1 Not Guilty
DATED this /$  day of June, 2012
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BELLON & MANINGO, LTD. ILE
LANCE A. MANINGO, ESQ. FILED
Nevada Bar No.: 606405 JUL 17 2012

732 S, Sixth Street, Suite 102

Las Vegas, Nevada 89181 m%

Telephone: (702) 452-6269
Facsimile: {702)452.629%

Email: lam@bellonandmaningo.com ‘DeCzE0sy k
Standby Counsel for Defendant 200
BRIAN O’KEEFE 1904205

HRABEMI

DISTRICT COURT WI
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Plaintiff, )
)
vs. ) Case Na.:  C250630
) Dept. No.:  XVII
BRIAN O’KEEFE, )
)
Defendant. b
)
UEST FOR ROUGH DRAFT T RIPFTS

TO:  COURT RECORDER - MICHELLE RAMSEY

BRIAN O'KEEFE, DEFENDANT named above, by and through his stand by counsel of
record, LANCE A. MANINGO, ESQ., of BELLON AND MANINGOQ, LTD., requests
preparation of a rough drafl transcript of certain postions of the proceedings before the district
court, as follows;

Dates of proceeding: 12/16/2011
02/17/2082
03/29/2012
06/05/2012
D6/11/2012
(641212012
06/13/2012
06/14/2012
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06/15/2012

Portions of Transcript Requested: hearing for Defendant’s Faretia canvass, hearing on
Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss, hearing on State’s Motion to Admit Prior Bad Acts, Jury trial,
all evidence presented and any arguments presented outside the presence of the jury and clasing
arguments by all counsel.

This notice requests a transeript of enly those portions of the district court procecdings
which counsel reasonably end in good faith believes are necessary to determine whather
appellate issues are present. Voir dire examination of jurors, opening statements and the
reading of jury instructions shall not be transcribed unless specifically requested above:

[ recognize that I must personally serve a copy of this form on the above named court
reporter and oppesing counsel, and that the above named court reporter shall have ten (10) days
from the receipt of this notice to prepare and submit to the district court the rongh draft

transcript requesied herein,

DATED this 9" day of July, 2012.

BELLON & MANINGO, LTD.

i,

LANCE A. MANINGO, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 006405

732 5. Sixth Street, Suite 102
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Standby Counsel for Defendant
BRIAN O'KEEFE

n}3459
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RECEIPT OF COPY

RECEIPT of the above named Defendant’s REQUEST FOR
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPTS is herchy scknowledged this day of
July, 2012,

MICHELLE RAMSEY

RECEIPT OF COPY
RECEIPT of the abave named Defendant's REQUEST
FOR ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPTS is hereby acknowledged this _LZ day
of July, 2012,
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CLERK OF THE COLUIRT

DISTRIZT COQURT

CLAEK COUNTY, NEVADRE

THE STATE CF MEVADA,
Elaintiff, CASE NO. (250630
VE. OEPT. XVII
BRIAN KERRY QfKEEFE,

Defendant .

i i M )

BEFORE THE HONCRABLE MICHASL P, WILLANI, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2011
RECORDER'S ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING RE:

ALL PENDING MOTIONS

APPEARBNCES ;
For the State: CHRISTCPFHER LALLI, ESG.,
Chief District Attorney
ELIZABETH &. MERCER, ES50Q..
Deputy District Attaorney
ror the Defendanc: LANCE A. MANINGO, EZ2Q.,

RECORDED BY: MICHELLE L. RAMSEY, COURT RECORDER

1

FOUGH DRAFT TEANSCRIET
State uf Nevada v. Brian Herry Q‘FEesfas

C25J630 ,-;ﬁr_!q_ﬁl
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA: FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2011

[Froceseding commenced at 8:34 a.m. |

THE COURT: All right, Mr, O'Keefe is here with Mr. Manings.
This is time set Zor Faretta Canvassing. Do you still wish to
represent yourself in this mazter?

THE CEFENDANT: Yes, 1 do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Al: right. Under the Sixth Amendment af the
United States Constitution you’re entitled to an assiztance of ar
attorney at all stages of a crimiral proceeding. You have the
right vo represent you and caoncduct your awn defense. The Court
cannot force a lawyer upon you should you insist that yveu want to
conduct your owh defense. You're given this right under the United

State’s Sopreme Court decision of Faretta versus Californias that

you must first krowingly and voluntarily waive and give up your
right te the assistance of an attorney befcre vwou can repressant
yourse:*; co you underxstand that, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And you do unders:iand yvou have a right to an
assistance of an attornev at all stages of a criminal proceeding?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Understand that you have a right to an assistance
of an attoerney at no cost if vou are unable to pay for an attorney?

THE LEFEMDANT: ¥es, Your Honoro.

THE COURT: B2nd, sir, for the record what’s Your age?

g
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THE DEFENZANT: Forty-eight, Your Honor.

THE COURT: What'’s your level of education?

THE DEFENDANT:; Thirteen and a half, fourteen vears, sir.

THE CQURT: 3ir, do you presently have any health Zssues that
piace you under medication?

THE DEFENZANT: No, Your Honer,

THE COURT: You have any medical conditions that might affect
Your ability to represent yourself?

THE BEFENDANT: HNot that 1'm aware of, Your Eonor,

THE COURT: And, sir, are you aware of any menzal health
i=sues?

THE DEFENDANT: HNo, Your Honer.

THE COURT: Are you under -- under any type of medication for
mental health issues?y

THE DEFENDENT: No, ¥Your Henor.

THE COURT: Have you ever keen under medication for mental
health issues?

THE DEFENDANT: MNg, Your Honar,

THE COURT: And are you presently taking any medicaticn at
this zime?

THE DEFENZANT: Ho, Your Honor. None,

THE COURT: Sir, have you been coerced or threatened in any
way to waive your right to an attorney?

THE EEFENDANT: MNo, Your Henor,

THE COQDRT: And, sir, why have you decided that vou wish to

3
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represent yvourself?

THE EFFENDANT: It's s personal issue, Your Honor. It's a
persoral case now. Fersonal matter and I just desire to defend
myself, EReep it simple.

T4E COURT: I’'m just curious. Are you displeased with the
services yeu have received from Mr, Maningos?

THE DEFENDANT: I rather nat comment on thaz, Your Honor.

THE CCOURT: And so well are vou pleasad with his services,
weill put it that way?

THE DEFENDANT: T have nothing personal agaims:t Mr. Maningao.
What I grestly feel I was wrongfully charged and it’s a lot of
years have gone by. Nothing’s getting done. There’s 2 iot of
issues that Just kesp getting ignored and my gosh, I’m going to
have to file stuff possibly pro nunc tunc or pro tunc to get airs
corrected.

I mean, 1t's just I know the case, Your Honer. I was the
only persgon there, I am the Defendant. I know everything from the
beginning to where we stand right now, sir. I desire not to wait
any longer. I'm ready te proceed. I'wve been studying the law for
over two years Jjust on specific issues. I'm not Eryving to impress
anyene. I don’t want credit, but you will ke sutstanded at my
Writ. You will be amazed; that’s ail T have to say.

THE COURT: 3But you understand Mr. Maningo had ncthing to da
with the charges being filed against you?

THE DETENDANT: I understand thaz, Your Hongr, but —-

4
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THE COURT: &And he's advisad me zhat he will be ready for
zrial June of dext year,

THE LDEFENDANT': Well, ses, Your Heonor, you're —- you're taking
it on the metion already., You'!re probably going to deny my Writ --

THE COURT: Sir --

THE DEFENDANT: -- and that this isn't going to proceed.

THE COURT: —- sir, listen to me. No Writ has heen filed. o
Writ is on calendar teday, so I'm not denying anyone’s Writ.

THE CEFEMNDANT: Yes, Your Honor. You're absolutelwy right,

THE COURT: Do ycu vnderstand the criminal laws complex area
¢f the law where experience and professional training is baoth
reguired and desirable?

TAE DEFEMDANT: Yes, Your Honor., It's very —— yes, sir.

THE COURT: 51z, do youw understard that sslf representation is
often unwige and Defendant may -- and the Defendant may conduct the
defense to his or her detriment?

THE CEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 35ir, do you have any experience or familiarity
with the legal proceedings besides this particular case?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And what are those?

THE CEFENDOANT: Battery domestic violence case, Judge Vega,
2006,

THE COURT: Actually, you've had a couple of domestic violience

convicticns, correct; misdemeancrs and felony?

5
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THE DEFENDANT: Cne felony, Your Honor, [indecipherable] of
course, the felony iacludes two misdemeancrs with —- thiee, total
¢f three misdemeanors that were ephanced o a felony.

THE COURT: Sir, have you ever had any legal training either
through any trade schools, community colleges, high school, in
priser systam?

IHE DEFENDANT: Self education in the last four vears, Yaugz
Hooor.

THE CODRT: Okay, but no formalizec legal training?

THE DEFENDANT: Manuals,

THE COURT: Sir, do you khow the difference betwesn an apening
statement and & ¢losing argumernt?

THE DEFENDANT: 2bsolutely, Your Honor.

THE COURT: &ir, de you noew how to object t£to a guesticn that
you deem to pe improper?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeas, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You understand that you have 30 days within which
to file an appeal from an entry of order denying -- denying post
conviction raiief if we get to that point from previous trials —-

THE DEFENZANT: Y¥Yes, Your Honor. 2bsclutely.

THE COURT: -—- to see 1f anything’'s been filed? 2And also
there’s certain time limitations if you are found guilty in this
case, there are time limitations in which you have to file = notice
of appeal; do you undecstand that, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. Thirty days from the judament of

g
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convietion, Your Hooor,

THE COURT: And do vou undersrand that the -- an attorney
Tepresenting vou is trained in the law, has the skill and
gxperience of properly conducting a defense on your case?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that an attorney kriows the
elements of the offense vou have been charged with and the wossikble
defenses that may be presented an your beha’#7

THE CEFENZANT; VYes, Your Honer.

THE COURT: And, sir, often times criminal :zrials present
difficult choices as te strategy and zactics and even dLtornevs can
differ as to the proper defense to make in a case. What I hear
from you is you are net trzined te make those choices. An attorngy
knows the degrees of -- the State nust prove -- must mest to prove
your guilt beyond a reasonable doubt and by investigatien review of
the State’s evidence maybe determined that the State can not prove
its case; you understand that, sir?

THE CEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are vou aware of the dangers and disadvantagecus
and consequences of self representation?

THE DEFENDBNT: Yes, Your Honoxr.

THE COURT: Sir, I must adviss you that you must know and
comply with the same procedural rules as lawyers; do you understand
that?

THE [LDEFENDANT: ¥es, Your Honor.,

7
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THE COURT: I gan not help you comply with those rules.

THE DEFENDANT: vYes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You must follow all legal rules even though you
may not know them; do you understand that, sir?

THE DEFEM3ANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You will not be able allowed to complain later on
appeal aboub the competency of the effectiveness cf your
representation: do you understand tohat?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Ygur Honor.

THE COURT: You understand that I can not grant you pr will
the jail grant you any special library privileges?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 2nd, sir, do you understand that the effectivenscs
of your defense mayvbe diminished or decreased by wvour dual role asg
dn attorney and as an accused?

THE CEFENDAMT: Yes, I thought about it greatly. Yes, Your
Honer. I understand.

THE COURT: Sir, do yvou understand a Defendant such as
vourself who maybe unfamiliar with all the legal procedures, may
allow the Prosecutsrs an advantage in this case?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I ds, Your Bonor.

THE COURT: And that you may not ke able to make effective Lgea
of all of your legal rights; 4o you understand that, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You may make tactical decisions that produace

8
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unintendad conseguences,

THE CEFENZANT: ¥es, Your Honor.

THE CGQURT: Once you decide on self representation, sir, and
if I grant your moticn, you may not change your mind 1o the middle
of the proceedings and request aan attorney.

THE CEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honoz.

THE COURT: 3ir, if stand-hy counsel is appointec, stand-by
coungel is not required to advise or prowvide you with legal advice;
deo you understand that, sir?

TdE DEFENZANT: Yes, sir, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you wish the Court to appoint stand-by counsel
Lo assist you?

Sir, stand-by counsel, if you don’'t request any
assistance, they won’t get involved in your case, but in the event
you may have some questions, they would be there to answer your
questions for you? Ars you requesting stand-by counssl?

THE DEFERDANT: I have no -- can I get more clarificazier on
appointment, Your Honor, before I answer the guestion, sir, with
all due respect?

THE COUERT: What's your guesticno, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. There’s certain documen:is I'm qoing to
need 1f T would keep -- I’m just saying just for argument right now
-— 1if I would choose to keep Mr. Maninge on 4s stand-by cournsel, I
want it tg be clarified that there’s certain documents - nead and I

need -- I711 produce a list properly, and I need thosze documents.

o
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S0, 1f I keep him as stand-by, yocu know, I need access to specific
documents, Your Homor, is all I'm saying,

I basically have no problem with him S5taying on, but he
can not affect, you know, my discovery regquests, Can we come to an
agresment there? Otherwise, I'm just going to have to say I'm on
my own. I don’t need stand-by counsel, and I think I'm trying to
be very --

THE COURT: S8ir —-

THE DEFENDANT: -- mature and professional and honest aheut
it, vou knaw. “'m Just saving I have oo problem. I actually have
no problem with my documents staying there in the evert something
and just produce it on a list and saying I'm not going to bother
him for anything Annecessary, but then I'11 produce a ligt, this,
this, this, get it to me.

If -- if the Court feels that’'s like infringing on the
Faretza, then at that point 1711 Just have to go on my own and —-—
and I won't use him as stand-by counsel, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I den't believe it’s appragriate for Mr, Maningo
te be your runner or your CopyY assistance, but you have the right -
— You nave the right since I'm going o deem you indigent to file a
motion and to seek an appaintment of an invaestigater, If you hawve
a lisz of documerts, photographs -

THE DEFENDANT: Righz. I understand that. I didn’t mean
persenally Mr. Maningo. I understand. He's an attorney., That’s

what the investigator is for, Judge, I understand that.
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THE COURT: Ckay, s¢ I'm not guite clear right now as what you
do or do net want Mr. Maningo to do or any other attorney because
you can’t have iz both ways. You can’t represent vourself and have
him do half your case.

THE DEFENDANT: Right. I'1) just go with the investigator and
gg oh my own,

THE COURT: ©Okay, Are you sure?

THE CEFENDANT: I'm positive. Absolutely.

THE CCURT: Again, you're goling o need to file the
appropriate motion to have an investigator appointed; do vou
understand that?

THE CEFENDANT: 2And I do have something for your already this
morning.

THdE COURT: Well, it has to be filed to the proper procedure -
~ proceduresy do you understand thatg?

THE DTEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Sir, do -- you must determine also how to subpoena
witness to testify on your half —- on your behalf: do g ibi
understand that, sirc?

THE CEFENDANT: Yes, Your Hapor.

THE COURT: Do yvou know how to subpoena an individual ?

THE DEFENIANT: Yes, Your Henor.

THE COURT: And also understand that the Deputy District in
this case are trained to observe the jurors and zelec: the cnes

they believe are favorable to their case; do you know how to

i3

BGUGH DRRTT TRANBCRIBT
State of Newvada v. Brianm Kerry O0*Hsefe

c250630 nﬂ:}q-{l




10

19

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

dizgualify a jurar, s:r?

THE DEFENJANT: Absclutely, Your Henor.

THE CODRT: Sir, do you Xnow the conseguence if vou decide to
tastify on your awn behalf?

THE DEFENDANT: Yas, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sir, and do you understand what the charges are
that have been filed against you?

THE DEFENDANT: Absolutely, Your Honor.

THE COURT: &And what was that charge?

THE CEFENDANT: Second degree malice murder, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well, according to the seécond amended information,
its murder of the second degres with use of a deadly weapon: do you
understand that, sirc?

THE DEFENZANT: Yes, Your Honor. MRS 203.010, 200.0430, Your
Honor; 133.165, Your Honor. Yes.

THE COURT: Do you understand the —- the offense that has been
filed against you may include a lesser Znoluded cffenses, sir?

THE DEFEMOANT: Shouldn't now, but yes, Your Honer.

THE CGURT: 2and that’'s up to you to decide not me?

THE DETENDANT: T guess I can try.

THE COURT: Do you understand that, sir?

THE DEFENZANT: That becomes a legal argument. T don’t agree
with that, Your Honor. You're dsking -- wou want me 1o answear that
in the affirmative.

THE COURT: No. I'm saying, do you understand that there may

1z
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be lesser included offenses to this charge?

THZ DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honaor.

THE COURT: Sir, do you understand the nature of the charge
against you?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Hongr.

THE COURT: Do vou understand any possible defenses -hat ¥ou
may have to the charge?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Yaur Honar.,

THE COURT: You understand any mitigating factsrs thar You
maybe able to assert in this case?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.,

THE COURT: You understand that an attorney can research the
law for similsr cases and present possikble defenses; o you know
how to research the law, sir?

THE CETENDANT: Y¥Yesz, Your Hornor.

THz COURT: You know the range ¢f punishment for this
particular charge if you were found guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Henor.

THE COURT: Does the Defendant gqualify for habitval treatment?
Does anyone know?

MR. LALLI: I think he -- he does, Your Honor. He doss. He
has two Nevada felony priors. One is the domestic violence third
oifense which is a 2006 conviction. The other is for burglacy
which is a 2004 conviction. So he does qualify.

THE COURT: You understand, sir, that the State may ssEek to,

13
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if you were found guilty of another felony, you may seek tao have

you treated under the criminal -- criminal habirua’ echancement
statute?
THE DEFENDANT: I guess you can —- y2s, Your Honor,

THE COURT: Do yvou understand that, zir?

THE CEFENDANT: Yes, Your Horor.

THE COURT: Sir, do you also understand thabt its typically
VEry unwise to represent yourself in any criminal procesdings?

THE CEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor. Bus it also car be very
Positive, ¥Your Honor.,

THE COQOURT: I understand, Your Honor.

THEZ DEFENDANT: Very positive.

THE COURZT: Well, the Court dees find that you are competent
Lo walve your corstitutional right to be represented by an
attorney, sir. And, sir, are vou waiving this right freeliy and
voluntarily and koowingly?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Hopor.

THE COURT: The Court also so finds. Andg, sir, do wou wish to
have stand-by counsel appointed?

THE DEFENDANT: Neo, Your Hongr.

THE COURT: Anything from the State?

MR, LALLI: Wo, Your Honaoar.

THE CORT: Mr, Maningo?

MR. MANINGG: No, Your Honor. May I Just have a moment with

Mr. C'Easfe?

14
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THE CCURT: 3Sure.

MR. MANINGO: Z just -- I just want to explzin -- 1
represented other glients as stand-by counsel. If I could just
have a moment wizh him just to explain what T would do# iz that
Appropriate?

THE COURT: Absolutely., And, Mz, Q' Eeefe, if you do reguest
stand-by counsel, I am inclined to grant that regquest and have Mr.
Maningo act as your stand-by counsel.

MR. MANINGC: Thank vou.

[Defense attorney conferring with Defendant]

M=, MANINGO: Thank you, Your Honor,

THE COURT: Mr, C'Keefe, dc you wish to have stand-by counsel
appointed?

THE DEFENDANT: Yesg, Your Horor. 1711 take Mr. Mzningg if
vou'll still grant that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. I will grant that reguest, Sir,

Mr. Maningo, if you need a different type of order
appointing you to this case as stand-by, Flease submit 2t to
chambers and I'll have that signed for vou.

MR, MANINGC: Thank you, sir. 2nd there is already and
investigator eppointed --

THE COURT: All right,

MR, MANINGO: -- or approved through either T think Your Honor
or Mr. Christersesn’s office.

THE COURT: And what was that investigator’ e name?

1%
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MR, MANINGO: Craig Retke.

THE COURT: Mr. O'Heafe, you‘re representing yourself now. Do
you wish te use that investigator in this case? If vou don' £, vou
need to file the appropriate metion.

THE DEFENDANT: No. He was already assigned, Your Honor., And
I have -- I have no problem with Mr, Retke -—- I have nc prokblem
with him stayving on. Thare's ta be no need for any UNnnecessary
eitra,

THE COURT: Okay. We do have a tr-al date.

THE DEFENDANT: July 1177,

THE COURT: June 1%, not July.

THE DEFEMNDANT: July,

THE COURT: And we have a calendar call Junme 37 do Yol
understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, yes I do, Your Honor, but may I
take the Court's indulgence. Please, Your Honor, I knoow it can he
done. You have the empowerment. It’s croperly presented, 1 have
one for Mr. Lalli. Could you just sign this? It's just for copies
of the inmate accounts. There's #lready an acccunt set and I've
already properly wrote them.

The law library supervisor said I need to cantact inmare
acceunt whien T did. Clearly right here, Your Hopnor. 1It's very
simple, real guick. A&nd they zaid -- clearly they said, yeah, just
get an order of the Judge sign the document. 8o I pristed it ous

really nice and made a cooy. There's cne far vou and one for him.

L
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If you can just sign it and fi.e *t in cpen Court, it would ke --
itts ==

MR, LALLZ: Your Honor, I chiect to the Court signing any
crder withcut the 3tate having had the cpRpportunity bto review It

THE DETENDANT: And there's a copy for Mr. ialii riaht there.

THE COURT: What I'm going zo do is if we hHave copies for
everyhody.

THE DEFTENDANT: Yes, sir, there is.

THE COURT: Hang on. If nct, my law clerk will make them
right acw. We'll put this en calendar first week of January so the
State can file any oblecticns or whatever motisns ¥ou have there,
sir, okay. &nd I just don’t sign things until I read them. Ckay,
do you understand that?

THE DETENDANT: W®ell, it’s for copies, Your Honar --

THE COQURT: T understand that, but —-

THE DEFENDANT: -- that I need to get —-

THE COURT: ~- we're going to review it., If it'sz -- I'm nob
going Lo except any e€x parte moticons at this time, okay. So if you
wigh to submit that, please de so. Wkat I'm going to dg, sir -- if
you have a copy now for the Court --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do. T go= a Copy.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFERDAWT: 1T --

MR, MANINGO: May I apprsach, Yeour Honor?

THE COUFRT: Yes. What I'm going to do is I*11 have my Courc

1%
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Clerk file -~ have this filed and we’ll set iz —- do vou have a
motien, sir, vou Jjust have an osder?

THE CEFENDANT: 2t was just an order. They just said that if
we could just get you te sign it. This Copy My Coples and defer
Lhe cost to Draw Christensen’s cffice. There’s an accodnt for
indigent for pro se litigants. It's very simple. It's just very -
- it's just -- wou know, I have just a coupie of hundred dollsrs in
my account and —-

THE CCURT: Okay, sir, hang on. Your order says, order
granting ex parte motien incidental cests, ckay. I'm reading it.
You wrote it.

THE DEFENDANT: Right and I specified that.

THE COURT: All right, Hang on. It says, granting ex parte
motion, okay. Any motions in this case T want them in writing,
okday. So¢ your oral motion is nes accepted at this time. S0 please
file a written motion and then we’ll TUt it on <alendar. State has
any ohjection, they’ll file it and then we can have a nearing on it
and I'1l make & decisicna, okay.

THE DEFENDANT: I was just crally {indecivherable] I just
hoping that you would.

THE COURT: But your order ig --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Ycour Hanor. You're absclutely right,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Hang on. Let me finish my sentence, ockay. Your

order is incorplete or it's -- it's not appropriate because its

13
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identifying that I've reviewed something that does not exist, okay.
And sometimes in open court I will probably accept oral motions as
I would with any attorney, but the Way your order is written itfs
inappropriate.

THE DEFENIAEMT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay,

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: So I'm not going te put “t on ca_endar. Youfre
going to file the appropriate motion, all right.

THE DETENDANT: BAbsclutely.

THE COURT: And then we'll have a hearing, ckay.

THE DEFENDANT: If I choose te do that. Otherwise, 711 just
pay it myself, Your Horeor.

THE COURT: Do whatever.

THE DEFEMDANT: Yes, sir.

THE CCQURT: Whatever yeou decide.

THE CEFENDANT: Whatever I Hzve o do. Yes, sir, Your Honor.

THE COURT: &ll right.

MR, LALLZ: Your Honor, there -- there iz cre remzining issue
and that 15 the calendering of a time tc argue the bad act meotion.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. LALLT: The admissibilizy now that we’we had the
evidentiary hearing. As the Court knows I'm in a six week capital
cage with Your Honor starting --

THE COUET: Januacy.

L9
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M. LALLI: ~=- January, 50 January 10", ¥e’re actually
starting that cn Tuesday.

THE COURT: Tec's argue that motieon on January 55, Thursday.
Do you know what moticon we’re referring to, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: The State’s motion in limine for other bad
acts for other crimes.

THE COURT: =Right. A~d we had ac evidentiary hearing I
believe one or two days.

THE DEFENDANT: I will be -- if Mr, Lalli has no abjaction
could we get a later Sste, Your Honox, kecauss I would iike to now
be appointed vro se., I would like to fiie By own moticon and
cpposition to dismiss the State’s motion to encer in limine metion
for ether cximas.

THE COURT: 5ir, the time for oppositions in that metion have
come and gone. You can argue against the request by the Stats,
okay. This is one of the things when we repressut yourself, we
don't give you specizl rules. You're under the same rules as an
attorney and if Mr, Msningo asked to file ancther opwosition te the
metion, T would deny that, okay ‘cause the time for £iling that has
come and gone.

And that’s cne of the problems of salif representation: deo
you understand that, sirp?

THE CLEFENDENT: That’s fine. 1I/1! just go off Ms. Palm's
metion and I'11 just orally argue Zt.

THE COURT: All right. We’ll see you on January 5.

20
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Ma. LALLI: Well, I was wondering :f the Court would have any
desire to perhaps do that at the end of February after the tria:,
I understand that it's bean burnped a2 number of times.

MR. MANINGO: And, Your Honor -- I'm gorry —— T think that
might ke more appropriate. I've been preparing for that -~ for
that motion and that argument, Mr, Q'Keefe hasn't. 1 mean, if
Your Heaor’s granting his requestc to represent haimself, then I'11
yield to whet Mr. O'Keefe wants, but I know that he hasn't had all
the file decuments in his possess.on that I have had and he may
need more time to review those himself.

THE COURT: All right. &ll righ:, February 17°%, 8:45.

MR. LALLI: Thank vyeou, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. MANINGGS: Thank you, Your Horor.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, Your Honor, Happy helidays to you
oo, Sir.

THE COURT: You too, sir.

THE DEZENDANT: Thank you, Your Honor.

[Froceeding concluded at @9:-17 a.m. |
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA:; FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 17, 2012

.Proceeding commenced at B:56 a.m. |

THE COURT: Good morning everyone. This iz ~- tHis is a
continued hearing on motion by the State ¢ present evidence of
other bad acts previopusly filed. Mr. C'Keefe’s here with stand-by
coungel.

We had exhibits in evidence, argument at previonus
hearirg. I located my notes for the State had pressnted
information regarding varjious prior agts. Had the State completed
their presentaticn --

M5. MERCER: We have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- as far as prior acts?

MS. MERCER: Yes, Your Honor.

TAE COURT: O%ay. And where are we at as far as defensa?
Were we -— I don't know =f Zefg3 just for argument, is that why we
continue this for?

M3. MERCER: Well, in the —- at the January 20°%, 2011 hearing
Your Honor had indicated tchat ¥ou were -~ that you would likely —-
whatever we can prove you would probably let in because you found
that it was relevant given kis -- the previous defenses asserted by
the Defendant, It was just an issue whethar or not we could prove
them by clear and convincing evidence. And so I'm not really sure

THE COURT: Okay.

2
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M3. MERCER: -- whaz it’s -~ T guess today it's jusc on far --

THE COURT: I den’t know if I said if any can prave becaygse §
mean there's guize a few acts and there's & tireframe,

MS. MERCER: You said vou'd ke inclined to let some of them
in.

THE COURT: Right.

M5. MERCER: Correct. Yeah,

THE COURT: Yes. Okay. T guess at this point we’ll just have
argument. 55, ary argument by the State for me Lo allow all of +the
gvents in ox scme of them?

M5, MERCER: What Specifically would you like me to address?
Just whether or not we feel that we’ve proven them --

TAE CCURT: Correct.

M3, MERCER: -- by clesar and cenvineing evidence?

THE CQURT: Yes,

M5. MERCER: Okay, Well, with regerds tao the Janzary 7 of
2003 incident, thre incident whare he slapped Victoria in the facae
and caused her to have a nose bleed, the State believes that that
was proven by clear and convincing evidence.

feur Honer heard from David Whitmarsh, Victoria's ex-
husband, regardirg the excited utterances that she made to Rim
about how she sustained the injuries,

In additisn, you heard 8-1-1 pall that was placed by
David with regard to that incident and the background of that 9-1-1

call you can actually hear Victoria as well as the Defendant. She

3

FQUGH DBAFT TRANSCRIET A
State of Nevada v. Brian Kerry ¢'Keefe 103
C250830

185




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
14
20
21
22
23
24

25

says I think my rnose is broken, Sormething Lo that effecc on that
9-1-1 call.

In addition, David testifiec to the bruises and swalling
thazt he ohgerved oo Vietoria after she ran Intec his apartment.
David zlso testified that after Ehe victim ran ta His sparTment,
the Defendant followed and he was banging on the door making
threats. Be also testified that when the police showed up there
was some sort of a scuffle and he saw the Defendant and the police
cfficer on the ground as they were trying to place Aim under arrest
in the patrol car.

four Honor also received phatos of Victoria’s injuries
from that ingidernt and you’wve heard from Officer, I believe it was
Pointen [phonetici, I'm not sure how ¥ou pronounce it, but he
cbserved a nose bleed and he describad it as an active nose bleed.
He said she was helding an ice pack on her nose and that she was
cry.ng hystericzslly and that Victoriz relayed to him that he
smacked her opn the face.

Do you want me to go incident by incident or --

THE COURT: Let’s do that ‘cause You have to prove sach by
clear and convincing, argue that and I'11 let the defense have
their opportunity teo argue that. Yoo didn’t.

M5. MERCER: Okay.

THE COURT: 2nd also ncow that ¥ou proved them by clear and
convincing, but zlso whether or not iz's undar 48.045, so —-~

M5. MERCER: Skay.

q
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THE COURT: -- go ahead,

M5. MERCER: The next incident was the august 4%, 2003
incident that we advised Your Honor that we were no longer seeking
Le go into that incident.

S0 the next one will be the November 1£°" 5f 2003
incident. In that case, the Defandant pled guilty misdemeanor
battery domestic violence and we admitted asserted by the Court
records that exhibited that plea of guilty, so obviously it’s the
State’s -- State’s position that that has most certainly been
proven by clear and convincing evidence,

You also heard from Qfficer Radmaopsvich [Phonetic] who
was responding to ancther incident in the area when hae heard the
sound of breaking glass and commotion. He and his partner went to
F2 seg what was going on. When they mace contact with the
ccoupants of the apartment, they came into contact with Ms. Mottt
[phonetic] and Defendant and Victoria Whitmarsh, they szid that --
that Victocria was hysterical and that she had wisible injuries,
She relayed the events te him. He went chrough those events as
relaved to him by Victoria.

Your Honor alse received an offer of proct with regards
to Honey Mott's [phonetis] teatimeny or expected testimony in
regards to that incident., And you received Exhibit 4 which was Lhe
certified Court records.

The events that had been relayed to the officer where the

-- Victoria was grabbed by the arm and pushed down in the kitchen,
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she was struck in the head with a fis: and told her neighbor. They
also learned that =he neighbior heard the commotion, went to the
apartment when she saw Victoria runnisg out, she kind of grakbbed
ker and brought her into the apartiment. And once they were ingide
of Honey Mott's [phonetic] apartment the Defendant came gver trying
Lo get in and he ultimately broke our the window of the apartmens
and entered,

The injuries observed on Victeria under that ingident
were bruising and redness around her neck and a lump on her head;
that was per the cfficer’s testimeony,

Then with regards to the November 26 of 2603 incident,
Your Henor alsc heard quite a bit of svidence with regards to this
incident as well as medical records. There was David Whitmarsh's
testimony that he saw the victim go downstairs to get her stuff
from Briam O'Keefe because he moved out and was stayving with David
at the time and that she naver came hack. A few days later he
started getting threatening phone calls from the Lefendant
regarding the return of some property. David ulvimately ended up
caliing the %-i-1 dispatch to request a well care check beczuse he
hadn’t seen or heard from Viectoria in a few davs and he was
worried.

He said that he made -- that he came into contact with
Victorlia when she was taken to the hospital following the domestic
viclence incident; that she was very excited. She was crying. She

was black znd blue from head to toe. ¥Your Honor received the
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photes that were taken by David Whitmarsh regarding that incident.
iou also received medical records that were marked as Exhibit 7,

It world be the State’s position that those would come in under zhe
Flores State that we previously cited too because they are non-
testimonial., 2And they're chviousiy business reccrds.

You zleo heard from Officer Finney [phonetic]l. He
noticed bruising on Victoria. Sore appeared old. Some aspearsad
new. While he was tryving to talk to Vieteria when he ieitially
responded teo the incident, the Defendant was interrupting ancg
teliing her to be guiet and don’t 5ay anything; things of that
nature,.

When he spoke to the Defendant to Ly Lo get his side of
the story, the Defendan: claimed that nothing happened, He was
uncocperative during the course of the investigatien and then
witimazely was —- his demeanor was documented 28 being crying and
apelegetic. That case was ultimately dismissed pursuant to
negotiations because he pled in ancther case, but given the
evidence offered by the State at the Petrocelli Hearing that the
State would submit that it’s been proven by clear and convincing
evidence,

and I believe there was also testimony from Setective
Morgenstern regarding that ‘ncidert when He was testifying to the
April 29" of 2004 incident. Mr, Talli questicned him wich regards
to him having confronted the Defendant with tha phaotos from thac

Hovember 2802 incident and asking him, well didn't you claim tha:z
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nothing happened here when he spoke te the detectives too. And she
said, yeah. And he ultimately admitted chat he had lied ta the
officers that he had, in fact, caused those November 2903 injuries.

The next incident would be the April 2! 2004 inozdent;
that was the incident in which he ultimately ended up being charged
and convicted for the batteryv demestic vislence third offense.

Once again the State would submit chvicusly that we’ve provern that
by clear and coenvinecing evidence that he was, in fact, convicted
and we pffered the judgment of conviction in thar case, the yveardict
form and the information setring forth the specific allegations
that he was convicted of. Those were certified copies.

You a’so heard Zrem Sergeant FPrice who testified that the
Tirat time he responded, there was no probakble cause to make an
arrest because he didn’t observe any injuries and it was basicaily
he said, she said:; that he had taken the Defendant and dropped him
aff in the area of a friend’s house Becauss he told bBoth parties
that he needed to have cooling off pericd. He didn’t want it
escalating any further,

Then about an hour and fifteen minutes to an hour and a
half later, he gets ancther call to go back to Victoria’s residence
because there’s beean g battery. He said that when he returned
later the victim had visible injuries; that was the cage in which
the allegations where he slapped Victoria in the face repeatedly
and broke her glasses. He noted -- he noted that the glasses were

broken.
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The next incident would be a day Iater on April 371 2004.
The allegation was that he went back tso her residence and he was
upzet with her for having reported the April 2™ incident to the
police. He slapped her in the face. Your Honoz received Exhibit 9
which was the cerrified copies of the Muni records documenting that
he, in fact, pled guilty to that offerse. 5o once again the State
would submit its clearly met it's burden of proving that allegation
by clear and convincing evidence.

The last incident is the May 2% 2004 incident in which
the Defendant was charged with multigle offenses. He was found
gquiity of burglary and battery by a jury at the jury trial. Those
were the certified copiss of judament of convicticon, the verdict
form and the information were admitted as State’s Exhibit 10 at the
hearing. Once again we would submit that the allegations of
burglary and batzery were rroven by clear and convincing svidence,

You heard from -- how do you proncunce this name, Chris?

MR. LALLI: Moniot,

M5, MERCER: Detective Moniot, the -- one cf =hae sexual
assault detectives was assigned to the case, he testified that he
came inte contact with Victoria at the hospital; that she was
crying, she was holding herself, she was walking very gingerly.

She had numerous injuries that he testified tog.

¥ou also heard from Detective -— [erect-ve Morgenstern

who interviewed the Defendant. In that case, ne ciaimed that they

had an argument, but ke had no idea How she received the injuries.
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It was that statement that caused him to confront the Defendant
with the Newverber 2002 photos. The allegations in that casze where
the over several hours he had Physically abused Victoria Whitmarsh.

And, Your Honor, as we stated previgusly it’s the State’s
position that &11 of those incidents are relative and highly —-
relevant and highly precbative in this case because the Defendant’s
~- defenses have opeen kind of a quasi self defense accident-type
gllegation. He claims that there was a, I beliewve, a struggle in
that he accidentally stabbed thne victim when he was trying to get
the knife from her. She fell on the -— she fall once the knife
while they were struggling over it.

The cases that we cited to in our brief clearly indicate
that more than ary other type of case in domestic viaolence homicide
cases, those prier incidents are extremely probative because they
shiow —- they go o iatent and the Defendant’s motive because it
shows that over a periocd of years he has bezten this women and
expraessed ill-will towards hesr.

Several of the cases alse found they ¢cme in whepn the
Defendant claims self defense or accident specifically the --
Court’s indulgence, Yocur Honor -- in the Henjamin case the
Defendant and the victim had a toxie relationship fraughkt with
pPhysical abuse by the Defendant against the victim. They were both
dlcoholics, They'd broken up recently, but thnen one night decided
Lo start drinking again. He claimed that he acted in self defense

and he couldn’t remember very many of the detazls leading up to ber
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End the Court found that it was relevant because it
tended to prove the Defendant intenticnally murdered his wife and
that ke had a motive to do so and that the killing was not &ao
accident or a mistake.

In the Iligen case, the Dafendant's deferse was that he
actually shot his wife. The Court found that the pricr acts of
domestic viglence by the Defendant gagainst the victims were
relevant because it tended to show that it was an intentiaonal aor
on his part, not an accident; that same principle would seem to
apply in this case.

They also found that it was relsvant o prove motive and
they define that as a hostilicy showing him likely o de viclence
against the victim,

Im the Btate versus Laprade case that we cited; it's &

Vermont case. The Court noted that ir these Types of rcases without
admitting that evidence of domestic viglence, a jury is left
without the knowledge of the acts tha*s occurrsd within a
relationship and they don'r -- they’re not given the full pictura,
And these types of czses it's important to present them with a fr11
pPicture so that they can determins whether er not it censtitutes
furder.

And T think zhat's about i1t, Your Honar. Unless you have
specific questicns for me,

THE COURT: I think in the -- Mz. Palm dic the ariginal

I1
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opposition. And if I recall frem her cpposition is that she argued
she couldn’t prove these. T think that’s keen established to a
certain extent. I think one of her complaints was that if we bring
in all of these priors there’s a likelihood that the jury will Icak
at It a8 preopensity evidence wersus anything under 480.045,
Anything te add o that argument rhat yeu've -- anything additicn
that you've -- I just wan:s ¥ou to address what was brought ug in
her hrief?

M3, MERCER: Well, Your Honox, I fhink that the pétenzial that
that might occur could be remedied witn a limiging nstruction to
the jury that they’'re ast supposed to consider as evidence that —-
evidence of propensity; that they’re only to consider it for the
issues that we're asking it that they be admitted for.

It's hard -- it would be hard for us to take the positian
that oniy certain ones of these incidents should be admitted
because this was such a long abusive re_ationship between the two
and I think the length of that abuse is quite possibly the most
tel_ing regarding whether or not this was an accident or
intentional.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Mr. Q'Keeife, if you could
handie those incidents in the same ordar pleasea,

THE DEFENDANT: Well, Your Honor, my approach iz going to be a
littie bit different, Yaur Honor.

THE COURT: Mr, C'"Keefe, listen, as far as -- we have a coupls

of prongs that I have “o lock at. For each of the incidents, the
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State must prove by clear and convineing evidence that they
occurred, Then we'll deal with the issce of whather or not they
fit under 480.045 and whether ar not they’re relevant and whathker
or not there’s undue prejudice. 8o lets deal with the first issue
15 your positiorn on whether or not the State has met thelr firat
burden of proving these allegaticns by clear and convincing
evidence.

THZ DEFENDANT: Well then, Your Honor, wnat you’re doing then
15 you're zelling me how co =un my defense.

THE COURT: No, sir, what I'm doing I3 I'm cenducting this
hearing the way T want too and T would ftell Mr, Maningo if he was
handling this that plezse address the clear and convincing prong
first, then we'll deal with the 480.045/relevance versus probative
value, seceond., 8o, if ¥ou can go down each incident and if ¥ou
have any arqument that the State has failed Lo prove these avents
by clear and convineing evidence, I want to hear your argument.

THE DEFEMDANT: Ckay. On the first event January 7, 2002,
they haven’t prowved it, It’s all hearsay. ZThe photos that they
supposedly state they have, Your Honor, are suppcsedly by her
huskand. Where are the police photos? In fact, thar incident alse
if my memory serves me right, is -- iz a resisting arrest, It has
nothing toc do. 5o, 2o they haven’t proved it.

WNumber two 13 sut, zhe 8 -- it'ts out, Tour Eonor, of
4/8/03,

Number three, the November 147, that act I did plead
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quilty. I mean, it’'s in the records. Who are we kidding? T pled
quilty to a2 misdemearncor battary,

THE COURT: And so are you stating that the State has meg
thelr burden on that one of clear and convincing?

THE DEFENDANT: WNo. Actually they haven’t because that act is
=— i part of the felony deorestic vioslence Cattary, £227835.
That’s included in the offense already. I mean, I pled guilty to
it. Yes, I did because at that time it was the thing to de.  They
cffered me, you can walk out the door. The Facts were nevar
actus:ily rezliy litigated. Yes, I -- vou know, it's a misdemeanor
conviction, pattery demestic violence, You’re tryving to bring inatc
a feleny Court of law to proeve a case, Lt's golng to be your WrOndg,

No, they haven’t proved it. I pled guilty to it, Your
Honor, but they haven’t proved it. It was a lot of hearsay. & lat
of statements -- a Iot of statements were made by the alleged
victim. We now know about her mertal nealth; Lhat was never
manifested back cthen, but no I don't feel they’'ve met it.

Eleven twenty-zix, that case was dismissed. That case
was abgolutely dismissed by the State. The state was the gne who
wanted to get rid of the case because the illegal entry, o
warrant, no nothindg; that’s absolutely cut the dcor. It’s
dismissed case.

The April 2" 2004 that was again a sitvation where -- let
me see, is that 4/04 --

THE COURT: That was the battery domestic violence -—

14
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THE CEFENDANT: Yes,

THE CQURT: -- felony.

THE LEFENDABNT: That’s the felcny battery deomestic vioclence,
right. You know, I tock that te trial. T didn’t take the stand.

I didn*t feel I had tog. Yes, the jury did convict me, but at thar
time my Court appointed attorney didn’t even call any wiznasses.
She steood up and she said the defense rests.

THE COQURT: The guesticn is at this hearing --

THE DEFENDANT: (kay.

THE COURT: =-- the State established thar —-

THE DEFENDANT: WNo, they didn’t prove it, Your Honer. No,
they did not prove i, They didn’t even see the evidence. I mean,
I was found guilty by the jury. No, Your Honor.

The thing also on that, the event that sticks cut in my
mind, Your Honor, is they tried to say that T did threes Vears in
priscr an that. I didn’t thirteen menths at fire camp. I mean,
it's just absoluze ludicrous, They know thaxs.

The next event, Your Honor, 04703 rhat was a misdemesanor.
I p.ed guilty to that in City Court and the irenic thing about that
is that on those two events on 02 -—  -- number 5 and nurker &,
04/02 and 04/03 I was arrested and went to Court on that event in
the City and for both events and pled to a misdemeanor on koth and
they brought that case up a year later and charged me with it. Did
they prove it? No. No. I mearl, that’s the answer that vou’re

looking fer, Your Honor. I mean, you know.
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Guing on ta number 7 the May 297 2004, that’s = battery,
Your Eonor. I remember the report that you guys thought it was a
battery DV or whatewver. Nz, it was & hattery. I was found guilzy
of & battery lesser included offense. Sally Leoehrer, the Judwge zt
that time, Your Honor, sentenced me cradit time sexrved. They threw
me over to Stuart Bells and he seatenced me on the burglary. How 1
got convicted of a felonw burglary is beyond me of my own place,
but I did. §¢, that’s —-- that was a simple battery. Not a battery
tdomestic violence, Your Honor.

I was kind of thrown out the way ¥ou wanted to go through
there. I apologize for that. I wasn’t Frepared for that, Your
Honer, but I know it's going to be your rulingy that’s -- now, can
L continue on #ow, Your Hapnor?

THE COURT: Yes,

THE DEFENDANT: Okay, now --

THE CCURT: Well, if you're going to address hew it does or
does rot fit under 480,045 znd whether or pot these are unduly
prejudicial.

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, the prehat-ve still cut weighs the
prezudicial, I mean -- or the Prejudicial its just so out walghed,
1 mean, it's -—- per 48.081 even you’re Lr¥ing to Ering in domestic
vigleénce events tso prove the current charge. And on zop of it,
Your Honor, these are misdemeanar convictions:y misdemeansrs.

When we first litigated these at the beginning of the

first trial on February 107, Phillip Smith, then Prosecuter for tre
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State specifically stated in his motion and in arguing it chac he
only wanted the felony domestic viclence for motive and intent.

Now you're trving to do the reversal twe trials later the State and
flow ¥ou want to bring them in when the law the case haz been
€stablished rhat no bodily act was dene. It’s getting way cut of
hand here.

He argued that he nesded the fe_ony domestic viclerncs.

He scheduled the Petreomelli hearing so he could prove nig motive
and intent of the intentional stabbing at the first trial. The fwe
of the fact at that time the jury had acguitted me of first degrees
intentional stabbing.

Neow as you know, Your Honor, remember I was found guilty
of second degree malice murder. HNow that was their theory. The
instruction the case was reversed on, they said it deoesn’t matter.
The State didn’t allege the battery, but Phillip Smitk at that --
Prosecutor Smith at that time in his cloging arguments specifically
stated, Your Honer, specifically the circumstantial evidence that
shows a battery or sorething that pracipitated the stabbing.

In ¢losing argument, he specifically used battery. Now
when the Supreme Court of Nevada reversed this case and said, BOIrYy
you didn’'t say battery, but the evidence bresented at trial did not
Support this theory. What theory? The thecry on second degree
murder.

in fact, Prosecutor Lalli made a Judicial acdmission at

the end of the secand trial admitting fact on Auqust 31%%, day 7 of

17
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INDEX

O*Keefe, Brian

Document ' Page No.

Ex Parte) Motion to Appaint Counsel filed on 12/06/13 4698-4700
“Amended™ Exhibits to “Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus by
a True Pretrial Detainee filed on 10/03/14 5008-5036
“Evidentiary Hearing Request” {Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive 1 Based on Subject-Maner of
Amended Information Vested in Ninth Circuit by Notice of Appeal then
“COA” Granted on a Double Jeopardy Violation with No Remand lssued
Since) filed on 10/03/14 4995-5007
“"Reply” to State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss to Defendant's Pro
Per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Prsuant to NRS 34.360 filed on

10/27/14 552-5061
“True Pretrial Detainee’s™ Reply to State™s Opposition(s) Admitting the
State has a Jurisdictional Defect by the Aung of a Netice of Appeal
Which Diveste Jurisdiction of the Matter Appealed; i.c., O Keefe's
Pretrial Habeas Matter Appealed ta the 9% Circuit on the Subject Mauter
of the Amended Information Already Named a Double Jeopardy
Violation filed on 10/G1/14 4989-4954
Affidavit of Matthew D. Carling, Esq. filed on 06/29/15 5447-5453
Affidavit of the Honorable Michael P. Villani fled on 09/24/14 4981-4983
Amended Informatien filed on 02/10/09 D175-0177
Amended Notice of Appeal filed on 10/29/15 3565-5568
Appendix of Exhibits for; Motion to Dismiss based Upon Violation(s) of
the Fifth Amendment Component of the Double Jeopardy Clause.
Constitutional Collateral Estoppel and, Alternatively, Claiming Res
Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the States
Precluding State’s Theory of Prosecution by Unlawful Intentional
Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Bartery Act Described in the Amended
Information filed on 03/16/12 3225-3406
Case Appeal Statement filed on 03/14/14 48350-4851
Case Appeal Statement filed on 04/11/14 48624863
Case Appeal Statement filed on 05/21/09 0334-0336
Case Appeal Statement filed on 08/04/15 5476-5477
Case Appeal Statement filed on 08/12/13 3484-5485
Case Appeal Statement filed on 06/02/14 4925-4926
Case Appeal Statement filed on 09/04/12 3536-3537
Case Appeal Statement filed on 09/24/12 4625-4628
Case Appeal Statement filed on 10/20/15 5547-5548
Case Appeal Statement filed on 10/21/15 3554-5556
Case Appeal Statement filed on 11/04/15 5572-5573
Case Appeal Statement filed on 11/24/14 5070-5071
Certificate of Mailing filed on 05/03/11 3048




MO ] o Lt B LI R —

L R o I € S o SR 5 S o EA S SN - S S U S sl Cpmh il
gquhMMHQmqumnum—nc

Certificate of Service filed on 06/29/15 5454
Clerks Certificate Judgment Reversed and Remanded filed on 05/06/10 1023-1027
Criminal Bindover filed on 12/26/08 0004-0020
Criminal Order to Statistically Close Case filed on 07/31/13 4662
Defendant O'Keefe’s Opposition to Motion in Limine to Admit Fvidence
of Other Bad Acts Pursuant to NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic
Violence Pursuant to 48.061 filed on 01/18/11 2877-2907
Defendant’s Brief on Admissibility of Evidence of Alleged Vietim's
History of Suicide Attempts, Anger Outbursts, Anger Management
Therapy, Self-Mutilation (With Knives andn Scissors), and Erratic

| Behavioer filed on 03/20/09 {(263-0301
Defendani’s Metion to Require Court to Advise the Frosepective Jurors as
1o the Mandatory Sentences Reguired if the Defendant is Convicted of
Second Degree Murder filed on 03/04/09 0196-0218
Defendant’s Motion to Settle Record filed on 03/24/09 0317-0322
Defendant’s Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 03/20/09 302-0316
Defendant’s Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 08/23/10 1335-1393
Defendant’s Submission to Clark County Distriet Attormey’s Death
Review Commitiee filed on 12/31/08 0021-0027
Defendant’s Supplemental Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 03/20/09 0290-0292
Defendant’s Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 08/16/10 1294-1296
District Court Amended Jury List filed on 03/19/09 0245
District Court Jury List filed on 03/16/09 (239
Ex Parte and/or Notice of Motion and Motion to Chief Judge to Reassign
Case to Jurist of Reason Based on Pending Suit 3:14-CV-00385-RCJ-
WGC Against Judge Michael Villani for proceeding in Clear “Want of
Jurisdiction” Thereby Losing Immunity, Absoluiely filed on 08/28/14 4503-4912
Ex Parte and/cr Notice of Motion filed on 08/28/14 4913
Ex Parte Application for Order Requiring Material Witness 1o Post Bail
filed on 03/10/09 0232-0236
Ex Parte Motion for an Order Shortening Time filed on 08/16/10 1292-1293
Ex Parte Motion for Appointment of Counsel Pursuant to NRS 34.750
filed on 09/15/14 4950-4952
Ex Parte Motion for Defense Costs filed on 06/30/10 1037-1043
Ex Parte Motion for Production of Documents (Specific) Papers,
Pleadings and Tangible Property of Defendant filed on 01/13/14 47144720
Ex Parte Motion for Reimbursement of Legal Cost of Faretta Canvassea
Defendant to Above Instant Case filed on 12/13/13 4701-4707
Ex Parte Motion for Release of Medical Records filed on 04/08/1 ] 3041-3042
Ex Parte Motion 1o Extend Prison Copywork Limit filed on 06/24/15 5438-5441
Exhibits 1o Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus by a True Pretrial Detainee
filed on 09/15/14 4954-4980
Ex-Parte Motion for Reimbursement of Inecidental Costs Subseguent the
Court Declaring Defendant Indigent and Granting Forma Pauperis filed
on (01/21/14 4722-4747
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Ex-Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywark Limit filed on 01/28/14 4764-4767
Filing in Support of Motion to Seal Records as Ordered by Judge filed on
04/19/12 3438-344]
Findings of Fact, Conclusion of Law and Order filed on 10/02/15 3528-5536
Information filed on 12/19/G8 0001-0003
| Instructions to the Jury {Instruction No. 1} filed on 69/02/10 1399-1426
instructions to the Jury filed on 03/20/09 0246-0288
Judgment of Conviction (Jury Trial) filed on (9/05/12 4623-4624
Judgment of Conviction filed on 05/08/09 0327-0328
Judieial Notice Pursnant NRS 47,140(1)-NRS 47.1 30(2) Supporting Pro-
Se Petition Pursuant NRS 34.360 filed on 03/12/15 5082-5088
Jury List filed on 06/12/12 3456
| Jury List filed on 08/25/10 1396
Letters in Aid of Sentencing filed on 05/04/09 (3324-0326
Motion by Defendant O"Keefe filed on 08/19/10 1329-1334
Motion for Cemplete Rough Draft Transcript filed on 04/03/12 3430
Maotion for Judicial Notice the State's Failure to File and Serve Response
in Cpposition filed on 02/24/14 4800-4809
Motion fer Judicial Ruling filed on 05/24/10 1028-1030
Motion for Leave to File Supplemental Petition Addressing All Claims in
the First Instance Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with
Affidavit filed on 06/15/15 5420-5422
Motion for Relief from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for U.S.
Court of Appeals has not lssued any Remand, Mandate, or Remittitur
filed on 07/23/14 4871-4889
Moticn to Continue Trial filed on 06/01/12 3450-3455
Motion to Dismiss Counsel filed on 10/03/11 3164-3168
Motion to Modify and/or Correct lllegal Sentence filed on 01/27/14 47494759
Motion to Place on Calendar filed on 10/26/11 3169-3182
Motion to Place on Calendar filed on 11/28/11 3184-3192
Motion to Withdraw as Counsel filed on 04/29/11 3044-3047
Motion to Withdraw Counsel filed on 11/28/11 3193-3168
Motion to Withdraw Counsel for Conflict and Failure 1o Prezsent Claims
when LA.C. Claims Must be Raised Per Statute in the First Petition
Pursuant Chapter 34 filed on 06/08/15 5148-5153
Motion to Withdraw filed on G9/14/10 1434-1437
Notice of Appeal filed on 03/13/14 4843-4849
Natice of Appeal filed on 04/11/14 4858-4861
Notice of Appeal filed on 05/21/09 (332-0333
Notice of Appeal filed on 07/31/13 5467-5472
Notice of Appeal filed on 08/11/15 5478-5483
Notice of Appeal filed on 08/29/14 4923-4924
Notice of Appeal filed on 10/21/15 3552-3553
Notice of Appeal filed on 11/03/15 5569-5571
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Notice of Appeal filed on 11/21/14

3067-506%

Notice of Change of Address filed on 06/06/14

4364-4865

 Notice of Defendant’s Expert Witness filed on D2/20/09

0180-0195

Notice of Defendant’s Witnesses filed on 03/06/09

0224-0227

Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, Conclusion of Law and Order fHiled
on 10/06/15

3337-3546

Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 03/05/09

0222-0223

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe for a Reasonable
Bail filed on 09/24/10

1441-1451

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Keefe for Discovery filed
| on 08/02/10

1211-1219

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe for Evidentiary
Hearing on Whether the State and CCDC have Cemplied with Their
Obligations with Respect 10 the Recording of a Jail Visit Between
O'Keefe and State Witness Cheryl Morris filed on 08/02/10

1220-1239

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Keefe to Admit Evidence
Pertaiming to the Alleged Victim's Menta! Health Condition and History,
Including Prior Suicide Anempts, Anger Outbursts. Anper Management

Therapy. Self-Mutilation and Errratic Behavior filed on 07/21/10

1064-1081

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Admit Evidence
Pertaining to the Alleged Victim’s Mental Health Condition and History,
Including Prior Suicide Attempts, Anger Ouibursts, Anger Management

Therapy, Self-Mutilation and Erratic Behavior filed on 0772110

1099-1116

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant OKeefe to Admit Evidence
Showing LVMPD Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath
Aleohol Evidence in Another Recant Case filed on 0%/02/10

1199-1210

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O°’Keefe to Dismiss on
Grounds of Double Jeopardy Bar and Speedy Trial Violation and,
Alternatively, to Preclude State’s New Expert Witness, Evidence and
Argument Relating to the Dynamics or Effecis of Domestic Violence and
Abuse filed on 01/07/11

2785-2811

Naotice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Preclude Expert
Testimony filed on 08/16/10

1284-129]1

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O’ Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutional Righs filed on 07/21/10

147-1063

Notice of Motion and Metion by Defendant O"Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutional Rights filed on 07/21/10

1082-1098

Notice of Motion and Motion by defendant O’Keefe to Preclude the State
from introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument filed on
01/03/11

[682-2755

Notice of Motion and motion by Defendant Q'Keefe to Suppress his

.5
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Statements to Police, or, Aliernatively. to Preclude the State from

Introdueing Portions of his Interrogation filed on 08/02/10 1152-1198
Notice of Motion and Motion for Leave of Court to File Motion for
Rehearing — Pursuant to EDCR. Rule 2.24 filed on 08/29/14 4914-442|
Notice of Motion and Motion in Limine to Admit Evidence of Other Bad
Acts Pursuant to NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic Violence
Pursuant to 48.061 filed on 01/06/11 2762-2784
Notice of Motion and Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Crimes filed on
02/02/09 0150-(165
Netice of Mation and Motion 1o Admit Evidence of Polygraph
Examination Results filed on 03/29/12 3412-3415
Notice of Motion and Motion to Dismiss based Upon Viglation(s) of the
Fifth Amendment Component of the Double Jeopardy Clause,
Constitutional Collateral Estoppel and. Alternatively, Claiming Res
Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the Staies
Precluding State’s Theery of Prosecution by Unlawful Intentional
Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Battery Act Described in the Amended
Information filed on 03/16/12 3201-3224
Notice of Motion and Motion 1o Seal Records filed on 03/22/12 3416-3429
Notice of Motion and Motion to Waive Filing Fees for Petition for Writ of
Mandamus filed on 12/06/13 4695-4697
Notice of Motion and Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of Record filed on

| (9/23/15 5517-5519
Notice of Motion and Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of Recerd filed on
09/29/15 5525-5527
Notice of Motion filed on 01/13/14 4721
Noti¢e of Motion filed on 01/21/14 4748
Notice of Motion filed on D1/27/14 4760
Notice of Mation filed on 02/24/14 4810
Notice of Motion filed on 03/04/14 4833
Notice of Motion filed on 06/08/15 5154-5160
Notice of Motion filed on 07/23/14 4890
Notice of Motion filed on 08/29/14 4622
Notice of Motion filed on 09/15/14 4953
Notice of Witness and/or Expert Witnesses filed on 02/03/09 G166-0167
Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert Witnesses filed on 02/17/09 0178-0179
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/ Judgment Affirmed filed on
0206415 5072-508)
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Affirmmed filed on
07/26/13 46353-4661
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

) 06/18/14 4866-4870
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on
03/12/15 5089-5053

NV Supreme Court Clerks Centificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

-6-
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09/28/13 5520-5524
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

10/29/14 062-3066
O’Keefe's Reply to State’s Opposition to Motion to Admit Evidence

Showing LVMPD Hernicide Detectives have Preserved Blood/Breath

Alcohol Evidence in Another Recent Case filed on 08/13/10 1256-1265
Opposition to State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Bad Acts filed

on 02/06/09 0169-0172
Order Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 03/04/09 02190220
Order Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 08/12/10 1253-1254
Order Denying Defendant’s Ex Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywork

Limit filed on 08/13/15 5486-5488
Order Denying Defendant’s Ex-Parte Motion for Reimbursement of

Incidental Costs Declaring Defendant [ngigent and Granting Forma

pauperis filed on 03/11/14 4840-4842
Order Denying Defendant’s Motion for Relief From Judgment Based on

Lack of Jurisdiction for U.S. Court of Appeals had not Issues any

Remand, Mandare or Remintatture filed on 09/04/14 4927-4529
Order Denying Defendant’s Moticn to Dismiss filed on 04/1 1712 3434-3435
Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to Seal Recoreds and Defendant's

Motion to Admit Evidence of Plygraph Examination filed on 05/24/12 3448-3449
Order Denying Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Mandamus or in the

Alternative Writ of Coram Nobis; Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to

Waive Filing Fees for Petition for Writ of Mandamus: Order Denying

Defendant’s Motion to Appoint Counsei filed on 01/28/14 4761-4763
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Judifical Notice- The

State’s Failure to File and Serve Response in Opposition filed on 04/01/14 4855-4857
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Leave to File

Supplementat Petition Addressing all Claims in the First Instance

Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with Affidavit filed on

37/15115 5464-5466
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Modify and/or Correct

Illegal Sentence filed on03/25/14 4852-4854
Order Denying Defendant's Pro Per Moation to Withdraw Counsel for

Conflict and Failure to Present Claims When [.A.C. Claims Must be

Raised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant to Chapter 34 filed on

015/15 5461-5463
Order Denying Matthew D. Carling’s Motion to Withdraw as Attomey of

Record for Defendant filed on 11/19/15 5574-5575
Order Denying Motion to Disqualify filed on 10/06/1¢ 5037-5040
Order filed on 01/30/09 0149
Order filed on | 1/06/10 1462-1463
Order for Petition for Wril of Habeas Corpus filed on 10/15/14 5051
Order for Production of lnmate Brian O'Keefe filed on 05/26/10 1032-1033
Order for Return of Fees filed on 11/10/11 3183

-7-
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Order for Transcripts filed on 04/30/12 3442
Order Granting and Denying in Part Defendant's Fx-Parte Motion for
Production of Documents {Specific) Papers, Pleadings, and Tangible
Propenty of Defendant filed on 02/28/14 4818-4820
Order Granting Ex parte Motion for Defense Costs filed on 07/01/10 1044-1045
Order Granting Request for Transcripts filed on 01720/11 2966-2%67
Order Granting Request for Transcripts filed on 04/27711 3043
Order Granting Request lor Transeripts filed on 09/14/10 1430-1431
Order Granting Reguest for Transcripts filed on 09/16/10 1438-1439
Order Granting, in Part, and Denying, in Part, Motion by Defendant
("Keefe for Discovery filed an 08/23/10 1394-1395
Order Granting, in Part. and Denying, in Part, Motion by Defendant
("Keefe 10 Preclude the State from Introducing at Trial Other Act or
Character Evidence and Other Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or

| Would Violate his Constitutional Rights filed on 09/09/10 1427-1429
Order Granting, in Part, the State's Motion to Admit Evidence of Other 3199-3200
Bad Acts filed on 03/13/12
Order Releasing Medical Records filed on 04/08/1 ) 3039-3040
Order Requiring Matertal Witness to Post Bail or be Committed to
Custody filed on 03/10/09 0230-023)
Order Shortening Time filed on 08/16/10 1283
Petition for a Writ of Mandamus or in the Alternative Writ of Coram
Nobis filed on 12/06/13 4663-4694
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus ot in the Alternative Motion to
Preclude Prosecution from Seeking First Degree Murder Conviction
Based Upon the Failure to Collect Evidence filed an 01/26/06 0125-0133
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive 1
Based On Subject-Matter of Amended Information Vested in Ninth
Circuit by notice of Appeal Then “COA™ Granted on a Double Jeopardy
Yiolation with No Remand Issued Since filed on (9/15/14 4940-4949
Petitioner’s Supplement with Exhibit of Oral Argument Scheduled by the
Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals for November 17, 2014. Courtroom #1
filed on 10/01/14 4984-498%
Pro Se¢ “Reply to State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Se Motion to
Modify and/or Correct [llegal Sentence filed on 03/04/14 4821-4832
ProSe “Reply” to State’s Opposition to Defendant’s (Ex-Parte) *Motion
for Reimbursement of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declaring
Defendant Indigent and Granting Forma Pauperis” filed on 02/24/14 4792-479%
Receipt of Copy filed on G1/03/11 2761
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/12/11 2812
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/12/11 2813
Receipt of Copy filed on G1/18/11 2876
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/27/09 (134
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/30/09 0146
Receipt of Copy filed on 02/06/09 D168
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Receipt of Copy filed on 03/04/09 0221
Receipt of Copy filed on 03/24/09 (323
Receipt of Copy filed on 05/24/10 1031
Receipt of Copy hled on 06/13/11 3163
Receipt of Copy filed on G6/30/10 1036
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1240
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1241
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1242
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1243
Receipt of copy filed on 08/13/10 1255
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/14/10 1432
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/17/10 1433
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/21/10 1440
Receipt of File filed on 07/01/10 1046
Reply in Support of Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
{Posi-Conviction) filed cn 08/25/15 3500-3510
Reply to State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post-Conviction

Petition for Habeas Corpus filed on 06/16/15 5423-5432
Reply to State’s Response to Defendant's Supplemental Petition for Wit

of Habeas Corpus filed on 08/24/15 5489-5499
Regeust for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 1072115 5549-5551
Request for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 07/17/12 3458-3460
Request for Certified Transcript of Proceeding filed on 09/09/09 (772-0723
Reguest for Rough Draft Transcript filed on 05/21/09 0329-0331
Request for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 11/20/12 4629-4631
Return to Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 01/29/09 0135-0145
Second Amended Information filed on 08/19/10 1326-1328
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s {Ex-Parte) “Maotion for Reimbursement

of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declaring Defendan Indigent

and Granting Forma Pauperis” filed on 02/07/14 4768-4791
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for a Reasonable Bail filed on

09/27/10 1452-1461]
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for Judicial Notice — The

State’s Failure to File and Serve the Response in Opposition filed on

03/10/14 4834-4839
State”s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed on 03/21/12 3407-3411
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Preclude the State from

Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument filed on 01/12/11 2814-2871
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Seal Records filed an

(4/05/12 3431-3433
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Suppress his Statements to

Police, or, Alternatively, to Preclude the State from Inroducing Portions

of his Interrogation filed on D8/17/10 1306-1319

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Withdraw Counsel for
Conflict and Failure to Present Claims When 1.A.C. Claims Must be

-9.
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Raised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant to Chapter 34 filed on
06/25/15

3442-5446

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Leave of Court to
File Moticrn. . .Rule 2.4 filed on 09/12/14

4935-4%39

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Chief Judge to
Reassign Case 1o Jurist of Reason Based on Pending Suit Against Judge
Michael Villani for Proceeding in Clear “Want of Jurisdiction™ Thereby

4930-4934

Losing Immunity, Absolutely filed on 09/12/14
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Modify and/or
Correct Illegal Sentence filed on 02/24/14

4811-4817

State's Opposition to Motion for Evidentiary Hearing on Whether the
State and CCDC have Complied with their Obligations with Respect to
the Recording of a Jail Visit Between O'Keefe and State Wimess Cheryl
Morris flied on 08/10/10

1244-1247

State’s Opposition to Motion to Admit Fvidence Pertaining to the Alleged
Victim’s Mental Health Condition and History, Including Prior Suicide
Attempts, Aeger Outbursts, Anger Management Therapy, Self-Mutilation
and Erratic Behavior filed on 08/16/10

1277-1282

state’s Opposition 10 Motion to Admit Evidence Showing LVMPD
Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath Alcohal Evidence in
Another Recent Case filed on 08/10/10

1248-1252

State's Opposition 1o Motion to Dismiss and, Alternatively, to Preclude
Expert and Argument Regarding Domestic Violence filed on 01/18/11

2908-2965

State’s Opposition to Motion to Preclude Expert Testimony filed on
O8/18/10

1320-1325

State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss Defendant’s Motion for Relief
from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for U.S. Court of Appeals
had not Issued any Remand. Mandare or Remittatture of filed on 08/07/14

4891-4%02

State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss to Defendant's Pro Per Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive based an
Subject-Matter of Amended Information Vested in Ninth Circuit by
Notice of Appeal Then “COA™ Granted on 2 Double jEopardy Vielatio
with No Remand Issued Since (Post Conviction), Amended Peition and
Accompany Exhibits, Opposition to Request for Evidentiary Hearing. and
Opposition to Pro Per Motion to Appoint Counse! filed on 10/10/14

5041-5050

State’s Response to Defendant’s Motion to Preclude the State from
Introducint at Trial Other Bad Acts or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence that is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his Contitutionsal
Rights filed on 08/16/10

1268-1276

State’s Response to Defendant’s Petition for a Writ of Mandamus or in
the Alternative Writ of Coram and Response to Motion to Appoint
Counsel filed on 12/31/13

4708-4713

State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post-Conviction Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus filed on 06/02/15

5145-5147

State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Supplementa] Petition for Writ

- 16 -
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of Habeas Corpus and Evidentiary Hearing Reguest, “Motion for Leave to
File Supplemental Petition Addressing all Claims in the First Instance
Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with Affidavit,” “Reply to
State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post Conviction Petition for
Habeas Corpus,” and “Supplement with Notice Pursuant NRS 47.1 50(2):
NRS 47,140(1), that the Untied States Supreme Court has Docketed (#14-
10093) the Pretrial Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 USC 2241{cH(3)
from the Mooting of Petitioner's Section 2241 Based on a Subsequent
Judgment Obtained in Want of Jurisdiction While Appeal Pending™ filed

on 07/09/15 3455-5458
State’s Response to Defendant’s Reply in Support of Supplemental Post-
Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 09/03/15 5311-5516
State’s Response to Defendant’s Supplement 1o Supplemental Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) filed on 07/31/15 3473-5475
State’s Supplemental Opposition to Motion te Seal Records filed on
0441712 3436-3437
Stipulation and Order filed on 02/10/09 0173-0174
Substitution of Attorney filed on 06/29/10 1034-1035
Supplement to Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Carpus (Post-
Conviction) filed on 07/13/15 5459-546()
Supplement with Notice Pursuant NRS 47.150 (2); NRS 47,140 (1), That
the United State’s Supreme Court has Docketed (#14-10093) The Pretrial
Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 11.8.C.§ 224] ©1(3) From the Mooting
of Petitioner’s Section 2241 Based on a Subsequent Judgment Obtained in
Want of Jurisdiction While Appeal Pending filed on 06/17/15 5433-5437
Supplemental Appendix of Exhibits to Petition for a Writ of Habeas
Corpus Exhibits One (1) Throush Twerity Five (25) filed on 06/12/15 5161-5363
Supplemental Natice of Defendant’s Expert Witnesses filed on 07/29/10 1117-1151
Supplemental Notice of Expert Witness filed on 05/17/12 3443-3447
Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 01/03/11 2756-2760
Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 08/13/10 1266-1267
Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses fited on 08/16/10 1297-1305
Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 01/14/11 2872-2875
Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 03/10/09 0228-0229
Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 03/11/09 0237.0238
Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post Conviction) filed
on 04/08/15 5(94-5144
Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 06/15/15 3364.5419
Verdict filed on 03/20/09 (1289
Verdict filed on 06/15/12 3457
| Verdict Submitted to the Jury but Retumed Unsigned filed on 09/02/10 1397-1398
| Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 01/30/09 0147-0148

-11-
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TRANSCRIPTS

Document Page No.
Transcript - All Pending Motions and Calendar Call filed on G2/04/1 1 2996-3038
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 07/16/09 0351-0355
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 08/30/12 3461-3482
Transcript ~ All Pending Motions filed on 11/23/10 1464-1468
Transcript — All Pending Moticns on 07/10/09 0348-0350
Transcript — Calendar Call filed on 02/04/11 2968-2973
Transcript — Calendar Call filed on 08/30/12 3520-3535
Transcript - Continued Hearing: Motion in Limine to Present Evidence of

Other Bad Acts filed on 08/30/12 3483-3509
Transcript — Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post

Conviction) filed on 10/29/15 3560-5364
Transcript ~ Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Based Upon

Violation(s) filed on 08/30/12 3510-3519
Transcript — Defendnat’s Motion to Settle Record filed on 07/10/09 0342-0345
Transcript — Entry of Plea/Trial Setting filed on 07/10/09 0356-0338
Transcript — Jury Trail — Day 1 fited on 10/14/00 0724-1022
Transeript — Jury Trial - Day 1 filed on 07/10/09 (582-0651
Transctipt — Jury Trial - Day 1 filed on 07/10/09 0652-0721
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 09/04/12 4278-4622
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 11/23/10 1376-1602
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 2 filed on 07/10/09 0515-0581
Transeript — Jury Trial - Day 2 filed on 11/23/10 1603-1615
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 2 on 09/04/12 4001-4227
Transcript — Jury Triai — Day 3 filed on D7/10/09 0462-0514
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 3 filed on 11/23/10 1616-1738
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 3 on 09/04/12 3779-4000)
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 4 filed on 07/10/09 0408-046)
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 4 filed on 11/23/10 1739-2032
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 4 on 09/04/12 3600-3778 |
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day § filed on 07/10/09 0359-0407
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 5 filed on 09/04/12 3538-3599
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 5 filed on 11/23/10 2033-2281
Transeript — Jury Trial - Dav 6 filed on 11/23/10 2282-2507
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 7 filed on 11/23/10 2508-2681
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 8 filed on 11/23/10 1469-1470
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day © filed on 11/23/10 1471-1478
Transcript — Matthew D. Carling's Motion to Withdraw zs Atorney of

Record for Defendant filed on 10/29/15 5557-5559
Transcript ~ Motions Hearing — August 17, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1479-1499
Transcript — Motions Hearing — August 19, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1500-1536
Transcript ~ Motions Hearing — August 20, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1537-1578

- 12 -
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Transeript — Notice of Metion and Motion by Defendant O"Keofe to
Preclude the State from Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and

Argument filed on 02/04/1] 2974.-2989
Transcript — Partial Transcript of the Jury Trial - Day 2 filed on 03/18/09 | 0240-0244
Transcript — Petrocelli Hearing filed on 05/19/1 1 3048-3162
Transcript — Proceedings fited on 01/02/09 0028-0124
Transcript — Sentencing August 16, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4632-4635
Trunscript ~ Sentencing August 28, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4636-4652
Transctipt — Sentencing filed on 07/10/09 0337-034]
Transcript — Status Check: Availability of Dy, Benjamin for Trial filed on

02/04/1 1 2950-2995

=13 -
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I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 6th day of
| Japuary, 2011, by facsimile transmiszion to:

FATRICIA PALM ESQ
FAX: 3369114

/s/ 1. SCHESSLER
“Secrelary for te
Office

instriel Altorncy's
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TC:Patricia Palm, Esq. COHPMT:} 8

NOTC

DAVID ROXGER

Clak County District Alnmcy
Mevadu Bue 002781
CHRISDOPHER §. LALL)
Chicf * Bistrict Attomcy
Nevada Ber #D03198

200 Tewis Ayenue

Lag Yepas, Nevada §9155-2212
(702) 6/1-2500
Atlurney for Plaintil)

L=t

iLn - Ll

DISTRICT COURL
CLARK COUNTY, NCVADA

o =] gn

THT, STATE OF NEVADA,

}
lo Pluintifl, i CASENG:  (BC2SD630
i ey ! oeeTne: xvn
12 § BRIAN KERRY OKEEFE, ]
| [ )

T fendant ;

SUPPLEMENT AL NOTICE OF WITNESSES
JNILS 174.234(1Xz2)|

TO: HRIANMKERRY (YKITFT-. Ficfendant, and

TQ. PATRICIA PALM, T80, Counsel of Recond:

YOU. AND FACH OF YU WITL. PT.EAST TAKTE: NOTICT. that the STATTE, OF
NEVADA intends 10 cali the following witnesses in its easc in chicf:

2 NAMT: ADDRESS

2] ARMTRIISTTR, TODD 6344 BIRGINDY ST, TV

1 BALLEIOS, J. [YMPD P52406

23 | o BAS. IENNTFIR LYMPT? PE9944

4 | ® BESSE TORIAS 1254 N. TORRTY PINTIS 21154, 1VN

23 BUNN, CHRISTOPHTR T.VMPT) Bidd07

26 COLLINS. CHTT.STA T.VMPD PE9255

27 CONN. TODD T.VMPD PSR101

Bl s CONNGR MICHAT. 801 RTNBROGK DR.. HTNDTRSON, NV

P O S N T 22 0 Dl

003401
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TO:Patriciz Palm, Esq. mupm.
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DAHN. RORRIE
DUNCAN. J.

DUITRA, DR. TIMOTIY

FRRERT. TINDIA
TGGLESTON. TINDA
FONARUENA. R.
FORTY. DANTEL.
GUTNTHIR. TN
HATIICOX, JIMMY
HODSON. R,

HORN., 1,
HUTCHTRSON. C.
KETLY. 8.
KOLAC?. RORIN
KYGTR. TERESA
MALRONADO, .
MONIOT. T.
MORGENSTTIRN, X,
MORRIS. CHTRYT.
MOTT. HONTTY
MURPHY. KATT

NEWRBERRY, NANTTH,

OTLAND, A.
PAZ7OS. T,

PENNY. R.
POINTUN. C.
BRICT. RICHART?
RADMANGOVICH, &.

FRUL WU SN

®

FEA ODUL Yoy

LYMPD) P43947

LYMPD 57157

CCME, 1704 PINTO LN, LVN
SANTITMC

1864 ATGONQUIN £2. TVN
T.YMPD PE6234

FAYMPT) P54244

[.WMPP P&5801

3955 CHINCINLLA AVIL, L.VN
T.VMPD) PE371

FYMPD P§1928

FVMPT) PH12996

T.VMPD) PHER36

MGR./CASA SATVATORT APTS.,
F.VMPD) Pi4191

T.VMPD P#6920

T.YMPT) PX4664

TVMPD Pi4663

CAODAWN BARLOW/CCDA'S OFFKCT,

1300 STARDUST HTL£A-2015.TVN
LVMPD P59756
[ VMPD P44936
T.VMPT) PEa942
1.VMPD BH6R17
1 VMPD P64
T WMPR PA7160
T.YMPD PESE2¢6
1 VMPD) P#6420

(3
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T0:Patricis Paln, Esq. comeani) &

! RAMIRTZ. V, LVMP) PH4016

< RUMFRY. S. LVYMPT) P§6734

3 SANTARDSA.R, I.VMPD PH6030

4 STALLINGS, IONIN COMI, 1704 PINTO LN, LY

5 STTIRTR, R. [.WVMPT) P&3542

6 TAYTLOR, SEAN LYMPI2 P#3712

7 TINIO, NORMA 2992 ORCIIARD MESA, HENDERSON, NV

8 TOLIWTR. CHART S 1013 NLJONTS 2101, TVN

0 TOLIVER, IOYCR 2218 DISK {.ANT, NLLVN

10 WINTMARSIL ALEXANDRA 7648 CRLTSTIAL FLOW, ILYN
H WIITMARS]I, DAVID 764k CTLTSTIAL GLOW, VN
12 WILDEMANN, MARTIN T.YMPT3 P433516
13 WONG. T, . VMPT) Pr6R12
T4 These witnesses arc in addition to those witnosses endorsed on the Information and
15 [ any other witness for which a scparate Notice has boen filed,

16
:  Rege
18 BY M

19 DISTRICT ATTORNEY
5 Novada Bar 5002781
2
i
23 T herchy contify that service of the above and forcgoing, wes mads this 14th dav of
” January, 2017 by facsimil e transmission to:

PATRICIA PALM, 30,
a5 FAX: 386-9114
3 £ anigls
27 umm;ary r Jistrict  Amarncy’s
3%
3 RIS NOTIC R A e

np34n3




QOFRDER BRANTNG, IN PART, The STATE'S MoTion

~ B ADMIT gymeuee oF comex Ban ACrS
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Exhibit 18
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ORDR |
STEVEN B. WOLFSON FILED
ark Coun ﬂﬂl’ﬂﬂ}'
e P ki e
Chief Disirict Attomey Hocttam
Nevada 5398 '
206 Lewls Avenne
Las Vegas, NV 89155-2212
(702) 671
ltorney fur lentlﬂ'
DISTRICT COURT ) TN
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA 3% _
| T
THE STATE OF NEVADA, ﬂ’llﬁ“ﬂmmﬂl
Plaintiff,
N CASENO: 08C250630
DEPTNO: XVII
BRIAN KERRY O’KEEFE,
#1447732
Defendant,

ORDER GRANTING, IN PART, THE STATE'S MOTION TO ADMIT EVIDENCE
OF OTHER BAD ACTS

DATE OF HEARING: February 17, 2012
TIME OF HEARING: 8:45 A M.

THIS MATTER having come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on the
17th day of February, 2012, the Defendant being present, TN PROPER PERSON, the
Plaintiff being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attomey, through
CHRISTOPHER LALLI, Chief Deputy Disinict Attomey, and LIZ MERCER, Deputy
District Attorney, and the Court having heard the arguments of counsel and good cause
appearing therefor,

THE COURT FINDS, that the State established by clear and convincing evidence the
facts and circumstances of the offense cecurring on or about Aprl 2, 2004, for which
Defendant received a felony conviction under Eighth Judiciel District Court, Clark County,

Neypihseo. C207835,
MAR 13 2012

OF THE COURT L P AW FDOCSMORORFORDRE N5 34 M. 800

| T

NN34N1K
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS, that the facts and circumstances of the Apxil 2,
2004 offense are relevant to the issves of motive (ill-will}, intent, absence of sccident or
mistake, to rebut a potential claim of self-defense, and to provide the jury with the context of
the relationship between Defendant Brian O'Keefe and Victoria Whitmarsh.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS, that the probative value of the evidence concerning
the April 2, 2004 offense is not subgtantially outweighed by danger of unfair prejudice
because: (1) the events are not remote in time to the charged offense in this case; (2) the facts

and circumstances are nol more offensive than the allegations in this case; and, (3)

o0 -1 e WA B W k)

9 || Drefendant was convicted pursusnt to a Jury Verdict so he will not now be placed in 2
10 | position of having to defend agninst those allcgations for the first time many years Jater.

11 THE COURT FURTHER FINDS, that the sdmission of facts and circumstances of
12 | the other cases, 03M00410X, 03M235901X, 03M26791X, and C581783A, and C202793,
13§ would have a prejudicial effect which would ourweigh the probative value.

14 l IT IS, THEREFORE, HERERY ORDERED that the State’s Motion 1o Admit
15 { Evidence of Other Bad Acts, shall be, and it is hereby GRANTED as to the April 2, 2004
6 | offense, and it is DENIED as to all others.

17 I DATED this !A day of March, 2012,

. Y/

3 DISTRICTTUDGE o,

21 | STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
22 || Nevada Bar #001565

23
24
25
26
27

28 ¥ 08F23348X%: LM/sam-MVU

FAWPDDTRORDOFORDICA W 154305 dox
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Electronically Filed
0372172012 12:52:57 PM

Qo s

Clark County District Attorney BLERSOF THE.COUBT
Nevada Bar #001565
CHRISTOPHER J. LALLI
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Mevada Bar 5308
200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vepas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702} 671-2830
christopher. lalliécedanv.com
Attorney for Plamntiff
DISTRICT COQURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
)
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
} Case No: 08C250630
Plaintiff, Dept. No: XVII
W Diate: March 29, 2012
BRIAN KERRY O’KEEFE, Time: 8:15 a.m.
B1447732
Defendant.

STATE’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO DISMISS
COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney,

through CHRISTOPHER J. LALLI Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby opposes the

Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss. This Opposition is made and basad upon all the papers and

pleadings on file herein, the attached points and authorities in suppart hereof, and oral

argument at the time of hearing, if deemed necessary by this Honorable Court,
DATED this  21st day of March, 2012.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark Counry District Attorney
Nevada Bar #0G1565

BY /s Christopher J. Lalli

CHRISTOPHER T TALTT
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005398

T Praprom Fues Neevia Do -Dioausmens Cemserer g 77 M- P50 51 [
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MEMORANDUM QF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

On November 5, 2008, Brian Kerry O'Keefe (hereinafter “the Defendant™) murdered
Victoria Whitmarsh by stabbing the right side of her chest. The knife he used to kill Victoria
sliced through various vital organs. Tt was also apparent that the much-larger Defendant had
badly beaten Victoria, Weighing seventy pounds less than him, her body was badly bruised
at autopsy,

The Defendant was charged with one count of murder with use of a deadly weapon,
After being tried on that charge, a jury found the Defendant guilty of murder of the second
degree with use of a deadly weapon. The conviction was reversed on appeal and the
Defendant was retried. At the conclusion of that case, the jury was unable to reach a verdict
and a mistrial was declared. The retrial is presently set to begin on June 11, 2012,

Now, acting in proper person, the Defendant files a pleading entitled Motion to
Dismiss Based Upon Vielation{s) of the Fifth Amendment Component of the Double
Jeopardy Clause, Constitutional Collateral Estoppel and, Alternatively, Claiming Res
Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the States Precluding State’s
Theory of Prosecution by Unlawful Intentional Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Battery Act
Described in the Amended Information. The State opposes.

ARGUMENT

A.  Introduction

It is next to impossible to comprehend the contentions put forth by the Defendant in
the instant Motion. The arguments are unintelligible and there is little citation to any
relevant legal authority, To warant consideration by a court, issues advanced by a
defendant must contain cogent argument supported by relevant legal autharity, See Maresca
v. State, 103 Nev, 669, 673 (1987). The Defendant’s picading falls far short of this. What
follows is the State’s best effort to respond to the claims he makes.

B.  This Case is Not Double-Jeapardy Barred

The Defendant appears to argue that the case now pending against him rust be

dismissed as it is barred by notions of double jecpardy. See Def.'s Mot. at 8-i1. However,

2
1034N8
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the Nevada Supreme Court has consistently held that retrial after a hung jury does not
constitute double jeopardy. Glover v. Districi Court, 125 Nev, 691, 692 (2009); Peck v
State, 116 Nev, 840, 847-48 (2000), everruled on other grounds by Rosas v, State, 122 Nev.,
1258 (2006); Sheriff v. Robertson, 90 Nev. 365, 366 (1974); Adams v, State, R6 Nev. 358,
359 (1970); Wheeler v. District Court, 82 Nev. 225, 229 (1996), State v. Eisentrager, 76
Nev. 437, 441 (1960).

C.  Supreme Court Reversal Does Not Preclude Re-Trial

It is quite clear that the Defendant misapprehends the implication of the Nevada
Supreme Court’s reversal of his earlier conviction. When the Defendant was first tried for
this offense, a jury convicted him of murder of the second degree. The jury i that trial was
instructed on a theory of felony second-degree murdet based upon NRS 200.070 which was

not alleged in the [nformation. In reversing the conviction, the Supreme Court stated:

Here, the district court abused its discretion when it instructed
the jury that second-degree murder includes imvoluntary killings
that accur in the commission of an unlawful act because Lﬁe
State’s charging document did not allege that O’Keefe killed the
victim while he was committing an unlawful act and the
evidence presented at trial did not support this theory of second-
degree murder,

Order of Reversal and Remand, Apal 7, 2@, at 1-2. The Defendant seemss to think that the
foregoing language precludes the State from proceeding on any theory of murder of the
second degree. See Def.’s Mot. at 12-14, 17-22. The Defendant is correct that the State may
not proceed on a theory of murder of the sccond degree predicated upon NRS 200.070:
however, it is free to proceed on a theory of “malice murder.”

The original [aformation in this case, filed with the Court on December 19, 2008,
alleges “open murder.™ An information charging murder without specifying the degree is
sufficient to charge murder in the first and second degree. Howard v. Sheriff, 83 Nev. 150,
153 (1967). “It is permissible to simply charge murder and leave the degree to be stated by
the jury.” Id. (citations omitted). The resulting murder of the second depree is an unlawful
killing with malice aforethought without premeditation and deliberation {l.e. “malice

murder™),

npl4n9
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This type of “malice murder” was alleged in the Second Amended Information filed
with the Court on August 19, 2010. The Nevada Supreme Court reversed the Defendant’s
conviction based upon this Court instructing the jury on a theory of murder of the second
degree based upon NRS 200.070. That theory was not contained in the Second Amended
Infermation, not provided to the jury in the second trial and not argued to the jury in the
second trial. The State is now proceeding on a theory of “malice murder” and there is
nothing contained in the Order of Reversal and Remand that prevents it from doing s0.

D. Credibility is an Issue for the Jury

The Defendant suggests that certain witnesses should not be allowed to testify
because, he believes, they are untruthful, See Def."s Mot. at 15. Weighing the credibility of
witnesses is the province of the jury. “*[T]t is the jury’s function, not that of the court, to
assess the weight of the evidence and determine the credibility of witmesses."” Rose v, State,
123 Nev. 194, 202-03 (2007) (quoting Origel-Candide, 114 Nev, 378, 381 (1998) (quoting
McNair v. State, 108 Nev, 53, 56 (1992))). If the Defendant believes that a witness is being
untruthful, his remedy is to cross examine them or to introduce evidence ta impeach them.

E. The Use of Bad-Act Evidence Does Not Constitute Double Jeopardy

The Defendant appears 10 be arguing that the use of bad-act evidence, evidence upon
which he has already been tried, is double-jeopardy barred. See Def.’s Mot at 16-17. The
flaw in this argument, of course, is that the Defendant is not again being placed in
“jenpardy” for those prior crimes. Rather, the evidence is being admitted as it is relevant in
the instant presecution.,

A similar 1ssue was addressed by the Nevada Supreme Court in McKenna v, State,
114 Nev. 1044 (1998). [n that case, the defendant argued that the introduction of his pricr
bad acts during a penalty hearing viclated the prohibition against double jeopardy and his
due process rights under the state and federal constitutions. 74 at 1058. The Court
disagreed:

..« NRS 173.552(3) provides that in the penalty bearing evidence

may be presented on aggravating and mitigafing circumstances
concerning the offense, defendant, or victim, and on any other

4
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matter which the court determines is relevant to the sentence.
Pursuant to NRS 1?5.55%3], evidence of appellant’s prior bad
acts was admissible, ¢ conclude that admission of this
evidence did not violate the prohibition against double jeopardy
or appellant’s due process rights ....

{d. at 1038-59. The foregoing is analogous to the issue raised by the Defendant in this case.
NRS 48.045 allows the introduction of bad-act evidence for a specific purpose. The
Defendant is not being retried for those matters. As in MecKenng, there is no violation of the
prohibition against double jeopardy by allowing the jury to consider this evidence
assessing his guilt.
CONCLUSION

Based upon all of the foregoing, the Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss Based Upon
Viclation(s} of the Fifth Amendment Component of the Dauble Jeopardy Clause,
Constitutional Collateral Estoppel and, Alternatively, Claiming Res Judicata. Enforceabie by
the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the States Precluding State’s Theory of Prosecution by
Unlawful Intentional Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Battery Act Described in the
Amended Information mmst be denied.

DATED this __ 21st  day of March, 2012,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark Cﬂun%]}istrict Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /5 Christopher J. Lalli

CHRISTOPHER I TALL]
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005398

CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION
I hereby certify that service of State's Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Dismiss,

was made this _ 3]st day of March, 2012, by facsimile transmission to;

BRIAN O'KEEFE - #1447732
C/O CCDC COURT SERVICES
FAX #671-3763

/58, Munoz
Secretary for the Disinct Atfamey's Office
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| _M2M% -~ SCORE DA 03/14/12 TIME: 11:54-11:54

LAS VEGAS METROPCLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT *** THE USE AND DISSEMINATION OF
+THIS RBCORD IS REGULATED BY LAW. SECONDARY DISSEMINATION OF ANY KIND IS
PRCHIBITED AND COULD SUBJECT THE OFFENDER TO CRIMINAL AND CIVIL LIABILITY.

S e o i e st i i . i o T s S kg g ———

NM-OKEEFE BRIAN KERRY SID-03013457 000
CS-1447732 BD-03141963 RC-W SX-M HT-510 WT-200 HR-BLN EY~-BLU
AK-MCGILL BRIAN CAREY SID-03013457 001
AK-OKEEFE BRYAN . SID-03013457 o002
. *% ADDITIONAL DATA OFFLIRE *+*
---------------------------------- ARRESTS === === omm oo e or o mim e

ARRESTED (8/04/03 CHARGE: FTA D&F CHEX BW-02F18493X
CHARGE AMENDED TO: D&F CHEX
DISPOSITION: 08/04/03 CONTINUED
SENTENCE: Q000
ARRESTED 01/07/03 CHARSE: BATT DV NO FRIOR CONVICT
DISPOSITION: 08/07/03.F
SENTENCE: PCN 20154385 /rDISM § '
ARRESTED 01/07/03 CHARGE: RESIST-POI"OFCR
DISPOSITION: 08/07/03 FINAL
SENTENCE: PCN 20154385 / 200YS CCDC/4DYS CTS/CONC
ARRESTED 11/14/03 CHARGE: BATT DV NO PRIOR CONVICT
CHARGE AMENDED TO: BATT DOMESTIC VIOL
DISPOSITION: 02/12/04 FINAL
SENTENCE: PCN 20372788/AMD/S$340 FINE/2D CCDC W/CTS/40H COMM SVC
ARRESTED 11/26/03 CHARGE: BATT DV NO PRIDR CONVICT
DISPOSITION: 03/02/04 _ FINAL
SENTENCE: PCN 21005627 # DISM)
ARRESTED Da/03/04 CHARGE: BATT BOMESTIC VIOL
DISPOSITION: 04/03/04 CONTINUED
SENTENCE: 0000 -
BARRESTED (4/03/04 CHARGE: BATT DOMESTIC VIOL
DISPOSITICN: 04/0&6/04 FINAL
SENTENCE: DENTED BY CA T
ARRESTED 05/29/04 CHARGE: SEXUAL{ASSLT 4 é}
CHARGE AMENDED TO: SEXUAL ASSLT
DISPOSTTION: 05/2%/64 CONTIRUED
SENTENCE: PCN 21500368
ARRESTED 05/2%/04 CHARGE: BATT W/I SEXUAL ASSLT
DISPOSITION: 05/2%/04 CONTINUED .
SENTENCE: PCN 215003268 MESEE T %
ARRESTED 05/29/04 CHARGE: ATTEMET SEKUAL[éSSLT 2 CTs
CHARGE AMENDED TO: ATTEMPT SEXUAL ASSLT
DISPOSITION: 05/29/04 CONTINUED —
SENTENCE: PCN 21500368 .
ARRESTED 05/29/04 CHARGE: BATT DV NO PRICR CONVICT
DISPOSITION: 07/28/04 FIRAL
SENTENCE: DENIED BY CA
ARRESTED 05/31/04 CHARGE: RMD SEXUAL ASSLT
CHARGE AMENDED TO: SEXUAL ASSLT
DISPOSITION: 05/31/04 CONTINUED
SENTENCE: PCH 21500388
PAGE 001 SID-03013457

NN3424
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M2IM9 - SCOPE DATE: 03/14/12 TIME: 11:;54-11:54

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT #++ THE USE AND DISSEMINATION OF
THTIS RECORD IS REGULATED BY LAW. SECONDARY DISSEMINATION OF ANY KIND IS
PROHIBITED AND COULD SUBJECT THE OFFENDER TO CRIMINAL AND CIVIL LIABILITY.

THIS INFORMATION RELEASED TO: BY:
AREESTED 05/31/04 CHARGE: RMD SEXUAL ASSLT
CHARGE AMENDED TCQ: SEXDAL ASSLT
DISPOSTTICON: 05/31/04 CONTINUED
SENTENCE: PCN 2150023&8
ARRESTED 10/29/04 CHARGE: FUG-PROB VIOL
ARRESTED 12/01/04 CHARGE: RMD BATT
ARRESTED 05/03/05 CHARGE: FTA BATT DV 3RD BW-C207835X
ARRESTED 11/05/08 CHARGE: MURDER W/DEAD WEAP
DISPOSITICH: 11/05/08 CONTINUED
SENTENCE: PCH 25087611
ARRESTED 03/12/09 CHARGE: FUG PROR VIOL
**+ END OF INFORMATION %+
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PAGE 002 SID-03013457
THIS RECORD IS BASED ON NAME AND PERSONAL IDENTIFTERS IN YOUR REQUEST. IT
+ HAS NOT BEEN VERIFIED BY FINGERPRINTS. ADDITIONAL MATCHING RECORDS MAY

EXIST IN OTHER LOCAL, STATE, OR FEDERAL FILES. & MANUAIL, SEARCH MAY BE
REQUESTED FOR AN ADDITICNAL FEE. USER SHOULD CONTACT THE NEVADA CRIMINAL
HISTORY RECORDS REPOSITORY (1-775-

687-5713) TC DETERMINE CHRI THAT COULD BE
IN FILES OTHER THAN THIS JURISDICTION'S.
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1 | Joce f\ ( Wﬂ.lj
Clark County Dierict A Y
ct
Nevada%lat; ﬂﬂ12s'?31 S 0(/ ‘é-\ﬂ/
[ 200 South Third Strest
Las Yegas, Nevada 89155-2212 !

(702) 435-4711
Attomney for Plaintiff

2
3
4
5
6

DISTRICT CO . - - . .- i
CLARK COUNTY,. -

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

™

Plaintiff,

Case No: C202793

1{ Vi~
DeptNo: XV

11 || BRIAN KERRY OKEEFE,

#1447732

12

i3 Defendant.

14

15 JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION (JURY TRIAL)

16 The Defendant previously entered plea(s) of not guilty to the crime(s) of COUNT | -

17 | BATTERY WITH INTENT TO COMMIT A CRIME (Fefony); COUNT 2 - SEXUAL
18 | ASSAULT (Felony); COUNT 3 - SEXUAL ASSAULT (Felony); COUNT 4 - SEXUAL
19 " ASSAULT (Felony); COUNT 5 - ATTEMPT SEXUAL ASSAULT (Felony); and COUNT

20 | 6 - BURGLARY (Felony), in violation of NRS 200.400; 200.364, 200.366; 193.330,

21 || 200.364, 2ﬂﬂ.366;. 205.060, znd the matter having been tried before a jury, and the
L R ~Defendant being represented by-counsel and-having-beenfound-gnilty -of the-crime(s)-of |-
23 |'COUNT 1- BATTERY (Misdemeanor), and COUNT VI =~ BURGLARY (Category B[

24 || Felony}, in violation of NRS 200.481; 205.060; and thereafter on the 27th day of December,
25 ‘ 2004, the Defendant was present in Court for sentencing with his counse]jmefe NS
26 3@ and good cause appearing therefor,

27 THE DEFENDANT HEREBY ADIUDGED guilty of the crime(s) as set forth in the
28 | jury's verdict and, in addition to the $25.00 Administrative Assessment Fee, 2 $150.00 DNA

|| B e




1
2
3
4
5
6
7
g
9

1o
11
12

= _——“
{ @

Analysis Fee and submit to testing to determine genetic markers, the Defendant is sentenced
| 2 foliows: on COUNT 6 - to a minimum of twenty-four (24) months and 2 maximum of one
hundred tweaty (120} months in the Nevada Department of Corrections; SUSPFENDED;
“ placed on probation for an indeterminate period not to exceed five (5) years, and on COUNT
1 - Defendant sentenced to CREDIT FOR TIME SERVED. CONDITIONS: 1) No contact
with the victim initiated by Defendant. Court advised Defendant any contact that the victim

initiates will not be a problem for him; 2) Search clause/burglary tools; 3) Complete
Domestic Violence counseling; 4) Secure and maintain full time employment; 5) Mental
Health counsefing as deemed necessary by Parole and Probation; 6) Resolve the warrant
from the State of Ohio within the next one hundred twenty (120) days; 7) Four (4) hours of
community service work each week, Case closed,

DATED this _ ZO _ day of December, 2004,

PP DOCS\UDGANNO9TTS0] DOC
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STEVEN B, WOLFSON

fam—y

2 I Clark County District Attomey GLERE OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #001565
3 | CHRISTOPHER J. LALLI
Chief Deputy District Atiorney
4 Y Nevada Bar #005398
200 Lewis Avenue
3 § Las Ve%as, Nevada §3155-2212
(702} 671-2830
6 | christopher.lallii@cedany.com
y Attorney for Plaint
8 DISTRICT COURT
5 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
)
10 § THE STATE OF NEVADA,
_ Case No: 08C250630
11 Plaintiff, Dept. No: X VII
12 m¥S- Date: April 10, 2012
13 | BRIAN KERRY O°KEEFE, Time: 815 am.
" #0744732
Defendant,
15
16 STATE’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO SEAL RECORDS
17 COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLF SON, District Attorney,
18 || through CHRISTOPHER ). LALLL, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby opposes the
19 | Defendant’s Motion 10 Sea! Records. This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers
20 § and pleadings on file herein, the attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral
21 | argument at the time of hearing, if deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.
22 DATED this 5th day of April, 2012.
23 STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attormey
24 Nevada Bar #001565
25
BY /s/ Christopher J. Lalli
26 CHRISTOPHER I, LALL]
Chief Deputy District Attorney
27 Nevada Bar #005398
28
CLARE Crilikeiy
DNETRICT ATTY NIy

“”“*:#”‘““ £ Program Files: ey Com Donumen nfrter remgh 3488 33536 5 000

LT AT 1800
|,I [} d 1
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1 MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
2 On November 5, 2008, Brian Kerry O'Keefe (hereinafier “the Defendant™) murdered
3 | Victoria Whitmarsh by stabbing the right side of her chest, The knife he used to kill Victoria
4§ sliced through various vital organs. It was also apparent that the much-larger Defendant had
3 | badiy beaten Victoria. Weighing seventy pounds less than him, her body was badly bruised
6 | atautopsy.
7 As is apparent by even a cursory review of the Defendant’s local criminal record
& 1 (which is attached as Exhibit A to his Motion), his criminal history is both lengthy and
% [ violent. In fact, this Court has nuled that a pertion of that violent history is admissible in the
10 § ensuing jury trial. Moreover, it is certainly possible that the Defendant, in representing
11 | himself, will “open the door” to even more of that record as the trial progresses. The
12 | Defendant has now filed a Motion to Seal Records which the State opposes.
13 Although Nevada law provides for the sealing of dismissed criminal records, a court
14 ¥ is required to utilize its discretion prior to doing s0. In subsections {6} and (7} of NRS
15 [ 179.255, which governs the sealing of records in dismissed cases, the court is provided with
16 Qi the discrerionary authority to seal records. See NRS 178.255(6) and (7) {“... the court may
17 | order sealed all records ...”) (emphasis added). Here, it would be an abuse of discretion to
18 | seal the Defendant’s records.
19 A defendant sought to seal his criminal record in Stare v Cavaricei, 108 Nev. 411
20 | (1992). In that case, Cavaricci brought a petition in the district court to seal three
21§ convictions and several subsequent arrests which did not result in convictions. The district
22 | court granted the petition over State objection and the State appealed. /Z. at412. On appeal,
23 | the Nevada Supreme Court agreed with the State, and concluded that the district court had
24 | abused its discretion in granting the petition 1o seal records:
25 Althuu%h respondent was entitled to file a petition pursuant to
NRS 179.253(1), we have determined that the district court
26 abused its diseretion in sealing those portions of respondent’s
criminal record pursuant to NRS 179.255(3), Respondent has an
27 arrest record dating back to 1984 and since then has been
arrested on average ooce or twice a year. Although many of
28 respendent’s arrests appear to be related to drunk driving, he has
N,
MAOR Yiolaiory 2
Attt
(0 RT ] 2B
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1 also been arrested for more serious crimes including drug crimes
and crimes involving violence, He has convictions dated 1984,
1987, 1988, 1989 and 1990, As revealed by his record of amests
and convictions, respondent is s:‘mp;';v rot the Lype of person upon

whom r&%udicfmy will confer such a substantial benefit as the

)

3
4 sealing of bis criminal records.
5 || {4d. at412-13 (emphasis added).
6 Cavaricci is strikingly similar to the case now before His Honor., The only time the
7 || Defendant is not getting arrested is when he is in jail or prison. As in Cavaricei, the
8 | Defendant is now facing a far more serious charge. Moreover, the charge is pending. In
? || shor, this Defendant is “simply not the type of person upon whom the judiciary will confer
10 | such a substantial benefit as the sealing of his ¢riminal records.”
i1 DATED this 5th day of April, 2012.
12 STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
13 Nevada Bar #0013565
14
BY &/ Christopher J. Lalii
13 CHRISTOPHER T, LALTT
Chief Deputy District Attorney
16 Nevada Bar #005398
17
18 CERTIFICATE OF MAIL ING
19
20 [ hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was mede this _ 5th

21 | day of April, 2012, by depositing a copy in the 1.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

22 BRIAN KERRY OKEEFE BAC #90244
C/0 HIGH DESERT STATE PRISON
23 P.O. BOX 650
- INDIAN SPRINGS, NEVADA 89070-0650
25 58 Munoz
2 Secretary for the Distnct Attorney's OlTice
27
28 | D8F23348X: CJIL/sam-MVU
TCLARK Lo~y
IR ATE 203

an24n73




® ORGINAL ®  mep s

1 | ORDR APR 1 2o
STEVEN B. WOLFSON "
2 | Clark County Dismict Artome
Nevada Bar #001565 7 bt
3 || CHRISTOPHER J, LALLI
Chief Dnlafu% District Attomey
4 | Nevada Bar #005398
200 Lewis Avenue
3 | Las Vegas, NV 89155-2212
{702) 671-2500
6 1| Anocmey for Plaintiff
5 .
8 DISTRICT COURT
g CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
10 | THE STATE OF NEVADA,
11 Plaiatiff,
12 ke CASE NO: 08C250630
13 | BRIAN O’KEEFE, aka DEFTNO: XVII
4 Brian Kerry Okeefe, #1447732
Befendant.
15 ﬂ
16 ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS
17
DATE OF HEARING: 03/29/2012
18 TIME OF HEARING: 8:15 A M.
19 THIS MATTER having come on for hearing before the above entitted Court on the
20 || 25th day of March, 2012, the Defendant being present, IN PROPER PERSON, the Plaintiff
21 | being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Altorney, through CHRISTOPHER
2 J. LALLL, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and the Court having heard the arguments of

gz counsei and good cause appearing therefor,
ff
M
i

£ %.m ™
; % i i';:*nglﬁw Mades
28 | #f
T o HEHTIARN
DEFT, 1T ON !
APR o 5 217 PAWPDOCSYORDRWFORDRIAZINE2 334304 doc
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COURT FINDS, there is no issue of double jeopardy in this particular matter and the
| State is not precluded from introducing bad act evidence under NRS 48.045. The Nevada
Supreme Court reversal does not preclude a retrial; IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the

Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss, shall be, end it is DENIED.
DATED this L@ day of April, 2012.

?éﬁ%fﬁﬁ%*’

DISTRICTTODGE

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
| Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001363

CLEA S
JLALLL
ty District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005398

| 08F23348X/sam-MVU
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attomey
Nevada Bar #001565
CHRISTBPHER JLALLI
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005398

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2830

chrisiopher.lallis@cedanv.com
Attorney for Plaintitr

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, Case No:
£ WNo:
i Dept. No
7 Date;
BRIAN KERRY O'KEEFE, #1447732 Time:
Defendant. %

Electromcally Fled
04/17/2012 02:20:28 PM

oLy -

CLERK OF THE COURT

08-C-250630
XVl

April 26, 2012
&:i5am.

STATE’S SUPPLEMENTAL QPPOSITION TO MOTION

TO SEAL RECORDS

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B, WOLF SON, District Attorney,
through CHRISTOPHER J. LALLL, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby opposes the

Defendant’s Motion to Seal Recards. This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers

and pleadings on file herein, the attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral

argument at the time of hearing, if deemed necessary by this Honorable Count.

DATED this 1 7th day of April, 2012.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Ant

Mevada Bar #001565

Omey

BY s/ Christopher J. Lalii

CHRISTOPHER T TATTI
Chief Deguty District Attorney

Nevada

ar #035398

CiFropmam Pk Nemw Cor. Decomos Comermrasmyr 571 7603 3900 13,000

1113436




MEM: NDIM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIE
On March 22, 2012, Brian Kerry O'Keefe (hereinafter “the Defendant™ filed a
Motion to Seal Records. The State filed an Opposition on April 3, 2012. The Motion was

b

" scheduled to be heard on April 10, 2012. However, on that day, the Court asked that the
partics address the applicability of NRS 179.245(4) to the instant matter.

As do subsections {6) and (7) which are referenced in the State’s Opposition, NRS
179.245(4) empioys discretionary language when empowering the court to seal a criminal

L1

record. “... [Tlhe court may order sealed all records ...." The analysis, therefore, in the

O 08— oM th e b

State’s Opposition does not change. It would be an abuse of discretion to seal the
10 " Defendant’s records because he is “simply not the type of person upon whom the judiciary
11 ¥ will confer such a substantial benefit as the sealing of his_crimjnal records.,” See State v,
12 “ Cavaricei, 108 Nev_ 411, 412-13 (1992).

13 DATED this 17 day of April, 2012.
14 STEVEN B. WOLFSON
“ Clark County District Attorney
15 Nevada Bar #001565
16
BY s/ Christapher J. Lalii
17 CHRISTOPHER T LALTT
Chief D uri District Attorney
18 Nevada Bar #005398
19
20 CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION
21 [ hereby certify that service of State’s Supplemental Opposition To Motion To Seal
22 § Records, was made this 1 7th day of April, 2012, by facsimile transmission to-:
23 BRIAN KERRY O'KEEFE, #1447732
CCDC / 671-3753
24
25
BY: 4/R. Johnson
26 R JOHNSON
7 Secretary for the District Attorney’s Office
28 "
CIAHK Gy i Na
ATTORNE Y
(72067 |8
| 477



ig
1l
12
L3
14
15
la
I3
18
1%
20
21

23

a
4T

-lHﬂD‘:‘JEI-I.L_-jnggm

. ° o 2
FILED
DISTRICT COURT
CLEZK COUNTY, NEVADA APR 19 2012
rsitr
STATZ OF NEVADA } Case No.: CES0 30
)
Plajintifs, i Dept. Ka.: X/f/
}
vE. | Docke: Mg.:
Bl Lo Dhorzre | e M. Yillari
Defmnzant : "m‘ﬁ e m
# )4 PTIZ PIE - © 0548 s
Nes 17 255

AN RS 179, 245 Freanlly N SUBRET o soronl

B - BEWRES 45 o Rremen BY Sinee

Comas M), Bowt leaes? O%crr  Faapee Reeant, 4o
by retan adfdindl sogreit & i proe Mrid 7
cﬁj R Jeaed éy %{ [/j}{a;a' oo /?Pf.;fa;awz.

Ths is # ) ﬂ?ﬁ?‘.ﬁ;u'e with e oral Orrese .o Yie
mnhs:

H Rsose. 6 mid oo Sowrd ypn @l the

s ol phodige on Fk fewis, the cllelod puids el

af_ﬂ’m‘éi& o &ﬁarf fewesh, 2nd oral ?«m‘f' £ e lome

& fezriy s, dened secesry by bhs Hlnsersie (v

D i 149 oy F Awid, 202 ﬁaﬁ
g i zazﬁn e

CCDE -
Haczanesa x 3% 3 Cosem Oty Bl
- Fin “w Hpon, M. E5ry
3 o Do SE T [FEVTSZ

—

g LT




1 an wd M n & L 1] b

bl L) L e ha [, [ =] [ - b - - =t -
' W »r = 0 g -] ~J h ] = (8] (2 = =}

=]
n

& L
MeMpbop N oF Lz s Rdoers

On Abitmder 5, 208, odzrl ois wnadilly c

v th c%"f/ (iw&ﬁ%ﬁg Lerrahe h/o/m o ﬂ of%
Q%#%aﬁ'Jy-m.ﬂ%p/:#%&ﬁ;wﬂ% & Aoite.

e
debendatt hie sithored 2 Seond Goal znd Ao o
“Gud boa dete Slefeed b pilehe o o les def
?.éﬂ!‘hi- .,FZHE s (Zrgeholintooe s %{? f
0 CoMvat MENT ad WSOFFICrants EVideree n

Deeer e -

TN propectus for foi wﬂﬁ;@-
bodl, o0 te SAE st Sobdort O S
o Nl T SE Beoms per MAS. 177255
7345;‘ b Sewme ﬁb/%mm@ Emmégﬁwf £

TS A rsmezsal o _2epitlef .
cpehd it Ok fff et
fe Jﬁ}“:l{ ) “—'Q ’i 2% Lz €
/'ae!‘ Mﬁ?&- /77 245 C"‘)f P"’f&n;:é gﬁé‘
_ ‘ Mz" bl Je

éﬁ?ﬁﬁy LA - Detenclint & m/?’ Breetacef il
Sl NAE 179,255 whieh has p Zme Pshak

Prwnsong o 779.255 céwéfqéﬁﬁfféglfgﬁﬁﬂd%ﬂ§

-2 -

10/3439




=] m =1 m 7] & i i P

=
=

=]
-t

=
[

g
[ Fi3

[
A

=
1]

-
&y

(=]
k|

o
o

-
LT}

5
(= ]

%
=

]
53

ha
4ad

]
F

e
wh

who J@- ém &Wﬁ: d%d!cf;nu;J an(vcf'amf
the ch Ze dismicsad or such Petsn 13 Ad
e‘-Ei/.c clyaas, Yhe precs Mﬂf M@?”

Doy g N2.5. 1725
MMI% ?&;2} ,«{f;-; 6‘?;;

= 2‘(4‘@«;— wetld [l

e puil ot e Ste hos evhpsicly gpod fr:

UL s

fzjw Ty v ¥ *?Zf:z/ac Fours

ot ﬁﬁ“ﬁgﬁf? wnild 12
-

b flneme B i o Ay

: /
wch et b bl ] ey o




pRe

11

12

13

1a

15

16

17

ie

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

® ®
Caﬂ(’_w;sfai\/

p—

Aedsit  fumd c;;lr,ﬁﬂ / Yarr C?

Ahis  Mhden . z.-w mede il
& 7% v cﬁnﬂ-‘;] WS~ Rerer FM 4

it Ergere) .cu'l)/ on ;v!'(w G Cort
g -
Chorpiores o 17 drent

Mo was fod blwa &5 cht &
dz &4"{# %

DRATED THIS {4’ day of %1[ . 2002 .
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Balemnly swear, under the penalty of perjury, thag
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the above igs acecurats,

i

correct, and true to the best of my knowledge

HRS 171.102 and WRS Z0B . 155,
Respectfully submitted,
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney RLERS.OF YHECOURT.
Mevada Bar #001565

LIZ MERCER

Depg(riy District Attomey

Nevada Bar #10681

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2217

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

i CASE NO: (C-08-250630-

BRYAN (O'KEFEFE, aka, DEPT NO:  XVII
Brian Kerry O'Keefe, #1447732

Defendant.

SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF EXPERT WITNESSES
[NRS 174.234(3)]

TO: BRYAN O'KEEFE, aka, Brian Kerry O'Keefe, Defendant; and
TO: PUBLIC DEFENDER, Counsel of Record:
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF
NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses in its case in chief:
1) WERNIKOVE-GREENE, EL YNEE, , Who will testify regarding the cycle of

abuge, power and control dynamics, victim behavior in domestic viclence relationships, and
other related topics.

The substance of each expert witness’ testimony and a copy of all reports made by or
at the divection of the expert witness has been provided 1o discovery,
)
ted
i

CoProgram Frlesdewvia Com Dodument Converterilampi I TRER] 215 G641 [0

113443
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A copy of each expert witness® curriculum vitae, if available, is attached hereto.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #)01 565

BY /s/[.LIZ MERCER

[TZ MERCER
Deputy Dhistrict Attorney
Nevada Bar #1068 1

€ 2Prodram FitenNeevin £ ot Document Unovertertemp' 2078 491 3516642000
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CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILIE TRANSMISSION

I hereby certify that service of Notice of Expert Witnesses, was made this | 7th

day of Type month, 2011, by facsimilie transmission ta:
LANCE MANINGO, ESQ.
FAX# 452-6298

BY: /o T.SCHESSLER
Empioyee of the District Attorney’s Office

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and feregoing, was made this [ 7th day of

May, 2012, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

BRIAN (KEEFE
#1447732
JA298

CLARK COUNTY DETENTION CENTER

330 8. CASINO CENTER BLVD
LAS VEGAS NEVADA 389101

/s/ T. SCHESSLER

Secretary for the Lhistrict Attorney's

Office

€ “Predram Files Neevia Comt ocuenent Canvaretump' 20 5591 -3 5| 5643.060C

NH3445




ELYNNE GREENE

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

1981 - 19588 Creative Arts Therapist, Falemount Institute, Philade|phia, Pennsylvania

1983 — 1958 Family Therapist & Addictions Counselor, Private Practice, Mt. Laurel,
New Jersey

1958- 1991 Direcior of Crisis Intervention Services and Domestic Violence Shelter
EYE Counseling and Crisis Services, Escondido California

1991 ~ 1992 Director of Training & Education
Altercrest Juvenile Sex Offender Treatment, Cinginnati, Ohio

1992 — Present LVYMPD Victim Services Detail
Las Yegas Metropolitan Police Department, Las Vegas, Nevada

2008~ Present Acting Program Coordinator of the Scuthern Nevada Human Trafficking
Task Force

EDUVCATION

1975- Habpemann University College Accelerated Program, High School Diploma
1979 - Temple University, B.S. Psychology

1981 - Lesiey University, MA Counseling and Crearive Aris Therapies

1986 — Certificate in Structural Family Therapy, Philadelphia Child Guidance Center

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS

National Credentialed Advecate, Advanced, National Organization for Victim Assistance
NACP #NB7-268-5746, Since 2005

POST Certified Trainer, Instroctor Development, [994

National Victim Assistance Aeademy, Washington DC, 1995

National Victim Assistance Academy, Facalty Development, Washingion, DC, 1996

AB348 Task Foree, 1998

Advanced Instructor Development, 2000

NDOJ Domestic Violence Train the Trainer, 2004

Domestic Violence Expert Witness Training, 2604

Rick Culley 360 Leadership Program, 2005- 2010

Clark County, Child Protective Services/Bomestic Violence Work Groap, 2009

Child Advocacy Center Stakeholders’ Workgroup, 2009

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS /AFFILIATIONS

Sars Diego Domestic Violence Task Force, Executive Committee 1989 - 1990
Nevada Network Against Domestic Violence , Board Member, 1995 - 2000
National Organization for Victim Assistance, Membership
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National Center for Victims of Crime, Membership

Nevada Staie Domestic Violence Prevention Council

The Shade Tree Board of Trustees, 1993 - Present
Southern Nevada Domestic Violence Task Force, President
Community Coalition for Victiras® Rights, Treasurer

PRESENTATIONS/COURSES TAUGHT

Sexual Assgzult Team/SART Trainer, 1989 — 1991

Poilice and Corrections Academies for LVYMPD since 1093

Im-service Training on Victim ssues for LYMPD, since 1993

National Organization for Victims of Crime 20™ Annwal Conference, 1994
Nevada Network Against Domestic Violenee Statewide Conference, 1994
Latino Peace Officers’ Association, 1994

Nevada Sheriff”s and Police Chief"s Association, 1996

UNLY Sexual Assuult Peer Education Training, 1999

Nevada POST 1 and £I Basic Training, Community College of Southern Nevada, 200
LYMPD No Hitter Conference, 2001

Nevada Network Agaimst Domestic Vielence Statewide Conference, 2002
Las Vegas Mupicipal Court Amnoal Domestic Violence Conference, 2002
Child Advoeacy Center Stakeholders' Workgrowp, 2009

Teen Dating Violence Course, Bishop Gorman High School, 2010 — Present

AWARDS/RECOGNITION
Families of Murder Victims Vietim Rights Week Award, 1996
Families of Murder Victims Victim Rights Week Award, 2000

Shade Tree Volunteer Service Award, 2009
Sonthern Nevada Domestic Violence Task Force STAR Award, 2010
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STEVEN B. WOLFSCN
Clark County District Attomey MAY 2 b 201

Wevada Bar 2001565 ;
CHRISTOPHER J. LALLI e .
Chief Deputy District .Atlorney

Nevada Bar #005398

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, NV 89155.2212

(702) 671-2500
Attarney for Plaintiff
ol
DISTRICT COURT Ty asen
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA ’”mmmﬂ

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

FlaintifT,

CASENO. 08C2506030
-‘I"s..

DEPT NO: XVl
BRIAN O'KEEFE, aka

Brian Kerry Okeefe, #1447732
iJefenidant.

- ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO SEAL RECORDS &
DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO ADMIT EVIDENCE OF POLYGRAPH
EXAMINATION

DATE OF HEARING: 04/26/2012
TIME OF HEARING: 8:15 A.M.

THIS MATTIER having come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on the
26th day of April, 2)12, the Defendant being present, IN PROPER PERSON, the Plaintiff
being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney, through CHRISTOPHER
J. LALLY, Chief Deputy District Attomey, and the Court having heard the arguments of the
defendant and couns:l, the Court finds as follows:

AS TQ the Defendant’s Motion to Seal Records, the Defendant represented that Case
No. C202793 was d smissed when, in fact, he was found puilty in that case. The Defendant
represented that Cass No, 03M00410X was dismissed when, in fact, he plead puilty 1o onc of
the counts in that case. In addition, Case No. 03M26791X was not dismissed on the merits

PAWPDOCRORDRWFORDRRD W3 14808 doc
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but was dismissed pursuant to negotiations. Mareover, the Court finds that the Defendant

has an active pending case wherein he is charged with murder. Based upon Stare v.
Cavaricci, 108 Nev. 411, 412-13 (1992), the Court finds it would be an abuse of discretion
to grant the instant motion; NOW THEREFORE, pood cause appearing, IT IS HERERY
ORDERED that the Dvefendant’s Motion to Seal Records, shall be, and it is DENIED.

AS TO the Defendant’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Polygraph Examination, the
Court believes that polygraph examinations are typically not admitted into evidence because
there is a dispute as Lo the reliability of such examinations. The Court furthet believes that
admitting evidence of the Defendant’s prior polygraph examination would adversely affect
the Defendant’s constitutional right to a fair trial; NOW THEREFORE, good cause
appearing, IT IS HEEEBY ORDERED that the Defendant’s Motion to Admit Evidence of
Polygraph Examinaticn, shall be, and it is DENIED.

DATED this g3 __ day of May, 2012,

Yte] 471

DISTRICT JTUGGE (A

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County Distric: Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

istrict Attorney
MNevada Bar #00530¢%

08F23348X/sam-M/U
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